Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

Dial-A-Ride

A Service of Tillamook County Transpo.

Thursday, May 14, 2021 at 6:30 PM
Transportation Building

3600 Third St., Ste. A

Tillamook, Oregon



For Board Meeting of May 20, 2021
Agenda ltem # 7

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER
SUBJECT: SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2-21
ISSUE

Shall the Board direct the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2-21 by Title and set a
Public Hearing beginning with the April 22, 2021 Board meeting and the May 20, 2021
Board meeting to receive public testimony regarding proposed changes to the fare
structure as described in the proposed Ordinance No. 2-21 pursuant to ORS 198.540
and ORS 267.1507?

PURPOSE
The District has been studying how to modify its fare policy to:
o Simplify its fixed route fare structure and make fares more affordable.

e Revise the dial-a-ride fare structure so it can eliminate zones and allow people to
travel to jobs, shopping, and other destinations across the County.

The District would also like to make it easier to introduce new fare systems, such as
mobile ticketing, that will make it more convenient for customers to pay fares in the
future.

The District would like to and implement any fare changes prior to implementing an
update and enhancement to its Ecolane deviated fixed route dispatching and scheduling
management software, which would avoid additional effort and cost of reprogramming
equipment. The update project is currently underway and which the District would

like roll it out in Summer 2021.

BACKGROUND

The District's current fare ordinance was adopted in 2013, and modified by Board
resolutions in 2014 and 2019. The last fare change for the District occurred on July 1,
2019, with the adoption of Ordinance 19-14 by the Board on June 20, 2019. The change
increased dial-a-ride fares to $4 (full-fare, 1-zone) and to $2 (discount, 1-zone),

to keep the service available to as many people as possible on a basis that is
economically sustainable.

In August 2016, the District adopted its Long-Range Transit Development Plan
(LRTDP), which established a monitoring program that includes a farebox recovery
performance measure (fare revenue divided by total operating cost) and a goal of
increasing farebox recovery balanced with maintaining service that is affordable.

In 2018, TCTD conducted an analysis of the dial-a-ride fare policy to begin developing
policies to better reflect the cost of providing a broad range of demand response trips



For Board Meeting of May 20, 2021
Agenda ltem #7

across Tillamook County and allow it to transition away from demand response zones to
a county-wide dial-a-ride system. The study included a study provided a policy review,
a study of rider trip patterns, and a peer review of similar sized transit agencies fare
policies.

In 2020, the District conducted a fare analysis, including a comprehensive review of the
current fare structure and policies and relevant fare-related best practices; analysis of
multiple fare scenarios and ridership/revenue impacts; and fare structure and policy
recommendations. As part of this analysis, the District:

¢ Facilitated two focus group meetings on September 15 and 16,
2020 with stakeholders (representatives of social service agencies and other
organizations) throughout the County.

¢ Conducted a survey of bus drivers and dispatchers in October 2020.

e Presented to the Board on October 15, 2020, summarizing findings from the
Existing Conditions and Best Practices review.

e Conducted a public survey between January 11 to 31, 2021 to obtain input on an
initial fare proposal. The District received 77 responses.

e Facilitated a follow up focus group meeting with stakeholders on March 2,
2021 to solicit their feedback.

At the March 18, 2021 Board meeting, the District presented findings and
recommendations from a draft report summarizing the District’s fare analysis,
incorporating adjustments based on input from the public and stakeholders. In late
March 2020, the District also conducted a survey of bus drivers and dispatchers to
solicit their input on the proposed changes. The District made adjustments to the
proposed fare structure described below based on Board and driver/dispatcher input, as
well as additional staff discussion.

On February 1, 2021, the District submitted its application to the Oregon Department of
Transportation (ODOT) for Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) formula
funds, including funds to make fares more affordable (including changes proposed in
this Ordinance). The proposed changes are consistent with STIF program goals to
reduce costs for low-income persons and a requirement that transit agencies use 1% of
the funds to enhance transportation for students in Grades 9 to 12. The District's STIF
Plan is currently being reviewed by ODOT and approved by the Oregon Transportation
Commission (OTC) on May 13, 2021.

PROPOSED FARE STRUCTURE

The District’s fare structure refers to specific fare products offered to the riding public
and pricing of those products. Table 1 shows the proposed fare structure and fare
changes for each fare category. A copy of the proposed fare table is provided in the
Ordinance as Attachment A.

The changes include:



For Board Meeting of May 20, 2021
Agenda ltem # 7

Eliminating fare zones for travel within Tillamook County, on both deviated fixed
routes and Dial-A-Ride.

o On deviated fixed routes, there would be a single fare zone including
connections to Lincoln City and Cannon Beach.

o On Dial-A-Ride, there would be a base fare for trips of up to 5 miles, and a
mileage-based fare for each additional mile, within the service area
(Tillamook County). Customers will be able to find out the cost of their trip at
the time they reserve it. Currently Dial-A-Ride is available for travel within a
single fare zone only, with the exception of medical appointments, as
described below.

Eliminating the following fare types:

o Tillamook Town Loop Day Pass (replaced by a day pass for all of Tillamook
County)

o Route 5 (Portland Coastliner) round trip pass (replaced by a 10-trip pass)

o Multi-zone Dial-A-Ride, which is available for medical trips only (replaced
by the mileage-based fare described above)

For deviations on Tillamook County fixed routes, the District will charge an
additional fare (in addition to the full fare or reduced fare for an “on-route” trip,
whether paid with a single fare, day pass, or monthly pass). Deviations may
currently be requested within a % mile distance of the route, and a limited
number may be accommodated if it is safe to do so and based on the time
available in the schedule. However, deviations make it more challenging for
drivers to keep buses on schedule, minimize delay to other passengers, and
ensure they do not miss connections to other routes.

Reduced fares are currently offered to seniors (60+) and persons with disabilities,
on Tillamook County routes and intercity service between Lincoln City and
Salem. The District also intends to make reduced fares available to low-income
persons in the future, but it has determined that it first needs to develop an
eligibility process including criteria and forms of verification, such as a Medicaid
(Oregon Health Plan) card. The District plans to develop this process in
approximately July to December of 2021.

For children and youth:

o Fixed-route trips would be free within Tillamook County (including
connections to Lincoln City and Cannon Beach) for children and youth age 0-
18, not including deviations (which are charged the same additional fare as
described above).

o The first two children age 0-12 would be free with a paying adult.

o Youth age 13-18 may be asked to show a middle or high school student
identification card (or alternative) for age verification.

(N



For Board Meeting of May 20, 2021
Agenda ltem # 7

Table 1: Proposed Fares (Effective 7/1/2021

Full Fare Reduced Fare ‘ Child/Youth Fare*

| Current ‘ Proposed ‘ Current Proposed ‘ Current Proposed
Tillamook County Routes (Deviated Fixed Routes)
Single Fare (per route) $1§;Or PN 510 $Ob7e5r 09225)  g050 $%Z§ztgn$e2425 Free
Day Pass N/A $3.00 N/A $1.50 N/A Free
Monthly Pass $40.00 $30.00 $30.00 $20.00 N/A Free
Single Fare with Deviation N/A $2.00 N/A $1.50 N/A N/A
Deviation 10-Trip Pass N/A $20.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Dial-A-Ride
Single Fare up to 5 miles $4'(Z’2n(zi)”9'e $4.00 $2'gg n(:i)”g'e $2.00 N/A $2.00
for addlonalmie beyond | $0.50 NIA $0.50 NIA $0.50
Intercity Route 5 (Portland Coastliner)
Single Fare $15.00 $15.00 N/A N/A $7.50 * $7.50
10-Trip Pass N/A $120.00 N/A N/A N/A $60.00
[intercity Routes 60X/70X (Coastal Connector)
1 Zone $1.50 $1.50 $0.75 $0.75 $0.75* $0.75
2 Zones $3.00 $3.00 $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 ** $1.50
3 Zones $6.00 $6.00 $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 * $3.00
Special Programs ]
g'azzy WIS Sisijor §25.00 $25.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A
;fsiy NWRTAVisller $30.00 $30.00 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Seasonal Pass N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

* First child 0-4 is free with paying adult. ** First child age 0-5 is free with paying adult

FARE POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS

The District’s fare analysis also identified internally-adopted policies or procedures such
as fare collection. These include:

e Requiring that 10-Trip passes be purchased in advance, as this avoids delaying
bus departures; minimizes the amount of cash on-board (a potential safety
concern among drivers).

e Making monthly passes available for sale in convenient locations for customers,
such as at grocery stores.



For Board Meeting of May 20, 2021
Agenda ltem # 7

e Exploring mobile ticketing, online ticket sales, and provide a ticket machine at the
Tillamook Transit Center.

e Simplify communication of the fare structure on passenger materials, which will
be made possible with the proposed changes.

e Establishing formal guidelines for fare adjustments, considering the average fare,
subsidy per passenger, and farebox recovery ratio.

PUBLIC INPUT

Handouts describing the proposed changes were distributed to passengers on-board
vehicles and posted at the Tillamook Transit Center, and posted to the District's web
page and social media page (Facebook).

Written comments may be providing by giving written testimony to a driver, by mail,
or by email sent to publichearing@tillamookbus.org and must be received by close of
business (5 pm) on May 7, 2021.

The District Board will consider testimony received in writing (by May 7, 2021)

or provided during Public Hearings before adopting the new fare ordinance, from April
22,2021 until the Second Reading of Ordinance No. 2-21 at the Public Hearing on May
20, 2021.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends the Board direct the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2-21 by Title;
and receive public testimony regarding proposed changes to the fare structure, rates,
and effective date, from the April 22, 2021 Board meeting to the May 20, 2021 Board
meeting pursuant to ORS 198.540 and ORS 267.150.



Tillamook County Transportation District

Fare Policy Analysis
May 2021

NNEL_SO
NYGAAR



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINALREPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Table of Contents

Page
Nt OdUCHOM ettt cssse s sense s 1
RriOjEEt GOl svms. o oomesmemtsiiston Wissssreesss o eoisoiss onss sesssed oSSR ST e et Tasanseoe s a0 vie Mo Thasnssnonass BT T T R 1
Existing Conditions Assessment............... 1
Stakeholder Focus Groups: Existing Conditions (Fall 2020) .4
Fare Scenario Evaluation and Results........ b
Public and Stakeholder Outreach: Initial Fare Proposal (Winter 2021) 19
Fare Structure and Policy Recommendations 28
Next Steps . 38

Appendix A Existing Conditions Findings
Appendix B Adoption Process Outreach Materials

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Asscciates Inc. |i



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINALREPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Table of Figures
Page

Figure 1 Existing Fare Zones and Services....cunnnen. ., 3
Figure 2 Summary of Fare-Related Focus Group Comments.............. . .5
Figure 3 Fare Scenarios EvalUGted .. ensessssssesssssssssssessssenss 7
Figure 4 Fare Scenario Ridership and Revenue Change.....uumcinimnimisssassisessassesessossess 8
Figure 5 Fare Scenario Ridership and Revenue Change (Chart)...uenen. .8
Figure 6 Scenario 1A Fare SIructure e 9
Figure7 Scenario 1B Fare Structure. et st s e sttt s sa s enat s san s 10
Figure 8 Scenario 2A Fare Structure ... 11
Figure 9 Scencrio 2B Fare Structure . 12
Figure 10 Scenario 3 Fare SHUCIUr@.nnennmenmrnns 13
Figure 11 Scenario 4A Fare Structure w.seeeeresees 14
Figure 12 Scenario 4B Fare Structure. 15
Figure 13 Scenario 5 Fare Structure 16
Figure 14 Scenario 6 Fare Structure 17
Figure 15 Scenario 7 Fare Structure w. 18
Figure 16 Survey Respondent Locatiors.... 20
Figure 17 Routes Used by Survey Respondents......... 21
Figure 18 Survey Results for Proposal to Charge $1 for a Deviation 22
Figure 19 Survey Results for Proposal to Charge a Mileage-Based DAR Fare and Eliminate

Fare Zones 22
Figure 20 Survey Results for Route 5 Preliminary Fare Proposal 23
Figure 21 Survey Results: Interest in Mobile Ticketing 24
Figure 22 Survey Results: Options to Make Buying Fares More Convenient 25
Figure 23 Existing and Proposed Fares; Summary of Public and Stakeholder Input..eceenneee.. 27
Figure 24 Existing and Proposed Discount Policies; Summary of Public and Stakeholder Inpui27
Figure 25 Recommended Fare Structure 28
Figure 25 TCID Deviated Fixed-Route Service .29
Figure 26 TCID Intercity Service 29
Figure 28 Dial-a-Ride Proposed Fare Examples (One-Way Regular Fares®)....cccmemesecsens. 30
Figure 29 Ridership and Revenue Impacts of Recommended Fare Structure, Total and

Percent Change. 32
Figure 30 Ridership and Revenue Impacts of Recommended Fare Structure, by Service Type32
Figure 31 Summary of Dial-A-Ride Fare Types and Changes for Privately Paid Trips....w 33
Figure 32  Privately-Paid Dial-A-Ride Trips within Existing Fare Zones, 7 /1/2018 to

6/30/2020 34
Figure 34  Dial-A-Ride Trip Statistics for Riders Making Private Cross-Zone Trips, 7/1 /2018

10 6/30/2020 ccuoumerereerreermsrerssmssssssssssssnssessess 35
Figure 35 Mobile Ticketing Benefits and Drawbacks ... wemeesserenes . 36

Nelsorn\Mygaard Consulting Associates Inc. 1ii



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tilamook County Transportation District

INTRODUCTION

The Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD)fare analysis provides a comprehensive review of
the current fare structure and policiesfor The Wave, analyzed fare sce narios, and provides fare structure
and policyrecommendations. TCTD is interested in making changes to fareand/or service policies
effective Summer 2021, coordinated with itslaunch of the Ecolane Deviated Fixed-Route module.

The fare analysis includesa review of:
= Existingfare policies
= Relevant fare-related best practices
= Potential impacttoridership and revenue of modeled fare scenarios
= Fareand policy recommendations

Fare recommendationsincorporate resultsfrom reviewing national best practices, evaluation of fare
scenarios, refining concepts with agency staff, and input from the public and stakeholders.

PROJECT GOALS

Specific goalsand objectives for the fare study are summarized as follows:

Simplify and streamline fare structure
Coordination and seamless integration with other providers
Increase ridership while balancing fare revenue

Establish performance metrics, including average subsidy per trip and farebox
recovery

Evaluate alternatives to in-county multi-zone fare structure
Explore new fare media, including mobile and electronic ticketing

Educate operators, board, and public on fares and fare policies

00000600

EXISTING CONDITIONS ASSESSMENT

This analysis reviews existing fare structure and policies for TCTD, as well as summarizes revenue trends,
fare media usage, other regional fare policies and practices, and rider demographics to determine
opportunities for modifications to fare policies and structure. For reference, Figure 1illustrates existing
services and fare zones.

Existingconditions analysis findings areincludedin AppendixA.

Select opportunities to improve the fare structure include the following:

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates inc. | 1



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Discount policies and age thresholds canbe simplified and made consistent across all routes
Inconsistent zone boundaries acrossservices may be confusing forriders

Potential opportunity to better market visitor pass for passengersusingtransit along the coast

- 3 and 7-Day Visitor passes havelow usage compared to Route 5 ridership

Offer more ways to purchase fare products, induding online or mobile ticket options

Consider intercounty and additional interagency passoptions

Consider potential for fare reciprocity among partner providers

Some peeragencies offeradditional pass and discountoptions

Most local services atpeer agenciesare a flatfare

Streamlining passengerinformation can make the fare structure more understandablefor riders

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 2

\O



(jeoipaw 1dsoxs) suoz
yoea uiyum Ajuo sduj

M oug uoneaodsutsy
( Aoy oo
(501 SIOW = U] JOIM) kG
SAUT Ol =~ f
scha OO G

Auno) yinosg

Auno) [eguad

Auno) yHoN

emasmry

(Aunod ynos pue ‘jenus) ‘yuon)
opiy-e-jeiqg

¢ | -ouj sejenossy Bunnsuo? pieeBAN\UoSjeN

sdojs pejwi; ‘soue)sip-Buo . POMOJ[E SUOIIBIAS( -«
Sale} peseq-suoy salej paseq-auoyz

patl Sl v Auno) ujooun
Xo9 €
5 o Au¥no) ujoau [
!

Runo) yoouwryiiy

funo) sooweyitg

o L_./!l.
!
\‘\\.\I\\ sy
i P Auno?) dosie|D

S O f.\\(

(¥ ‘c ‘2 ‘L anoy)
9IN0Y-paxi4 pajeiaa(Q

(X0Z “X09 ‘s a1noy)
anoy-paxid Aj1oiaju|

S99IAIaG pue sauozate Bunsixy 1 aanbiy

s uolepodsued | Aiunos) yoowey |
130434 TVNIA | SISATYNVY ADIT0d 34V

\\



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

STAKEHOLDER FOCUS GROUPS: EXISTING CONDITIONS (FALL 2020)

Two focus group meetings (10 people) were held on September15and 16, 2020 to obtain input from

TCTD stakeholders on topicsrelated to the fare study, including the zone structure, fare media, and
discounts. Thediscussionincluded general feedback on TCTD’s existingservices and opportunities forthe
District. Focusgroup participants included members representing the following agencies:

Tillamook County Community Action Resource Enterprises
Tides of Change

Tillamook County Veterans Services

Oregon Health Authority VISTA

Rinehart Clinic

Marie Mills Center

Northwest Senior and Disability Services

ODOT PublicTransportation Division

Columbia Pacific Coordinated Care Organization

Lincoln County Transit

Highlightsfrom the focus groups relevant to the fare analysis are providedin Figure2.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 4

V72



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tilamook County Transportation District

Figure 2 Summary of Fare-Related Focus Group Comments

| _ Category

Fare zones

Findings
Zones are arbitrary, cutoffs are challenging (peaple need multiple tokens)

People would be delighted to pay a little more to be able to travel outside the existing
Zones

A mileage-based fare seems confusing and could get expensive
Simplicity should be the goal

Fare media/ options

More passes are needed; look for options to fund more passes (PUD donation
program)

Would be concerned about eliminating tokens/passes (some people don't use
internet/smartphones)

Multiple options/flexibility to pay fare are beneficial (e.g., credit card, enable buying
tickets/passes electronically, change machine at transit center)

Fare policies

Consider modifying accompanying child policies

Discount programs

Consider programs like the following:

o “Honored Citizens” pass (including Medicaid card holders and disabled
veterans).

Low-income; ability to apply for discounted access

Fare capping

Youth pass program (through school districts and charter schools)
o Chidrenunder 5 or 6 years ride free

O O O

Expand employer pass programs (PUD, Cheese Factory, Smoker) where employers

Pass programs provide bus passes
Cross-county Fare reciprocity would be beneficial (works with pass but not one-way fare)
connections Easier to establish on agency-by-agency basis than all at once
Free fares Strong interest/support
Technology Support for mobile ticketing as a convenient option for most riders (as long as other

options are maintained); people are doing this for sports and other events

FARE SCENARIO EVALUATION AND RESULTS

Fare scenarios combine select concepts that canbe compared against one another. Thesescenariosare
preliminaryand intended to testalternative approaches; optionsin some scenarios carried through to be
part ofthe final recommendations, while othersdid not. Thissection describes the ridership and revenue

impacts of seven specific scenarios.

Approach and Assumptions

The fare model developed for this project is based on existing ridership and revenue data (FY2018) and
assumptionson average fare per passenger for each fare product. Thisinformation is then used asa
baseline to understand order of magnitude changesto fare revenuesand ridership asa result of pricingor

structural changes.

Nelson\Nygaard Consuliing Assoclates Inc. | 5

\%



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Consumptionoftransit, like other goods and services, reacts to cost. Significant research over time has
examined thesensitivity of transitridership to fare increases. In transit, the standard measurement of
sensitivity tofare changesmeansthat for every 10%increase in fares, ridershipwill decrease by 3% (and
vice-versa).

Assuch, elasticity factorsare common in fare modeling, as they define the price sensitivity of riders to fare
changes. An elastic factor suggestsalarger changein ridership relative to a fare change. Aninelasticfactor
suggestsa relatively small change in ridershiprelative to a fare change. The model accountsforthree
elasticityfactors:

= Arelativelyinelasticfactor(-0.33), whichis consistent with industry standards forregular fares

* A“reduced”elasticityfactor (-0.21) to account for observations associated with student, elderly,
and disabled patrons

Using these elasticity factors, ridership changes (ona fare product basis) are determined from the
proposed fare increase or decrease. A newaverage fare for each fare productis also calculated from the
percentage change in thefare product price. Finally, multiplying the newridership estimate by the new
average fare produces a revenue estimate forthat fare product.

It should be cautioned thatany estimation model is an approximationbased on a set of assumptionsand
is highly dependenton accurate datainputsto ensure quality outputs. Thefare model bases ridershipand
revenue changes strictly on price variation. Qualitative factors such as customer simplicity or other factors
are not considered here but are certainly factors in reality that influence ridership and revenue levels.
Based on the perceived simplicity gains, it is likely that ridership benefitsin each alternative are
understated. As a result, the findings from thisanalysis are simply estimates but offer a valuable means to
comparedifferent alternatives against one another.

Fare Scenarios

Seven different scenarios for fare structure and pricingchanges were developed to evaluate potential
impactsto TCTDridership and revenue. Fare scenarios are listed belowand compared to projectgoals in
Figure 3.
= Scenario1- Focus on Simplicity: Implement Flat Fare
- 1A:IncludingRoute 5
- 1B:NotincludingRoute 5
* Scenario2— Focus on Simplicity: Implement Streamlined Zone Fare
- 2A:Including Route 5
- 2B:Notincluding Routes
= Scenario 3 — Focus on Increasing Ridership
* Scenario 4 — Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds
— 4A:Target15%
— 4B:Target20%
= Scenario 5 — Focus on Regional Fare Integration
* Scenario 6 — Implement Low-Income Fare Program
= Scenario7— Implement Mileage-Based Dial-a-Ride Fare

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 6

VA



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINALREPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Fare ScenariosEvaluated

Figure 3

Simplify
and
streamline
fare
structure

ProposedFare Scenarios

Coordination/
seamless
integration
with other
providers

Project Goals

Increase
ridership
while
balancing
fare
revenue

Establish
performance
metrics,
including
average
subsidy per
trip and
farebox
recovery

Evaluate
alternatives
to in-county

zonefare

Focus on Simplicity: Implement Flat
Fare

v

1 = Emphasize simplicity by implementing
a flatfare across service types
=_Align discount policies

v

Focus on Simplicity: Implement
Streamlined Zone Fare

2 = Maintain zone fares but simplify where
possible

= Align discount policies

Focus on Increasing Ridership

3 = Modify fare structure toincrease
ridership

Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds

4 | = Modifyfare structure toincrease
farebox recovery and achieve 15%
and 20% thresholds

Focus on Regional Fare Integration

= Align TCTD fares with pricing and

3 discount practices at other NW
Connector (NWOTA) agencies, to the
extent feasible

Implement Low-Income Fare Program

6 = |mplement low-income fare programat
200% of the federal poverty level

ImplementMileage-Based Dial-a-Ride
Fare

= Implement Dial-a-Ride fare option
based ontrip distance

Final Recommended Scenario

= [lat fare within Tillamook County

e Align TCTD fares with pricing and
discount practices at other NWOTA
agencies, to the extent feasible

= |mplement low-income fare programat
200% of the federal poverty level, after
developing eligibility process

= |mplement Dial-a-Ride farebased on
trip distance

FINAL

Nelson\Nygaard Consutting Associates inc. | 7

\5



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Fare Scenario Results Summary

The relativeridershipand revenue changes for each scenario for are shownin Figure4 and Figure 5. The
fare structure andresulting ridership and revenue impacts foreach scenario aredescribed in further
detail in the remainder of thissection. The final recommended scenario is also shown for comparison.

Figure4 Fare Scenario Ridership andRevenue Change

Changein | Ridership | Changein | Revenue %

Fare Scenario Ridership | % Change | Revenue | Change
1A. Focus on Simplicity: Implement Flat Fare
(indluding Route 5) 7,000 5.0% -$117,000 -42.5%
1B. Focus on Simplicity: Implement Flat Fare (not 0
including Route 5) 4,000 3.3% -$41,000 -14.8%
2A. Focus on Simplicity: Implement Streamlined Zone
Fare (including Route 5) 5000 24% -$73,000 26.7%
2B. Focus on Simplicity: Implement Streamlined Zone
Fare (notincluding Route 5) by 055 -$11,000 “40%
3. Focuson Increasing Ridership 11,000 8.1% -$47,000 -17.3%
4A. Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds-15% -12,000 -9.0% $35,000 12.7%
4B. Achieve FareboxRecovery Thresholds - 20% -38,000 -28.6% $94,000 34.3%
5. Focus on Regional Fare Integration 7,000 51% 4,000 1.4%
6. Implement Low-Income Fare Program 3,000 2.1% -$19,000 -7.0%
7. Implement Mileage-BasedDial-a-Ride Fare 0 0.0% $6,000 2.1%
FINAL RECOMMENDED SCENARIO 2,000 1.6% -99% -$28,000

Figure$5 Fare Scenario RidershipandRevenue Change (Chart)

$150,000
~ Scenario 4¢
$100,000
~ Scenarno 4b
Q
g $50,000
2 @ - Scenario 4a "2 Scenario 7 Scenaro 5
2 g -
[}
o |
2 Scenario 2b 1 ' ~ Scenario 6
o FINAL
& -$50,000 Scenatio 1b - “_ Scenario 3
: & Scenario 2a
-$100,000 I
. @
- Scenano 1a
-$150,000
-50,000 -40,000 -30,000 -20,000 -10,000 0 10,000 20,000

Ridership Change

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 8



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tilamook County Transportation District

Scenario 1A: Focus on Simplicity = Implement Flat Fare (including Route 5)

The goal of the flat fare scenario is to provide a simplified fare structure in which thesameflatratefare is
chargedregardless of service type. This scenario includes Route 5 as partof thatassumption. While a flat
fare would simplify the customer experience and improve a regional approach to transit, the steep
financial impacts maybe prohibitive for this approach. Therevision of the TCTD fare structure is
estimated to resultin a 7,000 (5.0%)ridership gain and $117,000 (-42.5%) revenueloss. The fare
structureis providedin Figure 6.

Figure 6 Scenario 1A Fare Structure

Cash ~ Trip within one zone $1.50 $0.75

Cash — Trip across two zones $1.50 $0.75

Deviated

-fixed Cash - Trip across three zones $1.50 $0.75
routes

Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1.50 $0.75
Monthly Pass $40 $30

Cash — Trip withinone zone $1.50 $0.75

Cash - Trip across two zones $1.50 $0.75

W IET (W8 Cash — Trip across three zones $1.50 $0.75

PDX one-way $1.50 $0.75

PDX round-trip $3 $1.50

Cash one zone $4 $2

Cash multi-zone $4 $2

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 9



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportafion District

Scenario 1B: Focus on Simplicity — Implement Flat Fare (not including Route 5)

The goal of the flat fare scenario is to provide a simplified fare structure in which the same flatratefare is
chargedregardless of service type. This scenario excludes Route 5 as part of that assumption, whichhas a
significantimpact on revenue compared with Scenario 1A. The revisionof the TCTD fare structure is
estimated toresultina 4,000 (3.3%) ridershipgainand $41,000(-14.8%) revenueloss. The fare structure
is providedin Figure7.

Figure7 Scenario 1B Fare Structure
Cash — Trip within one zone $1.50 $0.75
Cash — Trip across two zones $1.50 $0.75
Deviated
-fixed Cash — Trip across three zones $1.50 $0.75
routes
Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1.50 $0.75
Monthly Pass $40 $30
Cash — Trip within one zone $1.50 $0.75
Cash — Trip across two zones $1.50 $0.75
(18 Cash — Trip across three zones $1.50 $0.75
PDX one-way $15 $7.50
PDX round-trip $20 $10
Cash one zone $4 $2
Cash multi-zone $4 $2

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 10

\%



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINALREPORT
Tilamook County Transportation District

Scenario 2A: Focus on Simplicity = Implement Streamlined Zone Fare (including Route

5)

A streamlined zone fare would simplify the regional fare structure, while allowing some services to
continue charging a higherratethan local service. Whilea streamlined zone fare would simplify the
customer experience and improvea regional approach to transit, the steep financial impacts may be
prohibitive forthisapproach. The revision of the TCTD fare structureis estimated toresultin a 3,000
(2.4%) ridership gainand $73,000(-26.7%) revenue loss. The fare structureis provided in Figure 8.

Figure8 Scenario 2A Fare Structfure

Cash — Trip within one zone
Cash — Trip across two zones
Deviated

-fixed Cash — Trip across three zones
routes

Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass
Monthly Pass

Cash — Trip within one zone
Cash - Trip across two zones
141V Cash — Trip across three zones
PDX one-way

PDX round-trip

Cash one zone

Cash multi-zone

NelsoniNygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 11

$1.50 $0.75
$1.50 $0.75
$4 52
$1.50 $0.75
$40 $30
$1.50 $0.75
$4 $2
$4 $2
$4 $2
54 $2
$4 $2
$12.50 $12.50

\A



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tilarmook County Transportaion District

Scenario 2B: Focus on Simplicity = Implement Streamlined Zone Fare (not including
Route 5)

Astreamlined zone fare would simplify the regionalfare structure, while allowing some services to
continue charging a higherrate than local service. Thisscenario excludes Route 5 as part of that
assumption, whichhasa significantimpact on revenue compared with Scenario 2A. The revision of the
TCTD fare structureis estimated to resultin a 1,000 (0.9%) ridershipgain and $11,000 (-4.0%) revenue
loss. The fare structure is provided in Figure g.

Figure9 Scenario 2B Fare Structure
Cash —Trip withinone zone $1.50 $0.75
Cash —Trip across two zones $1.50 $0.75
Deviated
-fixed Cash — Trip across three zones $4 $2
routes :
Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1.50 $0.75
Monthly Pass $40 $30
Cash - Trip withinone zone $1.50 $0.75
Cash —Trip across two zones $4 $2
LGV Cash — Trip across three zones %4 $2
PDX one-way $15 $7.50
PDX round-trip $20 $10
Cash one zone 54 $2
Cash multi-zone $12.50 $12.50

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 12

20



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillameok County Transportation District

Scenario 3: Focus on Increasing Ridership

This scenariotakesan iterative approach to adjusting fares until pricesaresuchthatridershipis
maximized and nolonger increases with subsequent decreases in fare price. This scenario also assumes
that fareswould not be reduced so low asto provide fare free service and that pass multipliers must
remain withinpeer agency bestpractices. Therevision of the TCTDfare structure is estimated to result in
an11,000 (8.1%) ridership gainand $47,000(-17.3%) revenue loss. The fare structureis providedin
Figure 10.

Figure 10 Scenario 3 Fare Structure

Cash — Trip within one zone $1 $0.50
Cash —~ Trip across two zones $2.50 $1.25
Deviated
-fixed Cash — Trip across three zones $4 $2
routes
Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1 $0.50
Monthly Pass $40 $20
Cash — Trip within one zone $1 $0.50
Cash —Trip across two zones $2 $1
G Cash — Trip across three zones %4 $2
PDX one-way $10 $5
PDX round-trip $15 $7.50
Cash one zone %4 $2
Cash multi-zone $12.50 $12.50

Nelsom\Nygaard Consulting Associates inc. | 13



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Titamook County Transportaticn District

Scenario 4A: Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds = 15%

Similarto Scenario3, thisscenario takes an iterative approach to adjusting faresand pass multipliers
until prices are such that farebox recoveryrate is maximized and no longer increases with subsequent
increasesin fare price. The maximized fare for this scenario was designed to achieve 15% farebox
recovery. The revision of the TCTD fare structureis estimated to resultin a 12,000 (-9.0%) ridershiploss
and $35,000(12.7%) revenue gain. The fare structure is provided in Figure 11.

Figure 11 Scenario 4A Fare Structure

Cash — Trip within one zone $2 31
Cash — Trip across two zones $3.50 $1.75
Deviated
-fixed Cash — Trip across three zones $5 $2.50
routes
Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $2 $1
- Monthly Pass $55 $40
Cash — Trip within one zone $2.50 $1.25
Cash —Trip across two zones $4 $2
G178 Cash — Trip across three zones 57 $3.50
PDX one-way $15 $7.50
PDX round-trip $30 $15
Cash one zone $5 $2.50
Cash multi-zone $12.50 $12.50

Nelson\Nygaard Consuiting Associates inc. | 14



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Scenario 4B: Achieve Farebox Recovery Thresholds = 20%

Similarto Scenario3, thisscenario takes an iterative approach to adjusting fares and pass multipliers
until prices are such that fareboxrecovery rateis maximized and no longer increases with subsequent
increasesin fare price. The maximized fare for this scenario was designed to achieve 20% farebox
recovery. The revision of the TCTD fare structure is estimated to resultin a 38,000(-28.6%)ridership
loss and $94,000 (34.3%) revenue gain. The fare structure is provided in Figure12.

Figure 12 Scenario 4B Fare Structure

Cash — Trip withinone zone $2.50 $1.25
Cash — Trip across two zones $5 $2.50
Deviated
-fixed Cash — Trip across three zones %8 $4
routes
Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $3.50 $1.75
Monthly Pass $80 $60
Cash — Trip withinone zone $2.50 $1.25
Cash — Trip across two zones $5 $2.50
LIGT(H1V Cash — Trip across three zones $8 $4
PDX one-way $25 $12.50
PDX round-trip $40 $20
Cash one zone $10 $5
Cash multi-zone $12.50 $12.50

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associatesinc. | 15

25



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINALREPCORT
Tillamook County Transportafion District

Scenario 5: Focus on Regional Fare Integration

This scenarioevaluated the ridership and revenue impacts of simplifying the regional fare structureby

modifying TCTD faresto more closelyalign with Sunset Empire Transportation District’s fare structure.

Nearly allfare pricing was modified. The revision of the TCTD fare structureis estimated to resultin a

7,000 (5.1%) ridershipgainand $4,000 (1.4%) revenue gain. The fare structure is providedin Figure 13.

Figure 13 Scenario 5Fare Structure

Cash - Trip within one zone $1 $0.50

Cash — Trip across two zones 31 $0.50

Deviated
-fixed Cash - Trip across three zones $5 $2.50
routes

Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1 $0.50

Monthly Pass $30 $20

Cash — Trip within one zone $1 $0.50

Cash - Trip across two zones $5 $2.50

(111138 Cash — Trip across three zones $8 $4

PDX one-way $15 $7.50

PDX round-trip $30 $15

Cash one zone 38 $4

Cash multi-zone $12 $12

Nelson'Nygaard Consulting AssociatesInc. | 16

24



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamock County Transportation District

Scenario 6: Implement Low-Income Fare Program

This scenarioevaluated the ridership and re venue impacts of implementing a low-income fare programin
the region. Offeringa low-income fare category is another method for making transita more affordable
transportationoption. This scenario analyzes theimpactsof offeringa halffarediscount to eligible adults
makingup to 200%of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL). This scenario assumes that 35% ofeligibleriders
would actuallyusethelow-income fare program—the observed usage ratefor the ORCA Liftlow-income
fare programin Seattle, WA. Offering a low-income discount programwith a threshold at200% FPLis
the current industry standard (although 150% FPLis also beingused). The revision of the TCTD fare
structureis estimatedtoresultin a 3,000 (2.1%)ridership gain and $19,000 (-7.0%) revenue loss. The
fare structureis providedin Figure14.

Figure 14 Scenario 6 Fare Structure

Low Income

Cash — Trip within one zone $1.50 $0.75
Cash — Trip across two zones $3 $1.50
Deviated
-fixed Cash — Trip across three zones $4.50 $2.25
routes
Tillamook Town Loop Daily Pass $1.50 $0.75
Monthly Pass $40 $30
+ Cash —Trip withinone zone $1.50 $0.75
Cash — Trip across two zones $3 $1.50
Intercity "Cash- Trip across three zones $6 53
PDX one-way $15 $7.50
PDX round-trip $20 $10
Cash one zone $4 $2
Cash multi-zone $12.5 $12.5

NelsoniNygaard Consuiting Associates inc. | 17



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Scenario 7: Implement Mileage-Based Dial-a-Ride Fare

This scenarioevaluated the potential ridership and revenue impacts for implementing a mileage-based
fare for Dial-a-Ride service. This scenario would eliminate the existing Dial-a-Ride zones and offera
combinedfixed-fare with a variable fare based on distance. Thisscenario takes an iterative approach to
adjusting fares. Theanalyzed scenario assumes a fare of $4 for the first five miles of travel, with $1 per
mile charged after that. This scenario does not have any changesassociated with deviated fixed-route or
intercity service. The revision of the TCTD fare structureis estimated to result in no net average changeto
ridership (althoughsome changescould not be quantified through this analysis, given that Dial-A-Ride
trips will be available countywide) anda $6,000(2.1%) revenue gain. Existingriders makingtrips ofup to
five miles would notseea changein fares, while the relatively small number of riders makingtrips longer
than five miles would see an additional cost,andthe higher fare could result in fewer trips. However, a
mileage-based fare would enable trips across fare zones, which today are available for medical
appointments only, fora $12.50 fare. Many suchtrips would cost less with a mileage-based fare.

The fare structureis providedin Figure15.

Figure15 Scenario 7 Fare Structure

Deviated-fixed
routes

No change in current fare structure

Cash one zone

No change in current fare structure

$4 the first 5 miles, $2 the first 5 miles,
After $1 additional per mile After $0.50 additional per mile

Dial-a-ride

Cash multi-zone

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting AssociatesInc. | 18

Lo



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINALREPORT
Tillamook County Transpottation District

PUBLIC AND STAKEHOLDER OUTREACH: INITIAL FARE PROPOSAL

(WINTER 2021)

A public survey was conducted between
January11-31,2021to obtain initial input on
the fare proposal. There were 77 responses.
The surveywaspublicized with flyers on
buses, through TCTD’s stakeholder e-mail
list, on TCTD’s Facebookpage (at right),and
through push notifications on the real-time
information Transitapp. 866 userssawa
banneron their mobile device and 4% tapped
onthe bannerfrom the app’shome screen.
Slightly fewer than 300 app users received
notificationsand 64 users tapped on the
notificationlinking themto thesurvey. Some
users may havetakenthesurveyon a
differentdevice.

On March 2, 2021 a follow up focus group
meeting was held with stakeholdersto solicit
their feedback, particularly on proposed
changeswhere supportin the publicsurvey
was mixed ornot in favorofthe original
proposal. Figure 23 and Figure 24 summarize
the existing fare or policy, the proposedfare
or policy change (asrevised based on survey
and/orfocus groupinput), and keychanges
that were made in response to theinput.

/™, The WAVE
January 20 Q@

Would you like a say in how much you pay to ride The Wave? Please
fill out this survey to help us make sure your needs are met as a rider.
All who complete and submit the survey will be entered to win a $50
Gift Card! g=

Find Survey Here: https://bit.ly/3910cwD

O 2 1 Comment 16 Shares

In-app banner Jan 26 Push notification Jan 26
1:567 w:®wm  The Wave wants to simplify fares e

What do you think? Fill out their survey and
you could win a $50 gift card. Get ready to

do the Wave 1

Share your leadbac

@

Social meda post (top) and real-time Transit app notification (bottom)

publicizing the fare study survey in January 2021
Source: hitps fMwww facebook com/Tillamookbus/

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associatesinc. | 19



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tilamook County Transportation District

Input on Initial Fare Proposal
Key highlightsinclude:

= 86% ofpeople whoresponded to the surveylivein Tillamook County; 55% livein Central County
(including 44% wholivein Tillamook), 21% in North County,and 10%in South County. (See
Figure 16).

Figure 16 Survey RespondentLocations

| # | Total%
Clatsop County Seaside 97138 1 1%
North Tillamook County | Manzanita 97130 1 1%
Rockaway Beach 97136 7 10%
Nehalem 97131 2 3% 21%
Wheeler 97147 2 3%
Garibaldi 97118 3 4%
Central Tillamook County | Bay City 97107 3 4%
Tillamook 97141 31 44%
55%
Netarts 97143 4 6%
Netarts 97141 1 1%
South Tillamook County | Neskowin 97149 1 1%
Hebo 97122 2 3% 10%
Cloverdale 97112 4 6%
Grand Ronde 1 1%
Yamhill County 1 1%
Marion County 1 1%
Multnomah County 2 3%
Clackamas County 1 1%
Washington County 3 4%

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates inc. | 20

2%



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINALREPORT
Tillamook County Transpartation District

= Peoplewhoresponded to the survey ride a broad representation of The Wave fixed-routes (see
Figure 17), and Dial-A-Ride users were represented across the three Dial-A-Ridefare zones.

Figure 17 Routes Used bySurveyRespondents

Route 3: Tillamook-Manzanita-Cannon Beach : 23

N=69 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

Which of The Wave's fixed-route transit services do
you use? (Check all that apply)

Route 70X: Grand Ronde - Salem #

Route 60X: Lincoln City - Salem F 8
|
Route 5: Tillamook-Portiand (Coastliner) '— 36
15

Route 4: Tillamook-Lincoln City

Route 2: Tillamook-Oceanside-Netarts

Route 1: Tillamook Town Loop 38

| | | | | |

= 92% of people whoresponded tothe survey feel The Wave service is affordable.

» The following proposalsreceived strong supportin thesurvey:

80% supported makingreduced fares available tolowerincome personsand
disabled veterans, comparedto 11% did not supportthechange. Reduced faresforadult
passengers are currently available forseniors (60+) and persons with disabilities (except
Route 5). Medicaid (Oregon Health Plan) card holders would be eligible under the proposal. A
consideration discussed with stakeholdersis that the Oregon Statewide Transportation
Improvement Fund (STIF) includes improving service to low-income individuals (earning
less than 200%ofthe federal poverty level) as one ofits criteria; TCTD could use fundsfrom
this program to help offsetthe costs of reducing fares forlow-income individuals.

67% supported lowering monthly pass costs from $40to $30, and thereduced month
pass from $30 to $20, compared to 14% whodid not support the change.

63% supported simplifyingin-county faresby charginga $1single-ride flat fare
(nofare zones), compared to 17% who did not support the change

59% supported charging an additional $1fare for deviationson Routes 1, 2, 3,
and 4 (e.g., with the proposed flatfare, a single trip with a deviation would cost
$2 with aregular fare or $1.50 with a reduced fare), comparedto 23% who did not
supportthechange.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 21

24



FAREPOLICY ANMALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Figure18  SurveyResults for Proposal to Charge $1 for a Deviation

Do you support charging an additional $1 for & deviation on Routes 1, 2, 3, &4?
70%

B0%

50% -

40%

30‘3‘-;-

Not Sure

Yes

- 60% supportedmaking faresfreefor children (age 0-12) and youth (age 13-18)
on in-county service, compared to 17% who did notsupport the change. Based on input
from stakeholders (aswell as best practices from otherareas), drivers may request middle
school and high school student ID for age verification; an alternative form ofidentification
could be provided to youth who are homeschooled or attend alternative schoolsthat do not
providea student ID. A consideration discussed with stakeholders is thatthe Oregon STIF
program includesimprovingservice to students in grades 9-12 as one ofits criteria; TCTD
could use funds from this program to help offsetthe costs of providing free rides foryouth.

~ 58%supported moving to a mileage-based Dial-A-Ride fare and eliminating Dial-A-
Ridefarezones, comparedto21% whodid not support the change. The base fare would not
change, butwould only cover the first five miles. There would be an additional 50 cent charge
permile afterthefirst fivemiles. TCTD has capabilitiesto let passengers find out the fare
when theyreservetheirtrip, by calling the dispatch center or using mobile or self-service
online orsmartphone applications.

Figure19  Survey Results for Proposal to Charge a Mileage-Based DAR Fare and Eliminate Fare Zones

Support for eliminating Dial-A-Ride fare zones and charging $0.50 per
additional mile, after the first five miles?

0%

BO%

40% -

0% +

20% +

10% - ! —

0% -
Not Sure

- Forout-of-county trips on Routes 60X and 70X (where Grand Ronde and/or Siletztribal
members ride free, because the tribes helpfund the service):

o 70% supported offeringa $5 flat fare, with a $2.50reduced fare.
o 64% supported offeringa 10-trip pass for $45, with a $22.50 reduced fare.
=  Proposalswith more mixed supportincluded:

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 22



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

- Aslight majority (52%) of peopleresponding to the survey supported induding
out-of-countytripsto Cannon Beach (Route 3) and Lincoln City (Route 4) in the
flatfare (and youth would alsobe able to ride to theselocations for free), while
48% did not support the change (a “Not Sure” option was not provideforthis question).
However, focusgroup participantsstronglysupported the proposal, since TCTD is part of the
NW Connector Alliance thatincludes Clatsopand Lincoln Countiesand it wouldkeep fares
simplerforridersandforbus drivers.

The proposalthatreceived theleast support was eliminating the round-tripfare on
Route 5 (Tillamook-Portland). As shown in Figure 20, only 27% supported the proposal while
50% did not support it. The round trip fare costs $20 compared to a $15 one-wayticket. The
initial proposal was to offera 10-ride passfor $13.50 eachway.

~ Peoplewith lowerincomeswere only slightlylesslikely to support the change; among people
who did not support the change, 50% earnless than $25,000 per year, while among people
who supported the change 40% earnless than $25,000peryear.

- Indiscussing the change with stakeholders, one concern was the potential revenue impact
associated with keeping a steeply discounted round trip fare. In addition, fareson other
services between the Oregon coast and Portland were reviewed and are similar to the current
fare. In comparison to the 75-miletrip from Tillamook to Portland:

o Sunset Empire Transit District charges $15 forthe 95-mile Astoria to Portland trip on the
Lower Columbia Connector route; Northwest Point charges $15 to $18 for this trip (via
US 26).

o BentonCountycharges $10 fora shorter 60-mile Coastto Valley Albany-Newport service
($7 discounted) but is planning to lowerthe fare to $5.

— Therevised proposal reflected in the recommendationis to eliminate theround trip fare, but
reduce costof proposed 10-trip discount pass to $120($12 eachway).

— Inaddition, thediscount policiesfor Route 5 were clarified : Children (age 0-12) ride free with
an adult, youth (age 13-18) pay half-fare. No otherfare discountsare offered.

Figure 20 Survey Results for Route5 Preliminary Fare Proposal

Do you support the proposed changes to Route 5 fares?
60%
50%
50%
40%
30% .- A ———— nYeS
uNo

20% - ——  mNotSure
10% - ————— H——

0% + i —y —

Eliminate the round-trip fare, but Offer a 10-ride pass for $135, with

N=54 offer a 10-ride pass. a $67.50 reduced fare.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Assaciates Inc. | 23

2\



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT

Tillamook County Transportation District

Other Survey Highlights

» Interestinmobileticketing: Most respondentsexpressed interestin mobileticketingto pay
for bus fares. Allbutthree respondents had internetaccess on either their smartphone or at
home.This is not a surprising result giventhat the survey wascompleted online, but waynot be
representative. However, thereis a trend towards increasing adoption of high-speed internet
access athome and smartphone in ruralareas.: A surprisingresultswasthat 35% of people
respondingtothe surveydid not havea creditcard; therewas no clear correlationwith income or
age. Followup surveysshould ask about debit cards (which could also support mobile ticketing).

Figure 21 Survey Results: Interestin Mobile Ticketing

90%
80%

0%

N=54

78%

70% -
60% -
50% -
40% -
30% 7
20% -

10% -

67%

4%

| have a smartphone | have a credit card 1 would be willing to

with internet access download an mobile
phone application to
pay bus fares

| have internet
access at home

= Options tomakeitmoreconvenient to payfares: Buying passes atlocalstores (e.g., Fred
Meyer, Safeway), providing a kioskwith a credit card reader at thetransit center,and support for
mobile ticketingwere the top three choices among a set of options, although a change machine at
the transitcenter was the third choice among overa quarter of people who responded. (People
were asked torankthe options.)

! https:/ /www.pewresearchorg/fact-tank/2019/05/31 /digital-gap-between-rural-and-nonrural-ame rica-persists /

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 24

YR



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Figure 22 Survey Results: Options to Make Buying Fares More Convenient

35% — — —
30% —
25%
20% - —
B
0, . SE—
8% ® Top Priority
10% - — — s Second Priority
N | H -
5% A Il .. = Third Priority
1 |
0% - — -
Buy at local Kiosk with Use a Buy online- Change
stores (such credit card mobile  sentby mail machine at
as Fred readeratthe phone Transit
Meyer)?  Tillamook application Center
Transit
N=53 Center
Staff Outreach

Input from TCTD driversand dispatchers was requested in early March 2021. Keyissues and changesto
the recommendations that were made in response to the staff input include:

Concerns aboutthe number of children that would be allowed on-board forfree, and vehicle
capacity. Modification:children were limited to two per paying adult.

A processis needed to document eligibility for a low-income reduced fare. Modification: this
recommendation is deferred to late 2021 to allow TCTD todevelop a processto verifylow-income
fare eligibility (and improve overall procedures for verifying eligibility).

The fare zones on Routes 60X and 70X are working well. Modification: the existingzone structure
hasbeenretained on theseroutes; however, a multi-trip pass is added, responding to customer
requests.

Drivers seelarge amount of cash as a security concern and prefer moving to cashless fares (e.g.,
monthly passes). Mitigation: TCTD will be implementing recommendations in the futureto
increase options for purchasing passes before boarding, will considerhowtoincorporate advance
purchases into a redesign of the customer service center, and willbestudyinghowto adopt
mobile orelectronic fare paymentin thefuture.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. { 25



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Adoption Process Outreach

Additional outreach materials were developed to communicate the proposed changesto the public prior to
formal publichearings on April 22, 2021 (first hearing) and May 20, 2021 (second hearing). Public
comments were accepted through May7,anda summarywas included in the Board Packet for the second
hearing. Images used in social media postings(i.e., Facebook) are shown below. Additional outreach
handouts thatwere posted on the TCTD website and made available on vehiclesand at the Transit Center
are includedin Appendix B.

Dial-A-Ride

Dial-a-Ride
Countywide '

& A wn finx 70 Regular one-zone Reduced one-
fare for adults zone fare

Proposed Fare

Regular fare for Reduced fare for
trips up to 5 miles trips up to 5 miles
Countywide Countywide

Per additional mile
over S miles

Fixed Route

$1 Flat Fare Children and S
Countywide Youth Ride Free

reqgul it Regular adult fare Reduced Rare
L per zone per zone

Proposed Fare

Regular fare for adults Reduced fare
Countywide Countywide

=== Additional fare for
\ deviations from the regular
route (within 3/4 mite)

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 26



34 sepaossy Bugnsuog peeBiNuosiaN

asepin; Buyded ynpe ve i Bujenes . AUo 01 ;PG BPUDY PUBIS) LM 831 3Ry XDL I IPGHL ZIBIS 0 BPUCY PUBID YiIM 58] BRY X09, 'SEION

sJapioy
sbuewp oN Pi83 {dHO) Predipapy snid sapaesipyim aidoad '(+0g) sioiuag | SaMigesip yim ajdoad '(+09) siolueg -| emyviEiQ
Adde ), uopsase} paanpa sayjo ey} paiie| {inoAyua.pyiyo puokag) siLncosp [EUONIPPE ON S)UNCoSIp |eUoippE ON ganoy
abueyron X02'X09 anoy Ayosa)
slapioy (X0 'X09 ‘G Sainoy uosdiy sanoy
abueyooN | suosiad awoou-iemol Joj sa.ej psonpai poddns %08 pied (dHO) Pealpaiy snid sepmaesip yym ajdoad ' (+09) sioiuag sangesip yum sjdoad '(+09) s1olueg Aunoa-uipue) p-1 seIN0Y | -paxi4 perenaq npy
abueyooN - - 8py-vEIQ
auej-fjey
81-9 abe tynokueipiyn -0 abe usipyuo
abueyooN aeryey (8L-61) YINoA Jeuoppe ‘aa.) G-0 8be ppyoisa X0/ 'X09 8inoy
abueyo oN YNPE LM 331 (JBPUN pUE Z|) UBIPIYD ganoy Rpousu
oApoddns A|BLOLIS SIBPIOYBNEIS "LINOA 0} a1e) SUCHEIABP 8PN}OUI J0U S0P |UOJJEAYLIAA JO) pajsanbay gy )Ry
siaployaxess yum Bunsuco Jaye | soy Bupus)xainoge ainsun aidoad aW0s 'sjuawiLoo | UBPMISIC0IS YBIY/BIPRIL 120nIaS AUN0D-UIUD 94 (8L-€ 1) LINOA 1 1-6 abe usupiyo 1o p-g abe uauppye | (0. X09 ‘s saInoy uosdy sanoy
aiej1ey u AuD Ujoour] PUB Yoeag LoUUBD PaUEIY | U0 paseq Aunco-U s3se) yinok/piug 824 Loddns %09 JINPE Yym 8314 (19pun pue z| ) UsIpiug [evoiippe ‘221 y-0 9B plyoisAd | Alnoo-ipue) p-| sanoy | -paxi4 palenaq | WiNOALLPIYD

oL sem esodoid Moy nduj sapjoysyeis/pue Aaning ajignd (posodoid sijeym ¢AEPO) S1 N MOH adjnag _ adf) aseq

ynd uj J9p|OYaYEIS PUBIYONG §0 AiBurung 'sajol od junoasig pasodoidpue Bunsixy  pzaanbiy

abueyo oN - - 0€$/ 528 - 09/ 52% ssedAeQ-//g Jopauuoy sanoy v _ SSBd JOYSIA
abueyo o - pejeuruyy Augsdu 4 (eapapy - 05218 Aunoo uiyim auoZ-Hinw
oW oy sad abieyo euoppe
ajiLu [euoppe |euoippe Jad Upm sapw G o) dn aie) aseq
abueyo oN Hoddns %86 | Jedsjuso05+2% | SIU0005++43 | ‘Aunco uum paseq-abeaiy 2% ¥$ Aunoa uym suoz-s16ulg apiy-yelq
AINANYS 8UOZ UIEJSI 0} UORUIWISIaP (poonpaiggzzgpue | (seuozz)zis (seuozg) z2$
uo paseq paypow ssed apu-g|. | Jeinbes gy pasodosd) oddns 9,pg | ‘(ssuozg) 1z¢ | '(ssuozg) pss {auoz g-z)ssed spiy-0L
SI-SE SIS SUOZ Y3y ‘(jom apuoy puelis) - Waes
}I0MS9IN0L IS LD SBUDZ) SUOISSRISIP (paonpai 05 'z2§) 218} JSlaquiaw X0/ 'Wayes - Ay
Jeis pue ajel asuodsal mojuo paseg | Jey g4 pasodoid e papoddns %0/ | €5-05'1$-52°08 | 95-€5-05'L$ (eBueyp ou) seuoz ¢--| leqiniojeard | €8-05°1$-5208 93-€5-05'18$ s8uozg-g-| Ujoour] ’x09seinoy
021§ 0 §€ 1§ W0y 3s0d paanpay voddns %z¢ Auo - 0zi$ Ssed opy-04
1500 5sed du)-0} paonpaling ‘abueyd oN Buneuusys Loddns jou op %06 | pajeuun3 YIN 0z$ du} punoy pugpiog
Auo yinok 1oja.e) paonpay (Ruo yinof) 0g°L$ Si$ fepm-oup VIN 51§ fep-aup | -yoourey L :g anoy
abueyo oy 05°0$ 18 Aunop-uj SL0$ 05'1$ {su0z 8u0) Aunog- X0L'X09 ‘G 8Inoy Ayosequy
aBueyo o - 02$ ssed suoiemaq du -0l i Ao ujoauny
-)00We| | iy 8inoy
abueo oN oddns %9 0z 0 ssed Alyluoy 0es or$ ssed Aujuopy weag
abueyo oy - £ suaneinsp ou ‘ssed Aleg 5208 051$ sseqAfeqdooumo] |  uUoUURD - ElUEZUBKY
il ddns 9 d -)oowep | '¢ 8inoy
abueyo oN voddns %65 - 23 (a1e)jey) st pejenag SJBJSN - SpISUBEO0
sIapjoyayels Ay uoour] pe yoesg {yoeag ucuuey -YOOLEjj ) g 3oy s3noy
yum Buninsuoo saye asej ey u Uouue)) 01 asefjey Loddns %zg *A1p vjooury 'g-| sauoz doojumo] -paxid
A7 ujoour pue yoesg uouuey paurelsy lleJano ase} jey poddns %e9 0508 13 (84e)7€| 1) AINOY-UD G2'¢§-06'1§-5208 | Aunco-u)auoz sad g ig €-Z-} sauoz NOOWe|{ (| SN0y pajenag
dujyeis pue ‘Bpjoyaye gqnd duj As gnd aleqpaonpay ale|nq adh| asey S9JON aleqpaosnpay aleq|ng adA | osey
0paseq pajypow sem jesodosd Mo
e2AN0 [ENIU} U0 PISeq Pas|Aal) pasodoid st e EpO 0 aIno 3313

nduj Japjoyaxeig pueaijqng jo Aiewnung ‘sase 4 pasodoid pue Bunsixg gz aunbiy
PinsIg uogepodsue | A1UNoY) joou
140434 IYNH | SISATYNY ADIT0d3dVd




FAREPGLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

FARE STRUCTURE AND POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS

This chapteris the culmination of findings from the existing conditionsanalysis; peer reviewand best
practices; fare modeling; and public, stakeholder, and staff outreach to establisha set of fare policy,
pricing, and product recommendations for TCTD. The recommendationsin this section are divided into
two categories:

» FareStructure Recommendations: Recommendationsto specific fare products offered to
the ridingpublicand pricingofthose products.

= FarePolicy Recommendations: Recommendations related to internally-ad opted policies or
procedures such as fare collection.

Fare recommendations for TCTD are comprised of fare structure changesand policy recommendations.
This section provides a summary of recommendations developed as partof the fare analysis. The
recommended fare structureis providedin Figure 25. The table reflects changes made in response to
public, stakeholder, and staffinput.

Figure 25 Recommended Fare Structure

FullFare = Reduced Fare = Child/Youth Fare*

Tillamook County Routes (Deviated Fixed Routes)

Single Fare (per route)** $1.00 $0.50 Free
Day Pass** $3.00 $1.50 Free
Monthly Pass** $30.00 $20.00 Free
Single Fare with Deviation $2.00 $1.50 N/A
Deviation 10-Trip Pass $10.00 N/A N/A
Dial-A-Ride .

Single Fare up to 5 miles $4.00 $2.00 $2.00
Per additional milebeyond 5 miles $0.50 $0.50 $0.50
Intercity Route 5 (Portland Coastliner)

Single Fare $15.00 N/A $7.50
10-Trip Pass $120.00 N/A $60.00
Intercity Routes 60X/70X {Coastal Connector)

1 Zone $1.50 $0.75 $0.75
2 Zones $3.00 $1.50 $1.50
3 Zones $6.00 $3.00 $3.00
10-Trip Pass, 1-2 Zone $27 $12 $12
10-Trip Pass, 3 Zone $54 $27 $27
Special Programs |

3-Day NWOTA Visitor Pass $25.00 N/A N/A
7-Day NWOTA Visitor Pass $30.00 N/A N/A

* The first two children age 0-12 are free on Dial-A-Ride and intercity routes with a paying adult
** Additional $1 charge for aroute deviation.

Nelson\Nygaard Consuiting Associates inc. | 28

Ao



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Fare Structure Summary

. Figure26  TCTD Deviated Fixed-Route Service
Deviated Fixed-Route

= Goals:
- Simplifyfare structure
- Incentivizenewridership

— Alignslocal fare with
regional peers (SETD)
= Pricing:
- $1flat-fareforroutesi-4
(on-routetrips)
- $3dailypass (onlyon-route
trips)
— $30monthlypass(onlyon-
route trips)
= Pricing- Deviations:
- $2flat fare fordeviated trips
—  $10, 10-trip pass, additional
$1fare fordeviatedtrips
(for use witha dayor
monthly pass)

Intercity

=  Goals:

— Streamlinefare structure S
across all intercityroutes 7 q

Figure 27 TCTD Intercity Service

— Balancebetween revenue
and ridership

— Easytocommunicate to
riders

= Pricing:
- $1for trips within Tillamook
County

—  $5for trips out-of-county
(Route 60x/70x)

—  $15for trips out-of-county -
(Route 5) - 7 &

— 10-trip passavailable at
10%-20% discount

o 1tripfree for Route
60X/70X; 1-2zone and
3 zone passes

o $120for Route s

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Assoclates Inc. | 29



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tilamook County Transportation District
Dial-a-Ride
= Goals:
— Balancerevenue and ridership
~ Allow peopletotravel throughout the County on Dial-A-Ride.
—  Provide flexibility forlonger trips while keeping most shortertrips at current cost
— Trips thatare thesamelengthwill costthe same amount throughout the County.
= Mileage-based fare
- $4for all one-way tripsup to 5 miles
— Additional $0.50permile after first 5 miles

-~ Customerswillbeableto find outthe cost of their trip at the time theyreserve it. Sample
costs are shownbelow.

Figure 28 Dial-a-Ride Proposed Fare Examples (One-Way Regular Fares*)

Existing Zonets) From To TripDistance  CurrentFare Proposed Fare® Change
Sorth Coanty Manzanita Whealer 5 mites 34 4 (%

#iorth County Wheeler Rockaway 8 miles 4 §550 5%

Horth Comnty Garibaldi Nehalem Tl miles 54 §7 5%

{entral County Bay City Tillamook (e.q., Fred Meyer) 5 mites 4 54 0%
Central County Netarts Tiiamonk (e.q., Fred Meyery A miies 34 $5.5C 8%

Selth County Pacific City Cloverdale 4 miiss 5] %4 %

South County Pacific City Beaver 12 miles $4 §250 88%

#orth o Central County™  Garbaidi Tillamook (4., Fred Meyer 10 milas §12 50" §6.50 -48%
South to Centrad County™  Tiema del Mar Tillzmoaok (e.4., Fred Meyen 21 mites $1250* iz 4%

* The proposed fare includes 3 $4 base fare plus a cost of $0.50 per mile for trips over 5 miles. The basa fare would be $2 for anvone
whao is eligible for a reduced fare. *"Trips across existing fare zones are curmently available for medical appointments only.

Discount Policies

Onall services,uptotwo children age 12and under would ride free per paying adult; additional children
are chargedthereduced fare.

Deviated Fixed-Route

»  Child/Youth(0-18 years): Free on in-county service
-~ Does not extend to out-of-county intercity, deviations, or Dial-a-Ride
— Middleschool and highschool student ID will be requested for verification

= Seniors (60+), people with disabilities, Medicaid (OHP) card holders: halffare for single-ride and
10-trip passes; $10off deviated-fixed routemonthly pass cost

= Nodiscountsprovided:
— Daypass
- Visitor pass (future policy will offer discount foryouth usingvisitor pass)
— Deviations

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Assoclates Inc. | 30

2P



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINALREPORT
Tillamock County Transportation District

Intercity
= Routes
— Child/Youth: 12and underfree with anadult; 13-18 years half-fare
— Noadditional discounts provided
=  Route 60X/70X
— Child/Youth: 12 and underfree with anadult; 13-18 years half-fare

- Seniors (60+), people withdisabilities, Medicaid (OHP) card holders: half fare for single-ride
and 10-trip passes

Dial-a-Ride

= Child/Youth: 12and under free with an adult; 13-18 years half-fare
= Seniors (60+), people with disabilities, 7Medicaid (OHP) card holders: half ofbasefare
= Nodiscounton additional per milefare afterfirst 5 miles

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 31

24



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Ridership and Revenue Impacts

As discussed previously, consumption of transit—like other goodsand services—reactsto cost. Significant
researchovertime hasexamined thesensitivity of transitridership to fare increases. The anticipated
ridership and revenue impacts for TCTD are shownin Figure 29. Fare structure recommendations are
estimated toresultin an annual 2,100 (1.6%)ridership gain and $28,000 (-9.9%) revenueloss. A
breakdown by servicetypeis shown in Figure 30:

= Most ofthe ridership gain and revenueloss would occur on deviated fixed routes, based on the
flat fare and free faresfor children and youth. The estimated ridership gainis likely conservative.

= Some ridershiploss is projected on Route 5 with elimination of the round-trip fare, although the
serviceremains cost-competitive with othertransit options to the Oregon Coast.

= Asmallincreasein Dial-A-Rideridershipis projected; although fares for tripslongerthanfive
miles willincrease, the service will be opento trips countywide that have are limited today.

Figure 29 Ridership and Revenue Impacts of Recommended Fare Structure, Totaland PercentChange

-] Chaﬁge in Ridership mChangé in Revenue = Cﬁangé in -Ridership Eha_nge in Revenue
Recommended Scenario Recommended Scenario
10,000 -
5% -
2,100 1.6%
0 +—1 0% -
-5% -
-10,000 -
-10% -
.0 Qo
20000 9.9%
-15% -
-30,000 - -$28,000 -20% -

Figure 30 Ridership and Revenue Impacts of Recommended Fare Structure, by Service Type

| ®Change inRidership  ® Change in Revenue |

Deviated Fixed-Route Intercity Dial-a-Ride
10,000 -
2,400 $4.700 s $2800
0 . . s =
-600
-10,000 -
-20,000
-30,000
-40,000 - -$34,800

Neison\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 32

Ho



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Additional Analysis of Proposed Mileage-Based Dial-A-Ride Fare

TCTD has analyzed DAR trips to understand the feasibility and impacts of modifyingitsfare structure to
increase flexibilityin delivering DAR trips and enable countywide travel, irrespective of current fare
zones. Proposed changesto the Dial-A-Ride fare structure primarily affect trips paid for by individuals, as
opposed toby Medicaid or anotheragency. These “private” trips fall into the categories listed in Figure 31.
The table summarizes howthe proposed changes affect each category of trip.

Figure 31 Summary of Dial-A-Ride Fare Typesand Changes for Privately Paid Trips

Fare/Description Proposed Changes

Single Zone (travel within 1 fare | $4 (regular) or $2 (reduced), imitedtoasingle | =  Dial-A-Ride fare zones within

Zone) zone Tillamook County are eliminated

v Thebase fare of $4 (regular) or $2
{reduced}includes tripsof upto 5
miles

= Fare of 50 cents per additional mile
charge beyond first & miles

Cross-Zone (travelacross2or | $12.50 flat fare on a case-by-case basis, = Thisfare and trip purpose limitation
more fare zones) limited to medical appointments are eliminated, and the same fare

applies as for a single zone trip
Transfer No charge for a DAR trip thatis used to = Nochange

connect to/from a deviated fixed-route service

Existing Trips within Fare Zones

The chart below (Figure 32) illustratesthe length of existing privately-paid trips within each fare zone.
The blue vertical bars showthe number of trips categorized by the trip distancein miles fora two-year
period (July2018to June 2020). Mosttrips arefive miles or less. Trips longerthan five mileswould cost
an additional fare of 50 cents peradditional mile (beyond the first five) under the proposed change, as
illustrated by the orange diamondson the chart.

Figure 33 providesstatistics forall Dial-A-Ride trips made by riderswho madea privately-paid trip longer
than five miles within a single fare zone in thistwo-year period, categorized by fare zone (e.g., withinthe
north, south, and central zones).

* Amongthese314individualriders, 19% ofall their Dial-A-Ride trips were NW Rides trips
(covered by Medicaid) and 330 were transfers to TCTD fixed-route service (no charge forthe
Dial-A-Ridetrip). The remaining 78% of tripswere privately-paid.

= Oftheseprivately-paid trips, trips thatare longerthan 5 miles (about 41% of all trips) would have
cost an additional 50 cents per mile with the proposed fare (in additionto a basefare of $40r $2).
The average additional costper trip wouldbe $1.18, althoughriders in the southzone would pay
more pertrip, on average, since tripdistances are longer. For thelongest tripmadein the two-
yearperiod, 23.4 miles, the additional costwould be $9; the total farefor such a trip would be
approximately the same orless than the current $12.50 fare for cross-zone medical trips.

= TCTD’s cost to provide these tripsis an average of $22 pertrip, whichis typical for Dial-A-Ride
service. Withthe existing fare structure, fares cover11%of the cost. Withthe proposed fare
structure, the farebox recovery for these trips would increase to 17%.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates inc. | 33

SR



¢ | 'ou| sejenossy Buninsuos) pieebAN\UoSIBN

02029102 ‘Ble 6Le{00 QL0 J0 SIshEuy (20in0g
"0Z02/0£/9 01 8102/1 /2 Wouy pouad Jeak-0m) ay) vy aU0Z aley a|buIs B UM SB|IW G uey) JaBuo) duy ajeaud e epew oym siapyl o) sduj (I , :PION

%y %SL | %8L %2 %61 ssduLejo] Jo 9
%LL %bb 443 ¥8z$ 8lis | Lpl's - : L6v'0L | L66°0L | 0SE | 169 | 2L0'FL 1453 sSlejol
%Ll %2} z$ GZ'¥0Z$ L0LS | 98Sy | vEe 9 068'2 | L¥0'8 | 29} | €96} | 2LL'OL | ¥GZ | ©uoZ[enuadulyim
%6 %L 8z$ 62'86% gzes | 8z $8l 96 Bi€ L€g 0 0 1£S 0L | ®uoZunosuiLlim
%l %6 1743 95°07% Wis | 8 6'Gl 99 8827 | €iv'z | 89l 8Z. | 60€'€ | 0G | 8UOZUMON UM

AN % du (sduyp dug sdp | sduy Uo7 sduy s1opiy
Jadaley | Menossy | Jedisen | iv) wuol | Jodison auoz suoz uiyim | {pred) anbjun
jeuonippy ale4 a1ol ladjsoy | [euonIppy UM Ulyiim sdul | aeaud
A bunsixy | sbelsAy | [euolippy | abelaay ‘ajeAlid ‘9JeAlld | asjeauy

faanozey | (ejol | peewps3 | |ejol joyibua | yoyibuan
aled|ejo] wnwixe | abeiaay

S3|IjAl G e Y1 Jebu o aled a|buis e ujyym sdii ] ajeAlid
0202Z/0£/9 0381.02/1/L 'auozaie 9|buig e uiy)m sajijy aA14 ueyysabuosdu ) ajeaud Bunjel sipry oy saisieigsdu | appy-y-leid

(sepw) @aunisiq duy
€2 8L 9L Si ¥L €L TL 1L 01l 6 8 £ 4

9 < £
08 “§ E-Em AR BRR
s N )
g |
£ .
Vs . N
) N
93
L8
S -1 .

6% 2bupyy sung abnieay sdug joym
olLs

L o
O 0
00§
000"l
005"t
000’z

fiobaye)

¢gainbiy

00§'c

(0T0T/9 - 810T/£) sdu] jo 1aquinN

000'e

0Z0Z/0£/9 03 8L0Z/1/L ‘'sauozae Bunsixg uiyym sdu | spiy-y4eiqpred-Alajeaisd  zgainbiy

LIS uoseNodsuel | Aunod yoowey |
LYOdIFTYNIA | SISATVNV ADITOd 3UV

n2



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Cross-Zone Trips (Medical Appointments Only)

Figure 34 summarizes characteristics of “cross-zone” Dial-A-Ride trips (between more than one fare
zone).

= Over150 uniqueridersmade privately-paid cross-zone trips in the two-year period between July
1,2018 and June 30, 2020.

= These ridersmadenearly 4,500 trips, of which 33% were NW Rides trips (funded by Medicaid),
7% were transfersto TCTD fixed-route service (nocharge forthe Dial-A-Ridetrip),and 60% were
privately paid.

*  Among the privately-paid trips, 582 were cross-zone trips, which are currently charged $12.50
regardless oflengthandby District policy (due to limitationsof both capacity and the fare
structure) are available only for non-emergency medical trips (such asa doctorappointment).

= Collectively, these riders would have paid $1,800 dollars lessfor the privately-paid, cross-zone
trips overthetwo-year period with the new fare policy and mileage-based fare in place, or
approximately $3less on average.

Based on existing NW Ridestrips, there is latent demand for private cross-zonetrips that would be
enabled withthe newfare structure, butthe demand for new tripswas not quantified.

Figure 34 Dial-A-Ride Trip Statistics for Riders Making Private Cross-Zone Trips, 7/1/2018 to 6/30/2020

Private, Cross-Zone Trips

Private Average Existing New

{Paid) #cfTrips Length Total Total
Trips {Miles) Fare Fare

Unique Total NWRides Transfer Change

inFare

Riders  Trips Trips Trips

1,487 324

% of total trips: 33% % 60% 12%

Source Analysis of TCTD Ecolane Data, 20182020

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 35

W5



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillameok County Transportation District

Policy Recommendations

In conjunction with farestructure recommendations, it is recommended that TCTD offer more ways to
purchasefare products, streamline passenger materials, establish formal guidelinesfor fare adjustments,
and continue coordination with regional providers. These policiesare described in greater detail below.

Offer More Ways to Purchase Fare Products

Implement Mobile Ticketing and Online Ticket Sales

Mobile ticketing is an emerging technology option thatis rapidly
beingadopted by transitagencies of all sizes. Mobile ticketing can
make the experience of boarding and paying fortransitseamless
and can lowerthebarrier of entry fornewtransit users. Start-up
mobile ticketing companies such as Token Transit offer a product
that can bereadyto launch within weeks. Select mobile ticketing
benefitsand drawbacks are provided in Figure 35.

. B e g o geg ] ] me—mm  City Transit
The simplest form of mobile ticketing is to allowriders to usetheir 2wl Anbtown, USA

phone asa “flash pass,” an animated ticket thatis visually validated
by the busoperator when theyboard thebus. This strategy doesnot
require any additionalhardwaretobeinstalledandcan be

implemented with fewother hurdles. The primary drawback is that

this method requires additional attention of the operatorto validate o Tcfess Grtnond Bore | (GTOT

fare media. It is recommended that TCTD align with regional

practicesfor vendor selection when implementing mobile ticketing. @ crredcedrae $20”
1 veek Februasy 2016

Additionally, online ticketsales—potentially available through the

NW Connector website—would provide anadditional avenue for @ By Fare Products

customers to purchasefare products. Thisoptionshouldbe

. s o a o . . B ther oduct with jus!
consideredforimplementation, along with additional innovative s e

policies suchas fare capping to better serve low-income transit
system customers.

Figure 35 Mobile Ticketing Benefits and Drawbacks

Fare Media Benefits Drawbacks
+ Customer convenience » Some customers do not own a smartphone
» Operational savings » Requires bank account or prepaid gift card
* Reduce delay in fare payment + Software development can be expensive
» Lower farebox maintenance costs » Requires WiFi or data plan to activate
Mobile Ticketing | < Various options for validation
* Reloadable
» Fare products available on phone
« Can be a low-cost option
= Allows for expanded options like mobile ticketing

Pursue Expanded Sales Network

There is an opportunity to formalize and expand third-party retail sales of passes by establishing pass
sales agreements. It is alsorecommended thatall pass types be made available in all locations. Improving
availability of passesimproves the rider experience, raises visibility of the service, and further facilitates
regionalintegration. An improved passdistribution sales networks could incdludelocationssuch as the
following:

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 36



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Titlamook County Transportation District

» Transit agency customerservice

= Government buildings

= Social services

= Local retail outlets, includinggrocery stores

Streamline Passenger Materials

TCTD’s streamlined fare structure facilitates development of revised passenger materials that are more
simple and easy-to-understand. The agency should pursue creation of these materialsin conjunctionwith
fare structureandpolicy implementation to better communicate agency practices to riders. Additionally,
there is potential opportunity to better market visitor pass for passengers using transitalong the coast; 3
and 7-Day Visitor passes have low usage compared to Route 5 ridership. TCTD should consider
opportunities to better market fare products.

Establish Formal Guidelines for Fare Adjustments

Severalfactors need to be considered whenraising fares, includinghow fares are perceived by the transit-
riding public, whethertheyare in line with peer agencies, what is the appropriate ratiobetween passenger
fares and operating costs(farebox recoveryratio). The District already monitors thisratio for each of its
services,and the appropriate ratios may varyforeach servicebased on who is served, the relative cost and
subsidy foreachservice, and the District’s policy objectives. The fare structure recommendations
developed through thisstudyinclude fare reductions for TCTD’s deviated fixed-routes, which are
generally the District’s most cost-effective services; modifications to eliminate anintercity fare product
that wassteeply discounted and help maintain the historical farebox recovery ratio forthe service;and
modifying the Dial-A-Ride fare policies to allow the service to operate countywide with a fare thatis
proportionate to distance {(and cost).

In the future, the Districtshould consider developinga transparent fareincrease policy thatenables
regularfareincreasestostay in line withinflation and other revenue related trends.

The following guidelines are provided forthe District’s consideration:

* Onatleastanannual basis, the average fare, subsidy per passenger, and farebox recoveryratio
should bereviewed when developing the District’s annual operatingbudget. Ifall threeratiosare
decliningand coststo operate theservice areincreasing, consider a fare adjustment.

= Thelocal consumerpriceindex should be monitored; ifincreasesare greaterthan 5% in any given
year, considerincreasingfarestokeep pace withinflation.

= Monitorandtrack useofall passesandifthere is a significant drop in sales withany fare product,
considera fare adjustment or other modification for that product. Similar to underperforming
routes, underperforming fare productsshould be evaluated for adjustments or elimination.

= Forall future fareincreases, passproduct pricesshould be rounded to the nearest dollar. Single-
ride pricesand/or day pass products should be rounded to the nearest quarter.

»  Across-the-board fare increases are simple and transparent but will often create disproportionate
impacts. Thesetypes of fare increases should be avoided unless supported by evidence that the
strategy meets specificgoals atthetime of evaluation.

= Servicesthatoffer a competitive timeor comfortadvantage over vehicle ortransit alternatives
shouldbepriced at a higherlevelto differentiate the product.

These guidelinesassumethat service levels remain constant. Fare increases paired with service level
increasesmay be warranted assumingsupport exists forboth. Fareincreases paired with servicecuts
shouldbeavoided when possible.

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 37

U5



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tilamook County Transportafion District

Continue Coordination with Regional Providers

The revised TCTD farestructure will enhance regional coordination by more closely aligning with peer
agency practices. TCTD should continue to coord inate withregionaltransit providers, induding Sunset
Empire Transit District, Benton Area Transit, Columbia County Rider, and Lincoln County Transitto
ensureregional alignment of fare policies.

NEXT STEPS

The TCTD Board was provided with briefings on thestudyin October 2020 and March 2021. Thefirst
publichearingwasconductedon April 22, 2021. A second public hearing will be held on May 20, 2021. A
summary of publiccomments received through May 2 will be presented at the May 20 hearing,

Next steps for the projectinclude the following:
= Finalizefarestructure and policy proposal, if required, following the May 20, 2021 board
meeting.
= Ifthe newfare ordinanceis adopted at the May 20, 2021 meeting:

— The TCTD Board will also be asked to adopt updated policies for demand-responsiveservices
(Dial-A-Ride and deviations on deviated-fixed routes) at its next meeting (June 2021).

— TCTDplans toimplementthenewfare structureon July1,2021.

- TCTDplans todevelopaneligibility process for low-income individuals (toallowthemto pay
areducedfare) in thesecondhalf of 2021.

NelsoniNygaard Consulting Associates Inc. | 38

Hl



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Titamook County Transportation District

APPENDIX A

Existing Conditions Findings

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates inc

1]



Insert Here

FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc

R



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tilamock County Transportation District

APPENDIX B

Adoption Process Outreach Handouts

NelsoniNygaard Consulting Associates Inc



FAREPOLICY ANALYSIS | FINAL REPORT
Tillamook County Transportation District

Replace Page with Outreach Handouts

Nelson\Nygaard Consulting Associates Inc

o0



Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance
From 4/1/2021 Through 4/30/2021

Account Code Account Title Debit Balance Credit Balance
1001 General Checking Account 880,815.65 -

1006 Payroll Checking 5 23,384.74

1009 NW RIDES ACCOUNT 270,062.67 -

1011 Prop. Mgmt. Checking . 31,808.70 -

1020 LGIP - General Account 1,254,318.56 ©

1030 LGIP - Capital Reserve 943,601.59 *

1040 Petty Cash 200.00

Report Total 3,404,191.91 0.00

Report Difference

Date: 5/4/21 03:28:18 PM

3,404,191.91 /

N
ﬂb\i,’,’v‘ 2

MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH

Page: 1



| :93eq aoueLIEA %9 198png (LLA/M Hoday qOH AYIuo INd 8T:0€:%0 1T/C1/S e
%Lb8Y (6€°5LT°6) 00°000°81 19%7L°8 LYTFS TTH86 0l6¥ swoouy dx [euonerad() asea]
%8L 18 (00°005°¢) 00°000°€T 00°005°61 0000S°1 007000°C 006% awodU] 5L
%00°0 (00°000°1) 0070001 000 £€°€8 000 0TSy oWOoU[ SUISILIOADPY
%ZE'8¢€ (L €¥0°00) 00°00$°Z¢ £5°95H°C1 £E80L°C LO'Z80°T 015¥ AWOOU] 1SAIAU]
%0070 (00°000°01) 00°000°01 000 £LEes 000 01p¥ awoot| - SIOSSY JO 2[eS
%ET°L6S 68'958°4C 00°000°S 68°968°6C L99T 0070 00t SUI0DU| SNOSUE[[I0SIIA
%000 (00°00¢°7) 00°005°C 000 £€'80¢ 000 00¢Y suonelad() sng [e1oads
%¥F0'9¢ (00°6££C17) 00°000°TEE 00199611 000 000 Syey 0L€S - siueID
%€9'8€ (00906°C11) 00000481 00'%60°1L 000 00°0 ovey M 11€¢ - swein
%00°001 000 00°00L°L9 00'00L°L9 000 0052691 (1[¥47 ALS - sueln
%TH 96 (007005 D) 00000 00°005°0% 0070 00°000°6 STy YIIRIA "JU0D) Iaukied VIOMN
2000 8£°887°L9 000 888719 000 000 12ey AIAQD - SiuelD
%t €S 00°660°11T 00°000°S6€ 00°660°909 00°0 000 0Zey 11€5 VLA - sjuein
%0070 (00°000°160°1) 00°000°160°1 000 00°0SL°TLT 00°0 o1Th sjuern) [ejde))
%£0°C1 (00°129°60¢) 00°000°TSE 00'6LET 000 000 LEIY Areuonmsig J1LS
%81°8C (00°TTE81T) 00°00070€ 00°8L9°¢8 000 000 9¢1y Apunuruodso] J11S
%I0°LL 0o szr11n) 00 12L b8P 00°96Z°€LE 00°0 00°LELTOL  SEIY e[nuLo,f AILS
%801 019L1°L 00°000°¢8 01'9L1°T6 £€°€80°L 08°699°6C 0gly Xe] [[014B ] 2181S HSURL], SSE]N
%60°¢H (99728195 1) 00°000°5LT yETISSII L9916'TT 000 0Tlv QNUIANY 1OqUIL, 9IEIS
%6516 (1£201°0) 00°000°6Z 69°L68°TT £€°€80'T S0°S66°1 011t xe], Auadoid s1ea g 1sed
%1€°501 98'184°0S 00°000°056 98'18¥°000°1 L9991°6L 81°6¥Z'S 001¥ xe], Auadoig
%0968 (¢s°6T6°sT1) 00°000°5L8 LY 0LO6PL L9916°TL v 0S0 by 0To¥ aNUIAY 10RIUOD
%68 +S (L pogssen) 00°000°00€ 87°669v91 00°000°5T £P 6LV El 000¥ sorey
%0070 (00°6€8°916°1) 00°S€8°916°1 000 000 00°0 00S€ [ende)) Sunrom

moou:o%um
2,€8 QuBLIBA 123png [e10], [enpoy 1o8png poliag [en10Y poLIa ]
uwwb:m EHOP 189 X u:o.::U H:w.::U ﬁ_w.CDU

120T/0€/y YOI L, 1Z0T/1 /4 Wwolg
WRIG [BIOURUL]

s woneplodsue.d ], Ajuno)) yoowe[jL,

~L



7 93eg JoueLIRA 79 198png LA/ Hoday qOd Alyuow
%S 6¥ 6V°T8S°L 00°000°S1 1S'LI¥L 00081 66CI
%SH P11 (9€°9¢£%) 00°000°0€ 9£'9EEPE 00°00S°C 00°0
%99°'98 00°000°1 00°005°L 00°00$°9 00°6T9 00°0
%19°€9 91606 00'000°62 $8706°S1 £€7€80°C 000
2%6S°L01 (88'8L£°8) 00°0SZ°011 89°879°811 0S°L81°6 0€77T°8
%bSSL 00°185°9LS 00°25695€°C 00 1LE08L ] LOTIF96L  $9'6h9'E9I
%It ¥TI (£9°€18°L) 00°000°Z¢ £9°¢18°6¢ L9'999°C 00°0
%b9°TL 8T SLYTI 00°009°s¥ LPTI'EE 00°008°¢ or'e6i'e
%8778 6€984'T1 00'00S°0L 19°€10'8S 00°5L8°S 85°092°S
%PP 0L £L9vT'6T1 00°ZSELEY LT'S01'80€ 00°9bH°9¢ 1€°L9L°0¢
%1108 S0'9814¢ 00°005°€Z1 S6'EIE66 LY 16T01 €E156'8
%Th'S8 S1102°01 00°000°0L $8'86L°6S £E'€€8°¢ $T°100°9
%T6 €L L8 LYOT6T 00°000°0T1°1 €1°756°LT8 ££°€€EEC6 L1'128°9L
%67 €6 €H°691'9 00°000°C6 LSE8'SS L97999°L 08°S6€°L
%EEEL €L°686°L6 00°000°99¢ LTY11'89C 00°005°0¢ 18°85C°6T
%E6Sh  (LeSLIOVSH) 00,2616 €98V I ££807 88K 619567LC
%86°€T (zscsizeL) 00°000°¥6 8V LY8°TTT 000 00°0
%0070 00°000°¢ 000 00°000°¢ 000 000
%66°66 (002 00°98L°9F 00°¥8L 9% 000 00¥8L°9t
26000 (00'5£8°1¢) 00°5¢8°I¢ 000 000 000
%€9°€6 (00°000°01) 00°0S0°LS1 00°0S0°L¥1 000 000

%8 oUBLIB A 198png [e10] [enjoy 198png poLsd [enOY poLd g

198png w10,

JB3 A JuaLInyy

wa.1Iny) JUILIRY)

1202/0€/t Y8noay Y, 1707/1/¢ WoLy
USWRIRIS JeIdURULL]

1LSI uone)rodsuel ], A3Uno) YOOwe[|L,

(748
€01¢
(40189
101§
00I1¢

§s0s
£60¢
[4308
160§
0508
008
0t0¢
020¢
010¢

8lev
L16¥
916¥
Stey
T16¥

N 81:0€-¥0 1T/€1/S =1_d

suondrirosqng 79 sanq
guruue[d

20UBUDUIRA 9HSTI A
jroddng aanensiunpy
SODIAIOS [BUOISSIJOL]

SIOIAIIG PUE S[BLIDIBIA
SOOIAIAG [OUUOSIS] [BIOL

"suj uonesuadwo)) SII0 M
BQ2A (101K

UDWAINNY [[0IAR]
aIeoyI[EaH [[01AB]
asuadxq [j01ded
QOUBUIIUIRIA :[[0IABJ
SIDALI(T :[[0IARd

yoredsi(q :[joiked
uonensIuIwpy :joiked

SIOIAIIG [QUUOSII]

$90IN0SIY [BI0]

pun, LS Wolj 1ajsuel],
V.LOMN Wolj I19Jsuei],
pun,f IS WolJ joysuel],

S9Y YoIng Y A WIOI] JoJsuRI]

pun,] jelauan) wo.,j JJsuel |

5%



¢ ogeq soueLeA % 193png LA/ Hoday qOG Ao Nd 81:0€:70 1T/€1/S oA
%S6°SET (9°.86'8) 00°000°ST $9°L86°EE £€7€80°C 8 PIL oves areday] 2 TueN Auedold
%000 00°00¢ 00°00¢ 000 L9 000 0ges §99,] :98BI X34
%L 08 0L €€y 00°005¥T 0£999°61 LI TH0T [T10S°T 00¢€S asuadxg Suneiadp Auedord
%000 FSHEo°so) 000 $S¥E9°501 000 LOSETTI 16TS ssuadxd AIAOD
%00°0 00°000°05T 00°000°05¢C 000 000 000 06¢8 “Juo) BuneiadQ [eI2USH)
%EE P8 8T618C 00700081 TL081°61 000081 £V'T6TT ¢8CS JUIBIA] 193Ua]) JISUBL],
%000 (00000°2) 000 00°000°L 00°00L 00°00L 08¢S 95897 191U0)) JSURLL,
%00°0 00'80L'T 00'80L°C 000 L9°6TT 000 0LTS pun,| UoNEa10Y J0qe WS
%0070 (00°000'1) 000 00°000°¥ 000 00°000°C 99C¢ JUSWRSINAUINY AFLIIN JOqUIDIN
%LL Y8 v P0€ 00°000°T 95°669°1 L9991 L6'6IE 09¢S ageisod
%¢€T 89 0V TP 6L 00°000°05T 09°L65°0LI £€7€€8°0T L6 EVT0T S 749 asuadxy 1anyg
%9L°L6 €EILYY 00°000°00T L9°€TS So1 £9'999°91 T8°162°T 174 asuadxq 2[OIOA
%99°CT 08'8¥L VT 00°000°Z€ 0T1ISTL 89999°C 6TV 07Ts Jurured], 3 [9ARIL
%90°LL 1296¥v 00°009°61 6L €01°S1 £€€E9'L 06 CEET 01zs asuadxyg auoydaja ],
%000 (£8°L8¥°7) 000 €8°L8V°C 000 00°0 961¢ 100l01 $5900Y NsURIL
%blLE 00 F¥1°LY 00°000°SL 00'9S8°LT 000579 000 161§ U912y ASGIM
%S59°¢€ 9t'68¥°9¢€ 00°000°SS #S015°81 yEE8SY LTS8 061S SunedeN
%09 6V 00'09C°1 00°005°C 00°0¥C’1 £€°80C 00001 ¢glIs uoneNSIUIWPY [0Yoo[Y % 3niq
%L0'88 056781 00'00S 0% 05°0L9°SE 66 VLEE €9°129°Y 08I1¢ asuadx{ jeuoneradQ
%¥9°TS 719619 00°000°€1 88°€78°0 £€°€80°1 SO'SLYl SLIS osuadxy pleog|
%8668 LOT91'C 00°000°61 £6°LE8CI 000571 AN 2% 0LIS asuadxy 2030
%I1SL01 (00 716°L) 007000001 00 #1S°L01 £€°€€E8 000 091¢ dueInsu]
%6788 16'629°¢ 00°000°1¢ 60°0LE°LT £€€8ST 000 0cIS S9SUIT 79 $39.]
%709 86'101°91 00°00S 0t 20'86¢E¥C 00°SLEE P6'616°1 Sris WY tainduwo)
%8596 £59eL’l 00°000'F LY'€9T°C £eeee [AaY44 ovls Ay wawdmbs 39JO
%E€8 QUBLIBA 198png [e10L [enpy 198png pord [er0Yy poLIsd
123png [e10], Ie3 & juanm)) jualing) Jul.LIn)

120T/0¢/ YBnoay L, [70Z/1/¢ Woid
JUsWo)RIS [RIOUBUIL]
PLysi([ uoneprodsuel ], Ajuno)) oouwe[L],

SH



p 988 ueLEA 79 198png LA/M Boday dOod AlyIuoN
%98 €11 (ST'6S1Y) 00°000°0€ ST6S1vE 00°005°C 000
%3098 97 16€1 00°0S£°€01 185688 0STIL'S 8709
%0L'L8 96°689°€ 00°000°0€ POIE9z 000 000
%000 00°008‘% 00°008°Y 000 000 00°0
%¥E 08 0TPLY' 00°00$°L 08'570°9 00°$79 85°209
%00'ST 0S°LES* Y 000509 0STIS|] AR 000
%07'001 (00°011) 00°000°sS 00°011°SS €E'€86 Y 000
% vl TSILY98YT 00°€51°906°C 87 189°61 Y 000 00'¥8L°9%
%000 00'LP9°020'T  00°L9°0TO°] 000 000 000
%000 00'SE8'TOL 00°S€8'T0L 000 000 000
%876Z1 (00°SS7°22) 00°000°9L 00'SST'86 000 000
%000 00°000°01 00°000°01 000 000 000
%20°0C TS 60V PrL 0098L°0£6 81'9L£981 000 00 8L 9P
%00°001 000 00°0S0°S€1 00°0S0°SE1 000 000
%000 00'S€8'1€ 00°S€8'1€ 000 000 000
%10°001 (007 00416°ST 00'916°ST €8766'C 00°0S1°C
%00°001 000 00°000°S 00000 000ST1 00°0SZ°1
%00°001 (000 001602 00'916°0C €8THL' 00'006
%98"€L LY'686°€9€ 00'85S°76€°1 €5'895°870°1 91€16°S6 1$°€15°€9
%69'8L €TSS 00000 C9LYI'E £6EEe 99599

%E8 JDUBLIBA 198png [810], [eny 198png porag [en1oy poLied
198png [e10] I8 A JU2LIND) 2D oL

120Z/0€/ Y3noay L, 170z/1/y wolg

JuSWIRNR)S [eIouRUL]

LS uonepiodsuel ], Ajuno)) YOOwe[|i L

0S€ES

8eLe
LEES
gees
0zes
o1es

0816
SL16
0916
0cl6
0€le
Or16
0016

102¢
00Z$

9PES

INd 81:0€:#0 IT/E1/S -ed
uoneAouay| % eday] Surpjing
saseyaind [eude)
9914198 193(] [B10L
IARS 1921 d1LO
ueo I9jus)) Hsuel] grLO
asuadxyg usoT (and
1SQI21U] 19SBYT X9 ]
lediduLg 9589 X3 ]
201A12§ 1920
AepinQ rende)
sIgjsuel] [e10]
reg pun, 3urpuy pareudorddeupn
arnyrpuadx s a1nn g 10J 2AISNY
pund v LOMN O1 Jojsurer],
JAIISIY S[OIYI A O] I9JSURI],
pun,j [eIouan) 0} Iagsuel],
gy Kaadoad 01 Jojsuely
1€6S dIDT 01 Jsuel],
sIajsuer],
sjuowide ] [e192dg [B10 L
syuardroay] 0} spuawAed J1LS
sjuardiony] o1 syuswikeJ J1S
sjuaAe ] [eroadg
S9OIAIDS PUE S[ELIJBIA [€10]
Jurely L1108, suonelado



G :a8eq uRLIBA 29 199png QLA/M Hoday qOd Alyuow
%81°0F 999167S€'C  00L261568 FE010°L6S°E 9T IS THOT O£V 88T
%80°S1 LY9L]LT6] 00°0S£°0LTT €CELY TPE 0STIT9PL $8'8H0TI
%0LT1 [4'$8P°€16°1 00°000°L91°C 65V1S'EST 00°00S°0vL LTIV 11
%88°7¢ £8°6EP EIY 00°000919 L1°095°202 €LEECIS 00°0€€
%9V €S P6L LST 00°000°591 LY S0TL 00°0SL°ET LY'9TS ]
%000 00°000°9 00°000°9 00°0 00°00S 0070
%61 ¥6°206t 00°000°S 90°L6 LY9TY 90°L6
2%00°0 00°000°505 00°000°50S 000 00°000'25T 0070
%ET'T 97°L0S0£8 00°000°0¥3 vLT6V6 00°000°0Zt YL T6¥6

9%€8 QouBLIB A 108png [BlOL [enjoy 193png poua g [en)oy poLId |
193png [v10L Jea § juainy) LNy jliZhiiig)

120T/0€/y YSNOIYL, 120T/1/ WoL]

JUSWIOJR)S [BIOUBUL]

LS uonerodsues I, AJuno)) Yoowe[jL ],

0509
0109
1209
0209
0109
0009

N 81:0€:70 1Z/€1/S =1ed

sasuadxy [®10],
AepnQ jende) @10

saseyaang [ende)) [©101
swafoid [eude) 12y
s191joys/a3eudig doig sng
jutod uonie[n3uell] (20 [ond
apet3dn sondwon
uonIppyAuswade[day] uep
UoIIppy/Auduwaoe(day sng

5\



| o8ed souBLIRA %9 198pNg (LA/M HodOY O AIYIUON N 00 TEH0 1Z/€1/S 2%Q

%90°Th 16°€6L°S 00°000°01 60°90TF €'Ees 98°81¥ 0LIS asuadxg 20O

%000 00000°C 00°000°C 000 L9991 000 0916 ouRINSU
%80°81 SLTIVIHT 00°000°S9¥ STL8S'ETT 00°0ST'1 66'+C 0S1¢§ $9SUAOIT %9 S99

%68 €01 (£9°%85) 00°000°S 1 €9'p8S°SI 00°0ST°1 01°LS8 Svis N Jondwo)
%85°9¢ £5°9€L°1 00°000° LY'€97°T ceees TS ovis U wawdinbg 20150

%0070 00°00S°T 00°005°1 000 00521 000 0zIS suondrosqng 7 san(y

%85 €7C (LO'6L1'9) 00°000°S LOGLITI L991t 00918 001S S9OIAIAG [BUOISSIJOI]

SAVIAIRG PUE S[BLIJIBIA

%ESTL 81°€8T°I€1 00000°8LY 78°91L°9b¢ £€°€€8°6E 6L 110°CE SI0IAIDG [QUUOSIAG [BIO]
%000 (zy'81g) 000 Tr8IE 000 000 $50S 'su] uonesuadwo)) SIS0
%20'69 97920 00°000°€1 ¥S'€L6'S £€°€80°1 v9°SL8 €50 BQOA [[01ke

%0t 78 9F6£E°T 00°000°S 1 ¥$°099'Z1 00°05Z°1 €L°S60°1 7508 uawaINYY [[01ked

%89 VL rIv8LT 00°000°01 1 85'851°78 L9991°6 PO'ETH'S 150S 1By |[014B]
%5089 LY'L86'L 00'000°ST €5°T10°LI €€°€80°C €6°09%°1 0S0S asuadx [[0iked
%ECET T1I'666°CT 00°000°0€ 88°000°L 00°005°T 00°07L 1%0S Jeu1pul :[joifed
%69°9L L9°LO¥99 00°000°58¢ €€°T6581T 00'0SL'€T SYOtH 61 010S UORIISIUIWPY :[[0IAR]

SIDIAIDG [UUOSIO]
sasuadxyg

%8179 — (09°€L6'786°T) 00°008°LVT'S 0978797 L99IELEY 9L°7SSTHE $90IN0SY [BI0],
%000 00001 000 00001 000 000 01SH awoouy 1sa193u]

%000 LEPEY' VI 000 LEVER I 000 000 12ey AIAQD - S

%000 0£°T9¥'E1T 000 0€T9r'€1T 000 00°0 LTOb aA18Y YMN
%E]'LS (LTOL6TITD) 00°008°LYT'S €L°6T8HE0°E L99IE'LEY 9L'TSSTYE  9TOF anuaAsy YMN

S22IN0SAY
%€8 JUBLIB A 193png [e10], [enjoy 198png pouag [enOY poLed
123png [e10], Ie3 A jualm)) JUSLINY) wauny)

12027/0€/¥ ysnoayy, 1Z0z/1/y wol
JUSWL)R)S [BIOUBUL]

PLYS uonelrodsuea § AJuno)) Joowe[[L,



7 28ed

douelep % 198png LA/M Hoday qOg A[YIUON

%SS8¢ 170T¥SLIT 00°008°LYT’S 6L°6LETLOE 999IE LY £€6'16€61
%Pv1'LS €0°LELPPOT 00°008°69L Yy wm,moonmm\.nm. €CE8YLOE ¥1°08€791
%98°0¢ 1€°€16°9 00°000°01 69°980°¢ £eEes 6L 1Y
%€ € 00°008 00008t 00000 00°00% 00°00¥
%LT 08 S 068861 00°000°00¥ SC601°10Z £eeeeee 000
%09°1¢ 00°080°881 00°000°SLT 00°076°98 L9916°TT 000
%5909 €Y eS8 96E] 00°000°05S°€ LS SIT'ESTT geeeeieee YL'6£T8S1
%86'8¢ S¥'019 00°000°1 £e68¢ £e¢e8 000
%59°¢ [€LI18Y 00°000°¢ 6981 L991Y 000
%01°L6 TE6LS 00°000°07 89°0ZH'61 L9999°1 ¥8°016
%V8LE LTTE6 00°005°1 €L°L9S 00°¢TI 00°9¢
A QuBLEA 198png (w10, [emoy 103png pous [BNIOY POLIaJ
103png [e10], IBaX JuaLNy oLy ANy

1202/0€/¥ USnoIy L, [Z0T/1/y woid

USR] [BISUBUL ]

PLOSI uonelrodsued ], A3Uno)) YOOwe|[i],

00€¢
18¢¢
L9TS
99C¢
c9ce
09¢¢
ozes
olee
081¢

INd 00170 [T/EL/S 1]

sasuadxy (2107,
SAOIAIS PUR S[BLISIBIA] [B1O ],

asuadx FuneradQ Aredoig
Y 22O
asmquiay aFes[ipy Ia9unjo A
JUDLIASINQUITY] 938 IA] JOqUIDIA]
uonepodsuel] paseyong
a8e1s0d
Bururel] 2 [9ABI]
asuadxy suoydoja],
asuadxg jeuoneradQ



Document Document
Number Date

16240 4/7/2021
16241 4/7/2021
16241 4/7/2021
16241 4/7/2021
16241 4/7/2021
16241 4/7/2021
16241 4/7/2021
16242 4/7/2021
16243 4/7/2021
16244 4/7/2021
16245 4/7/2021
16246 4/7/2021
16246 4/7/2021
16246 4/7/2021
16246 4/7/2021
16246 4/7/2021
16247 4/7/2021
16248 4/7/2021
16248 4/7/2021
16248 4/7/2021
16248 4/7/2021
16248 4/7/2021
16248 4/7/2021
16248 4/7/2021
16248 4/7/2021
16248 4/7/2021
16249 4/7/2021
16249 4/7/2021
16250 4/7/2021
16250 4/7/2021
16250 4/7/2021
16251 4/7/2021
16252 4/7/2021
16252 4/7/2021
16252 4/7/2021
16253 4/7/2021
16254 4/7/2021
16255 4/7/2021
16256 4/7/2021
16257 4/7/2021
16258 4/7/2021
16258 4/7/2021
16259 4/7/2021
16260 4/7/2021
16261 4/7/2021
16262 4/7/2021
16263 4/7/2021
16265 4/9/2021
16265 4/9/2021
16265 4/9/2021
16265 4/9/2021
16265 4/9/2021
16265 4/9/2021
16265 4/9/2021
16265 4/9/2021
16265 4/9/2021

Date: 5/10/21 05:25:26 PM

Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 4/1/2021 Through 4/30/2021

Transaction
Amount Payee Transaction Description
222.60 CAR CARE SPECIALISTS, INC. DEF
38.00 Advance Auto Parts DEGREASER
16.52 Advance Auto Parts WASHER PUMP
39.98 Advance Auto Parts DEGREASER
7.34 Advance Auto Parts SUPPLIES
110.28 Advance Auto Parts DEF
42.27 Advance Auto Parts INVENTORY
850.00 WAVE MARCH 2021 TELEPHONE
5,442.34 Columbia Pacific Economic NWOTA ADMINISTRATION JAN-M/
2021
164.38 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INVENTORY
120.00 E & E Auto Body, Inc. VAN 103 ADJUST BACK DOOR
7.50 FleetPride, Inc. INVENTORY
416.96 FleetPride, Inc. INVENTORY/SHOP SUPPLIES
23.76 FleetPride, Inc. INVENTORY
382.00 FleetPride, Inc. INVENTORY
117.92 FleetPride, Inc. INVENTORY
350.00 KDEP-FM/KTIL-FM/KTIL-AM ADVERTISING
24.95 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER TIRE REPAIR
76.72 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER WINTER CHANGEOVER
897.68 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER TIRES
76.72 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER WINTER CHANGEOVER
803.30 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER SUSPENSION/STRUTS
76.72 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER WINTER CHANGEOVER
448.84 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER TIRES
538.14 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER BALL JOINTS/TIE RODS
823.16 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER TIRES
1,272.76 Marie Mills Center, Inc MARCH-NOV 2021 TRANSIT CENTI
120.69 Marie Mills Center, Inc MARCH 2021 JANITORIAL SUPPLII
92.91 McCOY FREIGHTLINER INVENTORY
6,510.38 McCOY FREIGHTLINER ENGINE/ELECTRICAL/EXHAUST RE
287.48 McCOY FREIGHTLINER AIR LEAK REPAIR
434.87 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC. VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
27.18 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES
35.29 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES
2.78 Office Depot Credit Plan OFFICE SUPPLIES
3.00 OR DEPT OF MOTOR VEHICLES DRIVER RECORDS
122.84 PACIFIC CITY SUN ADVERTISING
1,189.94 PETROCARD INC. MARCH 2021 FUEL
62.13 PORTLAND GENERAL MARCH 2021 SALEM ELECTRIC
659.00 Prevailing Communications BUS RADIOS 110/307/308
895.00 PINPOINT STITCHES AND INK LLC BOARD DECALS
2,327.52 PINPOINT STITCHES AND INK LLC DRIVER UNIFORMS
19,644.16 Sheldon Oil Distributors MARCH 2021 FUEL
9.00 TILLAMOOK ELECTRONIC SUPPLY RADIOS
128.20 Tillamook Motor Co. VEHICLE MAINTENANCE/BATTERY
1,563.54 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MARCH 2021 CHARGES
394.80 VERIZON TABLET DATA
164.88 WEST COAST EXHAUST AIR HOSE REPAIR
576.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST SERVICE ENGINE/TRANSMISSION
162.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST AIR COMPRESSOR DIAGNOSIS
180.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST ELECTRICAL REPAIR
216.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST WIRING/DOME LIGHT REPAIR
90.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST LIFT REPAIR
144.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST REPLACE AXLE
72.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST ENGINE REPAIR . Ok
144.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST PM SERVICE 6

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1001 - General Checking Account
From 4/1/2021 Through 4/30/2021

Document Document Transaction

Number Amount Payee Transaction Description
16265 4/9/2021 362.50 WEST COAST EXHAUST EXHAUST REPAIR

16265 4/9/2021 396.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST HEATER HOSE REPAIR
16265 4/9/2021 204.70 WEST COAST EXHAUST EXHAUST REPAIR

16265 4/9/2021 215.60 WEST COAST EXHAUST EXHAUST REPAIR

16265 4/9/2021 864.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST EXHAUST REPAIR

16265 4/9/2021 342.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST WIRING ISSUES

16265 4/9/2021 504.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST REPLACE RADIATOR

16265 4/9/2021 720.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST ELECTRICAL/COOQLANT LEAK REPA
16265 4/9/2021 54.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST REPLACE EXHAUST SENSOR
16265 4/9/2021 72.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST PM SERVICE

16265 4/9/2021 72.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST PM SERVICE

16265 4/9/2021 72.00 WEST COAST EXHAUST FUEL LEAK REPAIR

16267 4/21/2021 292.24 ALSCO - Portland Linen MATT SERVICE

16268 4/21/2021 100.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC. DRUG SCREEN

16269 4/21/2021 71.12 BRENT OLSON MILEAGE/SALEM

16270 4/21/2021 2.04 CARSON OIL CO INC FUEL

16271 4/21/2021 2,673.50 COUNTRY MEDIA RECRUITMENT-COVID
16271 4/21/2021 65.10 COUNTRY MEDIA ADVERTISING

16272 4/21/2021 85.00 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER

16273 4/21/2021 838.15 CUMMINS NORTHWEST, LLC BUS 34 VALVES

16274 4/21/2021 505.05 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT
16274 4/21/2021 2,142.90 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT
16275 4/21/2021 789.67 IconiPro Security & Alarms TRANSIT CENTER CAMERAS
16276 4/21/2021 4,416.50 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL W/CHAMPION PARK
16277 4/21/2021 1,724.40 KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. STIF PLANNING

16278 4/21/2021 16.00 NEW AGE CAR WASH VAN WASHES

16279 4/21/2021 122.84 PACIFIC CITY SUN ADVERTISING

16280 4/21/2021 270.86 Pacific Office Automation FEBRUARY 2021 TCTD
16281 4/21/2021 225.22 Pacific Office Automation TCTD COPIER LEASE
16282 4/21/2021 168.00 SNAP-ON INDUSTRIAL SHOP TOOLS

16282 4/21/2021 146.15 SNAP-ON INDUSTRIAL SHOP TOOLS

16283 4/21/2021 49.95 VANIR BROADBAND, INC. INTERNET

Report Total 68,233.92

WO

Date: 5/10/21 05:25:26 PM Page: 2



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking
From 4/1/2021 Through 4/30/2021

Document Document

Number Date Payee

5627 4/2/2021 PACIFIC SOURCE

5628 4/2/2021  ATU LOCAL #757

5629 4/9/2021 HRA VEBA TRUST

5630 4/21/2021  SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS.
SERVICE

5631 4/23/2021  ATU LOCAL #757

Date: 5/10/21 05:25:39 PM

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT
From 4/1/2021 Through 4/30/2021

Document Document Transaction

Number Amount Payee Transaction Description

2981 4/7/2021 670.06 WAVE MARCH 2021 TELEPHONE
2982 4/7/2021 640.98 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR MARCH 2021 RENT/UTILITIE
2983 4/7/2021 10,042.03 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. MARCH 2021 BENEFITS

2984 4/7/2021 360.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR IND PR 3.26.21

2985 4/7/2021 10,434.47 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR PAYROLL 3.26.21

2986 4/7/2021 58.64 CARDMEMBER SERVICE MARCH 2021 CHARGES

2987 4/12/2021 2,400.68 AAA RIDE ASSIST PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2987 4/12/2021 4,161.44 AAA RIDE ASSIST PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2988 4/12/2021 6,240.30 COLUMBIA COUNTY RIDER PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2989 4/12/2021 3,239.00 COLUMBIA MEDICAL PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2990 4/12/2021 5,315.85 K & M MEDIVAN PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2990 4/12/2021 4,368.55 K & M MEDIVAN PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2990 4/12/2021 3,356.65 K & M MEDIVAN PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2990 4/12/2021 4,886.90 K & M MEDIVAN PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2990 4/12/2021 3,260.70 K & M MEDIVAN PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2991 4/12/2021 5,266.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2991 4/12/2021 4,425.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2991 4/12/2021 181.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE AFTER HOURS PHONES

2992 4/12/2021 5,783.90 METRO WEST PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2993 4/12/2021 750.00 MTN RETREAT SECURE TRANSPORT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2994 4/12/2021 6,745.04 RYANS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2995 4/12/2021 2,525.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2995 4/12/2021 675.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2995 4/12/2021 825.00 SUNSET EMPIRE TRANSIT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2996 4/12/2021 15,814.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2997 4/12/2021 11,791.25 WAPATO SHORES PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2997 4/12/2021 11,086.00 WAPATO SHORES PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2997 4/12/2021 11,403.00 WAPATO SHORES PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2997 4/12/2021 19,337.75 WAPATO SHORES PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
2998 4/12/2021 1,908.00 WILLAMETTE VALLEY TRANSPORT PROVIDER TRANSPORTATION
3000 4/14/2021 2,783.28 JANNA SMITH VOLUNTEERS

3001 4/14/2021 2,847.64 JOHN REKART JR VOLUNTEERS

3002 4/14/2021 3,519.84 KANDIS LIDAY VOLUNTEERS

3003 4/14/2021 3,542.00 SEAN REKART VOLUNTEERS

3004 4/14/2021 3,511.64 VAL HOLYOAK VOLUNTEERS

3005 4/14/2021 2,984.68 WILLTAM NERENBERG VOLUNTEERS

3006 4/14/2021 1,054.16 LEANN CHUINARD VOLUNTEERS

3009 4/21/2021 91.90 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS WATER

3010 4/21/2021 857.10 GenXsys Solutions, LLC COMPUTER SUPPORT

3011 4/21/2021 816.00 JORDAN SCHRADER RAMIS, PC LEGAL NEMT/NWR

3012 4/21/2021 53.08 Pacific Office Automation FEBRUARY 2021 NWR

3013 4/21/2021 225.22 Pacific Office Automation NWR COPIER LEASE

3014 4/27/2021 360.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR INDIRECT PAYROLL 4.23.20
3015 4/27/2021 360.00 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR INDIRECT PAYROL 4.9.21
3016 4/27/2021 10,393.73 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR PAYROLL 4.23.21

3017 4/27/2021 10,503.65 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS. DIST. NWR PAYROLL 4.9.21

Report Total 201,856.11

Date: 5/10/21 05:25:46 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Page: 1



FRED MEYER CARD CHARGES

Date Vendor Description of Transaction Amount
May Board Packet {April Financials)
TABATHA CARD #5
04/12/21 KITCHEN SUPPLIES/MEETINGS $ 7552
04/15/21 COVID INCENTIVE PROGRAM/SNACKS $160.87
$236.39
BRENT OLSON CARD #3
04/07/21 KITCHEN SUPPLIES $ 999
$ 9.99
CATHY BOND CARD #4
$ -
$ -
$ -
CLAYTON NORRBOM CARD # 6
03/28/21 COVID CLEANING SUPPLIES BUS $ 71.80
$ 71.80
Grand Total| $318.18
N L
DATE 5-7-2 1 |APPROVAL (9

W4



Date Vendor

103/29/21 VIRTUAL POSTMAIL
04/01/21 |FRED MEYER
04/05/21 |FACEBOOK
104/12/21 |LA MEXICANA
04/14/21 |POSTABOX
04/14/21 FACEBOOK

04/22/21 WERNERS

'03/25/21 |IRON MOUNTAIN

04/06/21 ADOBE ACROPRO

| 04/22/21 IRON MOUNTAIN

03/25/21 | TENNANT CO

03/29/21 [DONUT PALACE

| 04/01/21 AMAZON

04/08/21 |RAM MOUNT

04/12/21 |ADAMS RIB SMOKEHOUSE
04/12/21 UBER

| 04/23/21 MCDONALDS

03/29/21 ENDICIA
04/01/21 |INDEED
04/01/21 |AMAZON
04/05/21 INDEED
04/13/21 INDEED
04714721 HULU B
04/16/21 |ENDICIA
'04/19/21 PACIFIC RESTAURANT
04/19/21 |AMAZON

04/19/21 [MIKES MAC AND SANNYS
04/20/21 |ENDICIA

04/23/21 |ENDICIA

AUMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 04/23/2021
'Description of Transaction

DOUG PILANT
'POSTAGE
'OFFICE SUPPLY REFUND
'ADVERTISING
'MEALS/PETER STARKY MEETING
'POSTAGE

'MEALS/BRENTS REVIEW
- CATHY BOND
'PAPER SHREDDING
'ADOBE SOFTWARE
| PAPER SHREDDING
|

_ ~ BRENT OLSON
| SHOP FACILITY MAINT./ZAMBONI
'MEALS/STAFF SURVEYS
"TOUCHLESS WATER FOUNTAIN/COVID
|TABLET HOLDERS
'MEALS/EMPLOYEE SURVEY
'MCCOY TO SALEM SHOP
'MEALS/EMPLOYEE TRAINING

[ TABATHA WELCH
'POSTAGE
JOB POSTING RECRUITMENT
' TOUCHLESS WATER FOUNTAIN/COVID
~ JOB POSTING RECRUITMENT
'JOB POSTING RECRUITMENT
UTILITIES/CABLE
 POSTAGE
'MEALS/BUDGET MEETING
'MEMBERSHIP
~ MEALS/BUDGET MEETING
~ POSTAGE
'POSTAGE

~_ CLAYTON NORRBOM

STATEMENT TRUEUP

I
]

1,660.36

'S
18
$

Charges total| $
Grand Total $

~ DATE

S-1{-2)

~ Amount

25.00
(2.79)
49.48
32.18
13.49.
25.00
30.48
17284

102.84
24.99

102.94

230.77

590.51
34.75
880.14
- 97.07
13.80
37.81

6.28

100.00
504.79
880.14
50.43
503.65
64.99
24.99
2596
12.99
13.80
1100.00
56.49
2,338.23

(0.01)
(25.00)
4,377.19
14,377.19

LD



3l umpQuA BANK

April 2021 Statement
.. OpenDate: 03/25/2021 Closing Date: 04/23/2021

o

§.m J

?&

£S5 Visa® Company Card with Rewards

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

_yNew Balance e - $4,402.19

‘ %4500
- 05/22/2021

Reward Points

Earned This Statement 4,558

Reward Center Balance 79,319

as of 04/22/2021
For details, see your rewards summary.

—»x=r-) Mail payment coupon
/7 | with a check

Payment Options:

Please detach and send coupon with check payable te: Cardmember Service

‘3 UMPQUA BANK

24-Hour Cardmember Service: 1-866-552-8855
(l . to pay by phone
4 . to change your address

00003271101 SP 000638798180424 P Y

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

3600 2RD ST STE A
TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

lIIIllllllllllllhllllllllllIIIIIlIIlIlIlIlIIIIIIIII'IIlIIII'IIII

Page 1 of 4
Account: 1 7790
Cardmember Service (E 1-866-552-8855
BUS 30 ELM 68 15
Activity Summary
Previous Balance + $1,622.17
Payments - $1,622.18¢r
Other Credits - $2.79cr
Purchases + $4,404.99
Balance Transfers $0.00
Advances $0.00
Other Debits $0.00
Fees Charged $0.00
Interest Charged $0.00
New Balance = $4,402.19
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $45.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $5,597.81
Days in Billing Period 30
Pay online at

(=, myaccountaccess.com

q Pay by phone
(l 1-866-552-8855

CPN 007469460
Account Number 7790
Payment Due Date 5/22/2021
New Balance $4,402.19

| Minimum Payment Due $45.00

Amount Enclosed 3

Cardmember Service

P.O. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

Ll



i

:!er'

g% UMPQUA BANK

April 2021 Statement 03/25/2021 - 04/23/2021 Page 2 of 4
TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (GPN 001469460) Cardmember Service { 1-866552-8855

sa Business Rewards Company Card

Rewards Center Activity as of 04/22/2021
Rewards Center Activity* 0
Rewards Center Balance 79,319

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.

This Year
Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 4,244 12,170
Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 314 1,305
Total Earned 4,558 13,475

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (GST)
Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Important Messages

Paying Interest: You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. In order ta
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers
except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

Speed through checkout while earning rewards with PayPal. Go to the Mobile App or manage vour account
online. Link your card to PayPal today.

We have added Maobile Authentication and Cellular Phone Contact Policy to
and made changes to the Arbitration Agreement in your account agreement,
Please visit card.myaccountaccess.com/agreementchanges to review.

If you have any questions, call the number on the back of your card.

Transactions PILANT,DOUGLAS Credit Limit $5000
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Motation
St o Other Credits ==
04/01 03/30 0210 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMOOK OR $2.79¢cr

MERCHANDISE/SERVICE RETURN
e g - “Purchases and Other Debits
03/28 03/27 1669 VIRTUALPOSTMAIL.COM 909-235-6245 CA $25.00

04/05 04/03 7358 FACEBK 87R264FQR2  650-5434800 CA $49.48
04/12 04/08 1698 LA MEXICANA RESTAURANT TILLAMOOK OR $32.18
04/14 04/12 96856 SQ*POSTABOX TILLAMOOK OR $13.49
04/14 04/13 2253 FBPAY *ldahoConservat donate.fb.com CA 325.00
04/22 04/20 7602 WERNER GOURMET MEAT SN TILLAMOCK OR $30.48
Total for Account } 7808 $172.84
Continued on Next Page
Vi



April 2021 Statement 03/25/2021 - 04/23/2021

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

Cardmember Service

Page 3 0of 4

{ 1-866-552-8855

Transactions . =~ BOND.CATHY

Post
Date

03/25
04/06
04/22

Trans
Date

03/24
04/05
04/21

Ref# Transaction Description
9654 IRON MOUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA
0750 ADOBE ACROPROQO SUBS  408-536-6000 CA

8776 IRON MOUNTAIN 800-934-3453 MA
Total for Account 12022

Credit Limit $2500

Amount
$102.84
$24.99

$102.94
$230.77

Notation

Transactions

Post
Date

03728
04/01
04/01
04/05
04/13
04/14
04/16
04/18
04/19
04/18
04/20
04/23

Trans
Date

03/26
03/30
03/31
04/01
04/12
04/13
04/15
04/16
04/17
04/16
04/19
04/22

WELCH TABATHA

Ref# Transaction Description
Purchases and Other Debits
6267 USPS STAMPS ENDICIA  888-434-0055 DC

1907 INDEED 203-564-2400 CT
2973  AMZN Mktp US*RN4AKHEEQ3 Amzn.com/bill WA
5626 INDEED 203-564-2400 CT
4075 INDEED 203-564-2400 CT
2577  HLU™Hulu 1934589745285 HULU.COM/BILL CA
7519  ENDICIA 800-576-32792 CA

0095 PACIFICRESTAURANT TILLAMOOK OR
6117  Amazon Prime*VZ78Q3BR3 Amzn.com/bill WA
4183 8Q *MIKES MAC AND SANN Tillamook OR
1830 USPS STAMPS ENDICIA  888-434-0055 DC
1053 ENDICIA STORE 800-576-3279 CA
Total for Account 41486

Credit Limit $2500

Amount

$100.00
$504.79
$880.14
$50.43
$503.65
$64.99
$24.99
$25.96
$12.9¢
$13.80
$100.00

$56.49
$2,338.23

Notation

Transactions

Post
Date

03/25
03/29
04/01
04/08
04/12
04/12
04/23

Trans
Date

03/24
03/26
03/31
04/06
04/09
04/10
04/21

OLSON,BRENT

Ref # Transaction Description

Purchases and Other Debits
5894 TENNANT CO 800-5538033 MN
0171 DONUT PALACE PORTLAND O©OR
4834  AMZN Mktp US*FWIER2F33 Amzn.com/bill WA
3897 NPI/RAM MQUNTS 206-763-8361 WA
0023 ADAMS RIB SMOKEHOUSE SALEM OR
8619 UBER TRIP HELP UBER.COM CA
0325 MCDONALD'SF12202 TILLAMOOK OR

Total for Account 1 2649

Continued on Next Page

Credit Limit $3000

Amount

$590.51
$34.75
$880.14
$97.07
$13.80
$37.81

36.28
$1,660.38

Notation

s



vAkTLE

§3 UMPQUA BANK

April 2021 Statement
o TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)
o Ha'ic

03/25/2021 - 04/23/2021

Cardmember Service

Page 4 of 4
{ 1-866-552-8855

Transactions BILLING ACCOUNT ACTIVITY.
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amournt Notatien
= Payments and Other Credits v
04/07 04/07 8 PAYMENT THANK YQU $58.64cr
04/07 04/07 8 PAYMENT THANK YOU $1,563.54cr
Total for Account Y7790 $1,622.18cR
2021 Totals Yearto-Date
Total Fees Charged in 2021 $0.00
Total Interest Charged in 2021 $0.00
Interest Charge Calculation
Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual interest rate on your account.
**APR for current and future transactions.
Balance Annual Expires
Balance Subjectto Iaterest Percentage with
Balance Type By Type interest Raie Variable Charge Rate Statement
*BALANCE TRANSFER 50.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 12 24%
*PURCHASES $4,402 19 $0.00 YES $0.00 12.24%
“*ADVANCES $0.00 $50.00 YES $0.00 23.99%
Contact Us
(‘ Phone (? » Questions =71 Mail payment coupoen \._ Online
. o with a check =
Voice 1-866-552-8855 Cardmember Service Cardmember Service myaccountaccess com

TBD 1-888-252-6455
Fax: 1-866-807-9053

P.O Box 6353
Fargo, ND 58125-6353

P.O, Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

End of Statement

4



Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT APR 2021
RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE APR APR YTD YTD YTD %

2021 2020 FY 20-21 FY 19-20 Change
Dial-A-Ride Service
Tillamook County 906 450 8,218 9,708 -15.3%
NW Rides 536 177 4,782 6,577 -27.3%
Dial-A-Ride Total 1,442 627 13,000 16,285 -20.2%
Deviated Fixed Route Service
Rt 1: Town Loop 2,704 1,724 26,762 34,902 -23.3%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 575 301 4,749 6,551 -27.5%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 2,134 1,409 19,551 27,889 -29.9%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 871 589 7,954 13,354 -40.4%
Local Fixed Rt Total 6,284 4,023 59,016 82,696 -28.6%
Intercity Service
Rt 5: Portland 459 164 4,360 7,333 -40.5%
Rt 60X: Salem 784 199 6,045 8,739 -30.8%
Rt 70X: Grand Ronde 370 36 2,837 3,942 -28.0%
Inter City Total 1,613 399 13,242 20,014 ~33.8%
Other Services
Tripper Routes 47 7 399 958 -58.4%
Special Bus Operations 0 0 516 1,327 -61.1%
Other Services Total 47 7 915 2,285 -60.0%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 9,386 5,056 86,173 121,280 -28.9%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 4,709 231 45,803 65,478 -30.0%
Senior/Disabled 2,600 1,154 34,576 47,097 -26.6%
Child/Youth (less than 18 years of age) 635 58 5,794 8,705 -33.4%
Total 7,944 1,442 86,173 121,280 -28.9%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 20-21 | FY 19-20 | Change
Ride Connection 50 587 755 -22.3%
Tillamook Bay Community College 145 1,380 2,037 -32.3%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 82 - 709 1,201 -41.0%
NW Rides ird 493 4,309 5,922|  -27.2%
Helping Hands Shuttle 39 389 1,329 -70.7%

5/14/2021

04-21 RIDERSHIP REPORT xIsx

O



AR

Tillamook County Transportation District
Actual FY 2020/2021

Year-to-Date Statistics and Performance

Thru Apr 2021 5/13/2021
YTDFare oy Y  vippaig YD Mieage  iHourly Direct  Indirect | Total Hourly Passngrs Farebox Passngr/§ Average o enuel
Revenue Passngrs Service Hours Sef"‘ce Based aseg Cost () Costs (3) | Costs ($) | Rate ($) per Hour Ratio Subsidy  Fare ($) Service
Route/Run ($) Hours Miles Costs Costs ($) Hour ($)
Dial-A-Ride Service
Dial-A-Ride 29,540 8,218 3,482 4,407 64,776 42,411 159,375 9,629 61,635| 273,050 78.42 2.4 10.8% 0.03 3.59 8.48
NW Rides 350,576 4,782 4,974 6,543  134.333 87,952 227.656 13,754 96.022| 425,384 85.52 1.0 82.4% 0.06 73.31 70.48
Total DAR 380,115 13,000 8,456 10,950 199.109 130.363 387.031 23.383 157.657| 698.433 82.60 1.5 54.4% 0.04 29,24 44.95
Deviated Route
01 Town Loop 20,173 26,762 3.814 4,334 52,013 34,055 174,561 10,546 63,894| 283,056 74.22 7.0 7.1% 0.10 0.75 5.29
02 Netarts/Oceanside 5,384 4,749 2,008 2,703 44,247 28,970 91,899 5,552 36,856 163,277 81.32 2.4 3.3% 0.03 1.13 2.68
03 Manzanita 26,545 19.551 5,494 6,020 142,554 93,335 251,443 15,191 104,945| 464,913 84.63 36 5.7% 0.04 1.36 4.83
04 Lincoln City 14,477 7,954 3.513 4,163 117,842 77,155 160.784 9,714 72,200] 319.853 91.05 2.3 4.5% 0.03 1.82 4.12
Total Deviated Route 66,579 59,016 14,828 17,220 356,655 233.514 678.687 41.003  277.895| 1.231.100 83.03 4.0 5.4% 0.05 1.13 4.49
Intercity
05 Portland 41,383 4,360 2,950 3.221 94,514 61,881 143,171 8,157 59,781 272,991 92.55 1.5 15.2% 0.02 9.49 14.03
60X Salem 16,244 6,045 2,723 3,345 109,757 71,861 132,173 7,530 59,484 271,049 99.53 2.2 6.0% 0.02 2.69 5.97
70X Grand Ronde 4,545 2,837 1,747 2,194 60,748 39,773 84,772 4,830 36.310| 165.685 94.86 1.6 2.7% 0.02 1.60 2.60
Total Intercity 62,172 13,242 7,420 8,759 265,018 173,516 360,117 20,517 155,574 709,724 95.66 1.8 8.8% 0.02 4.70 8.38
Other Services
Trippers 399 399 114 261 1,212 793 5,211 315 1,841 8,160 71.68 3.5 4.9% 0.05 1.00 3.50
Special Bus Operation 0 516 224 225 2,299 1,505 10,266 620 3,612 16,004 71.35 2.3 0.0% 0.03 0.00 0.00
Total Other Services 399 915 338 486 3.511 2,299 15,477 935 5,453 24,164 71.46 2.7 1.7% 0.04 0.44 1.18
Total TCTD Services 509,265 86,173 31,041 37,415 824,293 539,692 1,441,311 85,839 596,580 2,663,421 85.80 2.78 19.1% 0.04 5.91 16.41
Total Mileage, Labor & Direct Cost 2,066,842 28.9% Page 1




uosLiedwon JBaA-IBAQ-1BIA

¢ abegq

%8¢ 66.L°TL LeP'€99°'c 229'065°Z %P'S-  |P8LL- Lo‘Le 528°2¢ %6'82- |l0L‘GE- €.1'98 08Z'1Zl  [%9°9L- 9beL0l- §92'60S  LLO'0L9 SaJIAIRG (101 lejolL
%9vL-  |GLLY- P9L'vC 8/2'8¢C %9'6L- |28- 8€¢ L2y %0°09- [0L€°L- Sl6 §82°¢C %G8~ |v6Z'¢- 66¢ €692 S82IAIBS 18YIO B0 L
%6°€L- |LBS2- $00°9} 56581 %8 LL- |6 vee €12 %119 |LIg- gls leg'L %0°00L- |0¥0'e- 0 0r0'e uofeladQ sng [e1eds
%L'Gl-  |€2S'L- 09L'8 £89'6 %622~ |vE- 14%% 514 %V'85- |6GG- 66€ 856 %6'8E-  |vSe- 66¢ €59 sJadduy
EERIINEISEED o]
%6°LL  |§46°6. ¥2.'60L  BYLYE9 %Z L g8 ocv'.L see’s %8'€€- [2LL'9 veel ¥10'02 %0°9¢e- |886'vE- 2/1'29 09126 AlRI8U [B1OL
%0CL |G69°L) G89'G9L  066°LVL %60 |91 vl 0eL't %082~ [SOL'L- 1£8'C re'e %Z'6L- [220°L- SHS'y 229'S |spuoy puels X0L
%ECL 182'62 6¥0°'LL2  89Z'LY¥e %CC |88 €2L'T G99'7 %80€- |¥69'C- SP0'9 6€L'8 %0LE- [862'L- vpeial Zrs'ez wales X09
%S'LL 66082 LB6'2LC  168VYT %E0 |0} 056'¢ 0v6'¢C %G 0b- |€26'C- 09e'y €€’ %L'6E- |€L9'92- £8¢€°LY 966'29 pueHed SO
NI
%58 21896 00L°LEC'L Z8TPEL'L %Ee0  |0S 88l 8LLY1L %982~ |089'¢e- 910’65 969'C8 %/.'€c- |0£9°02- 645'99 602'/8 2IN0Y paxi |ed0T [ejo |
%18 0g6'ee £98'6lE  £26'S6C %E0 |C) £LG'e 105°¢ %¥0¥- |00¥'S- G86°L ySEel %0'6C- |£26°G- LIP'YL 00v°0c AJID UjooUIt ¥0
%S'8 £2€°9¢ €L6'v9y  LyS'gey %E0 |8l y61'S Siy'S %6'62- |9€€'e- LGS'61 68822 %0'92- |ZlE6- S¥S'92 298'ce EJlUBZUEW €0
%9'8 9Y6CL L12°€91 LEE'0SL %E0 |1 800°C 100'C %S'/2- |208'L- 6v.L'y 1LGG'9 %y [Lvl'L- $8E’S SeL'L SpIsueadQ/sHEISN 20
%l'6 £95°ce 960'€8C  €6V'6SC %E0 |EL v18'E L08'€ %E€e- |opL'e- 29.'9¢ 206've %E'GL-  |6¥9'E- €102 zz8'ee doojumo] LO
BUCN B ELE]
%07CL-  |PLP'SE- €EP'869  L06'€6.L %8 LL- [9E8'L- 95t 26201 %c 0c- |G8C°E- 000'€lL G829l %E 0L~ |PEY'EP- G108  6PSEch dva teiol
%¥'6L- 1997201~ v¥8E'SZF  LS0'8ZS %V'v2Z- |609°L- v.16'v 2859 %E’LC- |S6L°L- 8Ly 1159 %Z'LL- |602 Y- 9/5'0S€  ¥8LY6E S9pid MN
%L'C 6L’ 0S0'€/Z  988'S92 %L'9-  |1CC z8r'e 60.'¢ %E'GL- |06¥°L- 812'8 80.'6 %LC  |SLL 0vS'6e §9.'82 9piy-v-elg
DINDS 3pId-v-eld
ERIVET T Tq M RERINEVET g 1500 [B101 1500 [E10L. souslayiq | @ousiaylg  sinoH SINOH @ouaIsIq | eoualsiq sibusseq  sibussey 90UBIBYI | BOUBIBYIQ ONUSADY  BnNUBARY uny/sinoy

JuaoIed junowy juaolied junowy EVSEIS ELITNEI juaolied junowy JuadIed | unowy ale a4

Le/oe oc/el 1¢/0e oc/el 12/0c oz/el Lz/0z oc/el

1202 4dv nuy) 1202 Jdv nay L 120z 4dv nuyL 120z 4dy niy |

L2/0Z Ad 03 02/6LAd

1oU3s1q uonepodsuel ] AJuUnos yoowejjil

1%



%S0 (Be0el) €8G'2/5C  229°065C SIS0D) [ejoL
1£95  $ %00L woud snid - SIS0D pesyiar0
yTIs % ojey ApnoH Yoeo) %6 kL 18E'€Y 085'965 961°€ES S1500 103117
%6'8C PEaLIBAQ SNId sng Jews %Z'E- (800°31) LIE'LPP'L  BLE'68Y'L sjs00) paseg AunoH
9,68 § ajey Aunoy ueAuIpy %0'S- (z1'8e) 269'6€S ¥01'899 SIS0 paseg abealin
%Z € s|soQ PaIg sNid oud peaussAQ lenjoy %6'G" (019'L5) £6Z've8 £06'5.8 abeayipy
z58e 8 sjey AnoH [enjoy o souBled  9dUBIBHId 12/02 0z/6L uondudssq
wuonejnaje) ajey AlInoH %01 snid snid uonenoes ajw sad 3500 usdI84  unowy 12/0Z Ad ©1 0Z/6LAd
1509 uonensje) uonessdQ sng [e1dadg 1zoz Ay ybnoiayl glA uosuedwon
¢ sbedq
%bLL  [88°0 16'G £0'G %68l |%b i~ %L 6L %9€C %6 ve- 60 8T L€ %L'8 889 08's8 Z6'8L S82IAIRS JBUIO 110 L
%0€9- |20 vr0 gLl %28 |%6 L %L1 %56 %Z 05 e e v's %E9  |12Y 9v'1L 519 S8DIAIBS JAYIO [BIOL
%000k~ |¥G b 000 Vel %0001~ |%0 ki~ %00 %0 b %L 25 9z €C 6V %LY  |1€ SE1L ¥1°89 uonesadQ sng [eroads
%Ly |2E0 00’} 89°0 %GLT- %61 %6 %L'9 %09t~ 0 st 59 %E6 |09 89'LL 09'69 suaddu |
SIS U0,
%EE 910 0LV S8 %8BT | %99 %88 %EGL %9 vE- 60 D e %90l |0Z6 9966 9v'98 SIS RGN
%ETh  |8L0 091 EaD %8 LT |%L 1" %LT %8'€ %L 8C- L0 E £C %60l |€€6 986 £5°G8 3pUOY PUBID X0L
%C0 100 69°C 69°C %9'8E- | %8'E- %0'9 %8'6 %E'ZE- V- ze €€ %66 (668 £5°66 $5°06 woles X09
%wyz |zzo 676 126 %Sy | %9 Th %ZG1 %8 LT %L 0t~ 0L S s %LLL |86 5526 0g'e8 pueLOd 50
R
%0ZL |00 €Lt SO'L %L6Z- | %EC %b'S %L L %682~ 9l- 0v 9 %28 |29 ] S8/ 2oy pajelraq (el L
%L 6L |6CO 8 €51 %EVE-  |%V e %S ¥ %6 9 %9 0%~ 91" €2 8¢ %LL  |£59 G016 €578 A5 162U 0
%S [200 o'l 621 %BLE  |%LT- %L'G %b'8 %1°0¢- gL g¢ 'S %8 |9g9 £9'v8 12°8L BllUEZUBI €0
%Ty |50 €Ll 60} %r0E- %L %E'E %L %8'L2- 60 v £e %8 |69 zei8 €L'GL apISUEsdQ/SHEIRN 20
%y0L (200 SL0 89'0 %bTe  |%LT %b'L %Z6 %962~ e 0L A %L8  |96°G YL 1289 dooumo] 1o
Sinoy polEinsg
%Pk |€C€ vZ'6C 10'9¢ %0C  |%LL %b v %E €S %8T 00 Sl E %bL  |9v'S 09°Z8 7 gva eog
%LeC |6CEl 1€eL 2008 %Z 0L |%LZ %V 8 %8 VL %8 € 00 oL 0L %99  |0ES 2558 zz 08 SapRy MN
%ELZ  [£9°0 65°€ 962 %00 %00 %80k %801 %8'6- €0 vz 9z %y6  (vL9 zr'sL 1912 apIy-v-Ielq
83IATES SpTg-v-eid
HIQ WUBsd | gig Junowy EICE aleq Qg wedsad | mg junowy oney oney Hd uadiad | Yyig unowry JNoH/ INOH/ W usded | yigqunowy sy AnoH ajey ApnoH uny/eInoy
abesany abessay x0galey xogaie 1Busseyq JBusseq
12/0z 0z/6l 1z2/02 0261 1z/0z oz/eL 1e/oz 0Z/61
120z 4dv iy | 1202 4dy niy L 1202 4dv nuy | 1202 2dy nuy L

uosledwos aouewWIOdd 3)eq 0} JedA

12/02 A4 01 02/6LAd

Jo1s1g uoneodsuel] AJuno yoowelli|

T4



NWCONNECTOR

Coordinating Committee - Meeting

May 14, 2021

Tillamook County Transportation District

3600 3™ St
Tillamook, OR
10:00 am—12:00 pm

Join Zoom Meeting:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84555318692

12532158782
Meeting ID: 8455531 8692

Agenda
10:00— . .
10:05a 1. Introductions. Welcome to guests. Doug Pilant
2. Consent Calendar (Action items)
. = April 16, 2021 Meeting Minutes {Attached) .
iggia *  April 2021 Financial Report Doug Pilant/All
- = Ridership Tracking
®»  Updating NWConnector Performance Measures
3. NWOTA Standing Items
» Markt?tl:ng: Mary Mc
10:15— - Visitor Pass/in'fOTmatlon Card Update Tritlium
10:30a —  Facebook Statistics
%  Website
—  Trip Planner Update Trillium
10:30— . . g
11:30a 4. Calculating Average Passenger Miles Workshop Doug Pilant/All
5. GermFogger Proposal for Disinfecting Equipment
11:30— ;
= Updates Doug Pilant/All
11:45a L
= Finalize contract amount
11:45— i )
12:00a 6. Other Business and Member Updates Doug Pilant/All
Attachments:

April 16, 2021 Meeting Minutes

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities. Ifa
sign language interpreter is needed, please call Mary McArthur at 503.397-3099 at least 48 hours prior to the

meeting.

www.nwconnector.org

5

Tillamaok County Columbia Lincoln Benton
Transportation County County Area
District Ridar Transit Transit

NSIT

BENTON AREA
TRA

E

L o
61

L2

— .

Sunset Empire
Tr.msportation
District

15



NW Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA)
Coordinating Committee Meeting Minutes (via Zoom)
April 16, 2021
Tillamook County Transportation District
Tillamook, OR

1. Introductions: Doug Pilant, Coordinating Committee Chair, opened the meeting. Meeting attendees
included:
— Brad Dillingham—Benton Area Transit
—  Paul Lewicki—Sunset Empire Transportation District
— Doug Pilant—Tillamook County Transportation District
— Cynda Bruce—Lincoln County Transitb
—  Arla Miller, Ken Shonkwiler—ODOT
- luliet Eldred—Trillium Transit
— Ayreann Colombo, Mary McArthur—Col-Pac EDD

2. Consent Calendar: Unanimously approved. {JD/CB)
= March 19, 2021 Meeting Minutes—No changes.

®»  March 2021 Financial Report—Changes: Quarterly administrative costs, Website maintenance
costs, and Facebook marketing.

= Ridership Performance Report—Postponed until May to be able to compare a full year of
ridership pre and during pandemic.

* Calculating Average Passenger Miles Progress—Workshop was'set to be held on May 14™, and
move the full board meeting to May 14" as well.
3. NWOTA Standing ltems:
= Marketing—Visitor Pass/Information Card. Coast Printing provided the following quotes:

Information Card—Amount 1000. 4x6, 2sided color $155.00
Visitor Pass—Amount 1000. 3.5x4 2sided color, #'d and scored $490.00

Partners.concurred and Mary will get ordered. Partners would like to use the map in all of the
shelters. Map is reprintable and.scalable to any size. Gillespie can print for large size maps. A
vender in Corvallis can make custom size racks for cards. Doug will send the vendor contact
information to everyone.

Travel Studio is really interested in getting Car-Free Travel marketing out. There have been
concerns about encouraging tourism during a pandemic. Also, interested in knowing whether
capacity is an issue, for existing local riders. SETD—capacity it a big concern. People seem to be
out and about more. TCTD reported a bus from Banks to the Coast being full. May have to go to
consider requiring reservations for both Portland/Salem. First come first serve. ODOT—May be
a little early to encourage visitor transit travel. Don't see the Governor opening up transit
capacity any time soon. Still operating under restricted travel. Consensus to wait.

Mary introduced Juliet to Nan Devlin who has been running the North Coast Tourism Studio.
Juliet sent out spreadsheet that included destinations reached by bus. Nan Devlin will be the
source for Tillamook County destination contacts, perhaps Cape Kiwanda. Brad will be meeting
with the local museum and bring this up. Also, he is recommending contacting OSU. Cynda—
Recommended Yaquina Bay Lighthouse. Aquarium with 150,000 Facebook followers will be the
best. May be some other historic sites. John—Will send out Juliet’s spreadsheet to all Columbia

NWOTA April 16, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 1|Page



County commissioners and department heads. Will need to see if SETD has followed up with
Juliet. Perhaps, Columbia River Maritime Museum. Mary check with Juliet and follow up if
needed.

Website Budget:

— Arla reported that ODOT will not be paying the $7,500 for GTFS? Nor will the vendor
shorten the subscription cost if a full year isn’t needed.

4. GermFogger Proposal for Disinfecting Equipment

Brad—Wasn't too sure at first. After the demo, the equipment really seems to work, even as
the pandemic winds down. Demo’d the sling, backpack and the full machine that can do
multiple buses at once. Found that the sling fit BAT's needs well. Do a lot of demand response,
and a lot of time in between runs. Can quickly sanitize between runs.»Can store in the buses.
Would be great to have.

Cynda—After seeing yesterday’s demo, the large unit seefed so clunky and.unnecessary. The
slings seem really convenient. Have different areas where buses are parked. The back packs are
pretty heavy. The slings disinfect very quickly {1 whole bus in 30 seconds). Larger machine
probably is more effective but less flexible. Sanitary system is good marketing for safe transit.
John—Concur with others regarding the larger machines and plumbing required.” Makes the
mobile units more appealing. Have a couple of buses thatstay away from the transit center for
a period of time. Could imagine getting several of the slings..Maybe a couple of batteries or
two. Kind of wish the pump were a little more powerful. But demo went well, very quick.
Paul—When started talking to Creative, there weren’t many products available in a timely
manner. With sling, would lose capacity.of sanitation records. Although, that may not be as
important as move into preventive vs survival mode. Like being able to purchase 15 of the slings
for the same cost of one of the larger machinés. Newer, perhaps more practical solution.
Doug—Also disappointed that Creative didn’t get their proposal in on time. GermFogger was
genuinely interested in the NWConnector project. Don’t want to deal with the complexities of
plumbing buses. Would like to get the unit that can be moved around and do muitiple buses,
plus a couple of slings. "Also have vehicles parked remotely that don’t get to Tillamook that
often, so slings would be good for them. Most of Tillamook buses come in and out of transit
centerand always have time between runs. Could easily sanitize the buses between runs at the
Transit Center.

Total grant amount is $187,800 and the deadline was extended through September. Record low
level of flu and other transmitted viruses this year because of sanitation and masks. Can clean
the Transit Center as well. Will go a long way toward promote public safely. Arla—Request a
Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS). May have riders concerned about the chemicals being used.
Thad can put in touch with suppliers so will have a broader selection of chemicals being used.
Next steps—Thad will circle back and see what is needed by each partner and then geta new
cost estimate. Purchase of the chemicals is in the original scope for the grant. Question—
Consumable parts—may want to get extras. Nozzles. Bags are reusable, but might a good idea
to restock those.

Mary to contact regarding which chemicals they use. Important to partners:

¢ No chemical build-up
e Clean smell {no Lysol/evergreen type of smell
o Chemical sensitivities from riders?

NWOTA April 16, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 2|Page

1



5. NWOTA Management Plan

TCTD has conducted a comprehensive fare policy analysis. Attempted to simplify the existing
fare structure and align with other NWOTA partners. Hopeful to use new technologies to
coordinate dial-a-ride services to solve first/last mile transit needs. Looking forward to watching
Sunset’s and Benton/Lincolns move to automated ticketing. Hopeful that TCTD can move to
mobile ticketing using the same technology.

Tribes said they don’t have staff to commit to meetings. However, because of their significant
financial contribution to the Coastal Connector services they perceive themselves as ex-officio
members. Potential interest in Yamhill County Transit, as they are in the center of the
NWConnector system. Florence through LCOG would like to attend one of NWOTA's meetings.
May be interested in becoming a member.

Explore expectations and options to add new partners. Maybe different Jevels of commitment.
(Pull from Management Plan) Be sure they have the same vision and same.commitment.

Big factor in success is the partners working together. Have a lot of trust and mentorship among
the partners.

Think about potential system improvements in case the Federal Infrastructure bill passes this
Fall.

6. Other Business and Partner Updates
No additional updates to report.

Recorded: Mary McArthur, Col-Pac EDD and NWOTA Coordinator

NWOTA April 16, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes 3|Page

1%



| :293eq aouBleA 39 103png 1A/ Hoday qOg Alquopn

%66 6L €IEI9BE] 00000861 L8'98€°6S LU6TLTl 000

mx.mo.c 00°0STTy 00°0ST°SH 00'000°€ 000 000

%00°0 00°05TTh 00°05T°Tv 000 000 00°0
%00°001 000 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ 00°0 000

%169¢ €1°€9€°96 00°0SLTST L8'98€°9¢ L1'6TLCI 00°0

Aﬂooo.o 00°000°S 00°000°¢ 00°0 L9911y 000 -
%000 (€8°L8%°7) 000 €8°L8P°T 00°0 000

%vl'LE 00v¥1°LY 00°000°GL 00'9¢8°LT 00°05T9 000

%vL 6 00'685°1¢ 00°000°6€ 0011+ L9916 000

%9998 00°000°1 00°005°L 00°005°9 00°629 000

%19°¢9 91'¢60°6 007000°¢T ¥8'¥06°S1 £€°€80°C 000

%CEY 08'TT0°S 00°0ST°¢ 0T'LTT 0s°LEY 000

%80°0L (00°S¥T'65) 00°000°861 NSYATS 000 00°000°6
SLLYEL 00°S€T°CT 007000°%9 00°$€T°98 000 000
%00°001 00°0 00°000°C1 00°000°C1 00°0 000

%C¥ 96 (00°005°1) 00°000°CY 00°005°0F 00°0 00°000°6
%0070 (00°000°08) 00°000°08 00°0 00°0 00°0

%E8 Q0UBLIB A 123png [e10], [emoy 123png poliag [en1dy poLnd
198png [0, Ied A JU2LINYD) jua.Ln)) juauny)

120T/0€/y USnoIy ], 120Z/1 /¥ wol]
BI[[V }SueL], UOSDI(Q) 1SOMULION - §()

1USWIR)S [BIOURUL]

PLNSI( uoneyrodsuely, Ayuno)) yoowre[L ],

0816
0cle6

0zczes
961¢
161¢
061¢
(4089
[01¢
00l¢s

816¥
L6V
Y447
00¢¢€

NV TTTL-0L 17/21/S =2red

sasuadxq |e10]
SI9Jsuel] [B10],
[ed pung Buipur pojendoiddeun
pun, [elouar) 0} IaJsuel]
SIajsuet ]
SOOIAISG PUR S[BLIAIEIA [BIO],
Sulurel] 2 [oABL],
192[01J $S200V JSurl],
uB1S9g-9Y 211SqIM
Sunayrepw
QOUBUSIUIRIN 1S
uoddng sapensiuupy
S901AIIS [BUOISSAJOIJ
SOOIAIDG PUE S[BLISIBIA]
sasuadxyg

$92IN0SY [RI0 ],
pun.f LIS woiy Igjsuel],
pun [BI2U3L) WO J9jsuel],
IIBIA] 1U0D) dUR] VIOMN
fende) Sunyiop

S22IN0SIY

19



For the Board Meeting of May 20, 2021
Agenda ltem # 11

MEMO TO: TCTD BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FROM: DOUG PILANT, GENERAL MANAGER Dﬁa/ '
SUBJECT: STATUS OF DIAL-A-RIDE SERVICES

Issue

Citizen requesting that TCTD offer Dial-A-Ride services to senior citizens in Tillamook
County.

Background and Findings

1.

On April 16" TCTD received a letter (included as Attachment A) from Larry
Stephens “requesting dial-a-ride services be offered to senior citizens like Pat
Patterson so they will have options for transportation at least once a week for
necessities, etc.” on April 16, 2021.

The following week Mr. Stephens submitted a Letter to the Headlight Herald that
was published on April 27, 2021, which has been included as Attachment B. Mr.
Stephens said, “dial-a-ride services in South County have been “reduced
drastically over the past several years” and then endorsed TCTD candidates (Mary
Johnson and Director Adler) who were running to be elected on the campaign
promise to enhance the services for Mr. Patterson and others in similar situations.
Mr. Stephens then referenced his letter (Attachment A) being sent to the TCTD
Board of Directors. Mr. Stephen concludes his letter by stating the TCTD Board
and General Manager to seriously begin addressing this concern.

TCTD Operations Superintendent Brent Olson conducted an investigation to
determine the reason(s) Mr. Patterson does not have access to the District’s dial-
a-ride service. This research included searches for trip requests in both the
Ecolane and Transit Ace scheduling and dispatching databases. The trip history
search concluded:

a. Mr. Patterson’s profile was uploaded from Transit Ace into Ecolane on
February 27, 2018. There are no records of any trip requests or trip
denials since his profile data was uploaded into the Ecolane database.

b. The Transit Ace database revealed Mr. Patterson scheduled 4 trips in
June and July of 2017. Dial-a-ride provided Mr. Patterson 2 trips while he
“No Showed” the dial-a-ride drivers on the 2 remaining trip requests.

The TCTD dispatchers reported they have never met Mr. Patterson and said he
has never called them to schedule Dial-A-Ride trips. The dispatchers reported
that during the COVID-19 pandemic they are regularly scheduling trips for 5 to 10
South County residents each week. They estimate dial-a-ride provides these
riders 20 to 25 trips per week. They reported their last customer living along
Sand Lake Road in Tierra Del Mar was recently moved to an assisted living
facility. The dispatchers said they have been able to accommodate the vast
majority of all South County trip requests for the past 3-years.



For the Board Meeting of May 20, 2021
Agenda ltem # 11

5. TCTD has marketed dial-a-ride services by purchasing weekly advertisements in
the Pacific City Sun for the past 3-years. The purpose of these ads is to help
local residents be aware dial-a-ride service is available for a variety of trip
purposes. For the past 18-months the 3 advertisements listed in Attachment C
have been rotated on a weekly basis.

6. The District also periodically posts advertisements on Facebook targeted to
reach South County residents to create an awareness of the dial-a-ride service.

7. The TCTD FY 2019-2021 STIF Plan allocated $30,000 in STIF monies to fund
driver benefits for both North and South County dial-a-ride services.

8. The TCTD FY 2021-2023 STIF Plan recommends continuation of funding driver
payroll benefits as well as funding for additional dial-a-ride services because the
South County geographic area is large with a very low population density.

Conclusion

Historically South County dial-a-ride service availability was limited to volunteer driver
days and hours they were willing to work. Dial-a-ride service availability was also
seasonal due to them spending the winter months in Arizona or California. This lack of
reliable driver availability resulted in unreliable hours and days of service in South
Tillamook County. Also, some volunteers would only transport passengers with whom
they had a personal relationship.

Beginning in 2012 the District began providing non-emergency medical transportation
(NEMT) trips to South County riders who qualified for Medicaid. TCTD fulfilled the
NEMT trips primarily with “paid” drivers. Drivers who were assigned to provide NEMT
trips in South County were also assigned to also provide dial-a-ride services.

District staff then became aware of South County residents who did not qualify for
Medicaid needed transportation to medical appointments in Tillamook. In order to
accommodate these trips, the District began offering one-way Dial-A-Ride medical trips
to Tillamook for $12.50.

In February 2018 TCTD implemented Ecolane Demand Response “Computer Aided”
Scheduling and Dispatching software. TCTD has increased dial-a-ride driver availability
as demand for the service has increased.

Staff recommends implementation of the FY 2021-23 STIF Plan and continue exploring
additional ways dial-a-ride services can be marketed to local residents.

o)



Doug Pilant Attachment A

From: Linda Adler <lindamc123@ymail.com>
Sent: Friday, April 16, 2021 3:49 PM

To: Doug Pilant; Jim Huffman

Subject: I received a letter addressed to the board
Attachments: Scan_0009.pdf

Attached you will find a letter from a citizen of Tillamook

Larry Stephens contacted me, requested my address and now | have this letter addressed to the District.

| felt that | should forward to you to distribute, although | am the recipient, it is not addressed only to me.

Has there been any progress enhancing the Dial a ride for those that live on Sand Lake road in South County?
Just curious, anyway do with this what you think best

Linda Adler

&L



April 12 2021
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATON DISTRICT

TILLAMOOK, OREGON 97141

Dear Sirs, My name is Larry Stephens. My wife, son and | moved to Garibaldi on January of 1992. Since
that time | have been very good friends with Pat Patterson. It all began because of the love of trains and
due to the fact that my father worked for Southern Pacific for over 38 years, | had a passion for trains as
did Pat.

Pat asked me if I would like to join the Lions Club, which | did and we worked as conductors on the “Fun
Run Train, on many different occasions. When Pat and Carol had to move to Corvallis, we still stayed in
touch. As you can see Pat has been a very special friend for many years and | have tried to help him
promote his special interests whenever | can.

Since he has been living on Sand Lake Road, we have gone to lunch at the Bear Creek Artichoke Café.
Last month we made plans to visit the café. | told him that | would pick him up at 4:PM and we would
go the café for a sandwich. When [ arrived at his tiny house, his red car was gone!! That really
concerned me to say the least! At 97 years old, my dear friend Pat, should not be driving on that busy
101 highway!! | tried to call him and didn’t get a response, so | decided to drive over to the Artichoke
Café to see if perhaps he was confused and thought we were to meet at the Café. There he was sitting
in his car waiting for me. Pat could easily ended up in a deadly crash with his poor hearing and eye
sight.

The point of this letter is to encourage the Tillamook County Transportation District to please offer a
Dial-a-Ride service to seniors like Pat Patterson so they will have options for transportation at least once
a week for the necessities, etc. There are many good hearted people in the county that would be more
than willing to volunteer as drivers for Tilamook County Transportation District.

Thank you for taking the time to read about my concerns regarding our valued Senior Citizens in
Tillamook County.

Respectfully, Larry Stephens

e

&




LETTERS TO THE EDITOR

Dial a Ride
services needed
iri South County

_ This letter is written by
Larry Stephens with Pat
Patterson regarding the need
for providing Dial a Ride
setvices in South County
for those seniors such as
rat who is 97 years old who
ias been greatly missing
dial a ride since it has been
reduced drastically over
the past several years. It is
also a letter to support two
wandidates who are running
for election or reelection to

‘Fillamook Co Transportation

Pistrict who are dedicated
‘forenhancing the services for

Pat and others in similar situ-
ations. A formal letter to the
TCTD Board has been sent
by Larry Stephens address-
ing this very urgent need

on behalf of Pat and others.
Pat Patterson was one of the
original elected Board Mem-
bers of TCTD from its incep-
tion to the year 2005, who
was one of the early “Friends
of the Wave” who helped to
form and establish the Tilla-
mook County Transportaton
District It was started after a
property tax was passed for
it to become a stand-alone
agency to serve the needs of
citizens. This was especially
“important for the seniors and
disabled who did not have
their own mode of transpor-

il Sce LETTERS, Continued

He also knew of Linda Adler
who is a neighbor in the
South County and endorses

her as well for reelection

for position 3 on the TCTD
Board as she strongly sup-
ports more services to be
provided to seniors such as
himself needing dial a ride
or other transportation.
‘What was very much con-
cerning to Larry Stephens
and Mary as he arrived on
the scene for taking the
photos, was that Pat was so
enthusiastic about meet-
ing Mary and getting ready
for the photo shoot, that
Pat went ahead and drove
his own vehicle down to
Sandlake store to get there
ahead of time instead of
waiting for Larry to pick
him up which Larry was
hoping to do. As Pat shared
more about not wanting to
be housebound every day, he

Attachment

tation available.

As Pat had made contact
with Mary Johnson with Lar
ry to endorse her candidacy
she agreed to meet him next
to the Sandlake Store where
Pat loves to have coffee with
friends, and also where he
donated an authentic Chi-
nook Totem Pole that would
soon be erected and installed
at that location. They took
a photo together for Mary’s
campaign as he enthusiasti-
cally wanted to endorse her
for Position 5 for the TCTD
Board and he knew she
would be willing to support
enhanced transportation
services to Scuth County.

B8 See LETTERS, This Page

did share that he really really
wanted to get a dial a ride
service back again where he
could use it at least once a
week for his own safety and
good transportation. We as
a group being so thankful
for his wonderful time and
caring support were ex-
tremely concermed for Pat’s
own safety and well-being.
‘We realized we sincerely
wanted for him to have safe
transportation into the future
as he is a treasure to us all.
We hope the Transporta-
tion District Board will read
our letter we have sent to
the Board and the GM for
TCTD to begin seriously
addressing this concem.
Sincerely,

Pat Patterson — Past
Board Member TCTD
Larry Stéphens -

Pat’s Friend and
Concerned Citizen

Bl Sec LETTERS, Page 6

Yo R



Attachment C

Use D‘ial--Ride
- to catch
The Wave!

When using this service to ride The Wave, your Dial-A-Ride is free!

Door-to-Door service available for
Pacific City, Cloverdale, Hebo, Beaver,
Neskowin and Tierra Del Mar

Advance reservations recommended and can be scheduled
up to two weeks in advance. Service on Dial-A-Ride
is scheduled on a first-come, first-served basis.

Dial-A-Ride

A Service of Tiltamook County Transportation District

To schedule rides, call 503-815-8283
Monday-Friday, 8 a.m.-5 p.m.

= S

For more details,
visit tillamookbus.com.

Page 10 - PACIFIC CITY SUN



Use Dial-A-Ride
to visit family
| and friends! |

When using this service to ride The Wave, your Dial-A-Ride is free!l

Door-to-Door service available for
Pacific City, Cloverdale, Hebo, Beaver,
Neskowin and Tierra Del Mar

Advance reservations recommended and can be scheduled
up to two weeks in advance. Service on Dial-A-Ride
is scheduled on a first-come, first-served basis.

Dial-A-Ride

A Service of Tillamock County Transportation District

To schedule rides, call 503-815-8283
Monday-Friday, 8 a.m.-5 p.m.

i For more details, |
visit tillamookbus.com. |

PACIFIC CITY SUN « Page 9

D



Use Dial-A-Ride
to go grocery
shopping!

When using this service to ride The Wave, your Dial-A-Ride is free!

Door-to-Door service available for
Pacific City, Cloverdale, Hebo, Beaver,

Neskowin and Tierra Del Mar

Advance reservations recommended and can be scheduled
up to two weeks in advance. Service on Dial-A-Ride

is scheduled on a first-come, first-served basis.

Dial-A-Ride

A Service of Tillamook County Transportation District

To schedule rides, call 503-815-8283
Monday-Friday, 8 a.m.-5 p.m.

For more details,
visit tillamookbus.com.

PACIFIC CITY SUN - Page 5



Regular Meeting 4/22/2021
Tillamook County Transportation District e
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Thursday, April 22, 2021 - 6:00PM
Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR
Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order: Board Chair James Huffman called the meeting to order at 6:00pm
2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors (all Directors attended virtually)
Jim Huffman, Board Chair
Marty Holm, Vice Chair
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer
Judy Riggs, Director
Melissa Carlson-Swanson, Director
Linda Adler, Secretary
Jackie Edwards, Director

TCTD Staff

Doug Pilant, General Manager (in person)
Brent Olson, Superintendent (in person)
Tabatha Welch, Finance Supervisor (in person)
Brandy Leamon, Office Specialist (in person)

Absent
Cathy Bond, NW Rides Brokerage Manager

Guest

Arla Miller, ODOT Regional Transit Coordinator
Kathy Kleczek, NW Transportation Options
Chris Kell, Public at Large

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: Revised agenda was distributed

5. Public & Guest Comments: none

6. Executive Session: none

7. Public Hearing opened at 6:03pm — First reading of Ordinance #21-02: Establishing
TCTD Fare Zones; Fare Categories; and, an Effective Date. Two public comments

were received and read into record. Public Hearing closed at 6:09pm.

REPORTS

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

1

fo)e



Regular Meeting 4/22/2021

8. Financial Report: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the March 2021 financial reports. The
District has completed 75% of the Fiscal Year.

9. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Doug Pilant provided an overview of the
YTD operations performance measures. YTD Ridership overall has decreased -34%
change over the previous year. The YTD passengers per hour are down 28.5%: the
cost per trip is up 54.9% while the cost per hour was up 10.7% and the fare box
recovery was down 24.1%.

10.Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Doug Pilant reviewed the NWOTA meeting
agenda, minutes, and finance report with the Board. The Committee approved the FY
2021-22 NWOTA Budget and discussed the next steps for the bus sanitation project.
The Coordinating Committee is scheduled a workshop meeting on May 14% to finalize
the bus sanitation equipment purchase. The next Coordinating Committee monthly
meeting is scheduled for Friday, May 21, 2021.

11.Planning & Development:
a. Cape Kiwanda Master Plan — No report.
b. Fare Policy: Second Reading of Ordinance #21-02 scheduled for May 20t
c. Deviated Fixed Route/ADA Fare Policy — No report
d. Champion Park Apt — Selection of Jacobs Engineering Group by direct
appointment to perform the planning and design for the bus shelter facility.

12.Grant Funding:
a. STIF/STF Consolidation — No report
b. STIF Discretionary — No report
c. Section 5310 — Delivery of Ford Transit in next few weeks.
d. Grant funding — The ODOT PTAC approved grant projects. Next step is for
Oregon Transportation Commission to approve projects in May. Should have
all grant agreements ready for approval in June.

13. Facility/Property Management:

a. HVAC system — HVAC manufacturer sent a consultant to conduct a site visit.
The consultant determined an excessive amount of ammonia in the
atmosphere along with salt air caused corrosion within the compressor that
resulted in a failure. JNB Mechanical provided 2 options; repair the
compressors or replace them. JNB Mechanical highly recommended Option
#2. They reported the compressors must be removed from the foundation and
completely dismantled to replace their reverse valves. JNB said once these
units are dismantled, they generally have chronic issues until they are replaced.
The cost to repair is $10,154 compared to $23,530 to replace them.

b. Downtown Transit Center — All documents now at title company.

c. Alternative Fuel Facility — Blue Star Gas has submitted their proposal. Included
is a resolution on the agenda for approval. Proposal was within the grant
budget.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

2



Regular Meeting 4/22/2021
14.NW Ride Brokerage:

a. The “Notice to Cancel” previous BPA was sent to all NEMT providers. Columbia
County has expressed an interest in being added to Ecolane as a user. This
would be a win-win for the brokerage and for Columbia County.

b. Rural Veterans Transportation Grant: From January to March there were 80
trips provided to veterans.

c. Miscellaneous - None

CONSENT CALENDAR
15. Motion to Approve the Minutes of the March 18, 2021 Regular Board Meeting
16.Motion to Accept Financial and Operations Reports: March 2021

Motion by Director Holm to adopt the Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Director

Adler, Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called for
the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

ACTION ITEMS

17.Motion to Approve Resolution #21-12 In the Matter of Declaring and Disposing surplus
Property.

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Motion by Director Holm to Approve Resolution #21-12 In the Matter of Declaring and

Disposing surplus property. Motion Seconded by Director Edwards. Board Chair
Huffman called for further discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carison-Swanson, Riggs

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

18.Motion to Approve Resolution #21-13 In the Matter of Authorizing the General
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Blue Star Gas to purchase Propane Fuel,
Propane Equipment, Propane Facility Construction and Related Services

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Motion by Director Edwards to Approve Resolution #21-13 In the Matter of Authorizing

the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with Blue Star Gas to purchase propane

fuel, propane equipment, propane facility construction and related services. Motion

Seconded by Director Carlson Swanson. Board Chair Huffman called for further
discussion; followed by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs

Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

3

Ao



Regular Meeting 4/22/2021

19.Motion to Approve Resolution #21-14 in the Matter of Authorizing the General
Manager to Execute a Service Agreement with Jacobs Engineering Group to plan
and design the Champion Park Apartments bus shelter facility.

GM Doug Pilant explained the Resolution to the Board.

Motion by Director Holm to Approve Resolution #21-14 in the Matter of Authorizing the
General Manager to Execute a Service Agreement with Jacobs Engineering Group to
plan and design the Champion Park Apartments bus shelter facility. Motion Seconded by
Director Carlson Swanson. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion: followed
by none, he called for the vote.

MOTION PASSED

By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs
Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

20. Motion to authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with JNB
Mechanical, not to exceed $25,000.00 to replace HVAC system. Discussion:
Director Adler suggested inquiring if there was a warranty rider that could be
purchased to cover the environmental risks. Doug said that was great idea and
would request to see if this could be possible. Board Chair Huffman asked about the
protectant for the equipment. Doug explained there is a sealant that would be used
to protect the equipment from corrosion. Director Holm asked if the warranty would
be invalidated by adding a sealant. GM Doug Pilant said he will verify that before
moving forward. Hanenkrat asked if $23,530 was the correct amount. GM Doug
Pilant said this was the correct amount.

Motion by Director Adler Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with
JNB Mechanical, not to exceed $25,000.00, to replace the HVAC System. Motion
Seconded by Director Edwards. Board Chair Huffman called for further discussion;
followed by none, he called for the vote.
MOTION PASSED
By Directors Hanenkrat, Holm, Carlson-Swanson, Riggs
Edwards, Adler and Board Chair Huffman.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

21.Board Staff Comments/Concerns
GM Doug Pilant: Shared a joke.
Superintendent Brent Olson: None.
Finance Supervisor Tabatha Welch: Reminder of Budget Committee coming up.
asked if anyone didn’t receive budget to let her know so she can get them one.
NWR Brokerage Manager/Board Clerk Cathy Bond: None.
Office Specialist Brandy Leamon: None

22.Board of Directors Comments/Concerns

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker's exact words.

4
A\



Jim Huffman — None
Judy Riggs — None
Marty Holm — None
Jackie Edwards — None
Gary Hanenkrat — None
Linda Adler — None

Regular Meeting 4/22/2021

Melissa Carlson-Swanson — None

UPCOMING EVENTS

Adjournment: Board Chair Huffman adjourned the meeting at 6:51pm.

These minutes approved this 22" day of April, 2021.

ATTEST:

James Huffman, Board Chair

Doug Pilant, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

5

qaL



v

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE BYLAWS

ARTICLE 1
Name

The name of this organization shall be the Tillamook County Transportation District
(TCTD) Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC).

The TAC Bylaws are established for the purpose of carrying out the statutory requirements
as established under ORS 184.761, and the rules establishing the procedures and
requirements for administration of the Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund as set
forth under OAR Chapter 732, Division 40, and for FTA Section 5310 grant funds.

ARTICLE 2
Definitions

The following definitions shall apply to the terms used in these bylaws and the tasks of the
Transportation Advisory Committee.

Area of Responsibility: The geographic area for which each qualified entity is
responsible to provide STIF formula fund money. For a qualified entity that is a
transportation district that does not share continuous jurisdictional boundaries with a
county, such as TCTD, the Area of Responsibility is the geographic area within the
jurisdictional boundaries of the county or counties in which any part of the District is
located.

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advocates: Individuals representing either organizations or
standing committees associated with local governments within Tillamook County which
advocate for and promote bicycle and pedestrian-related issues, goals, projects, or
interests, or which exist to advise local government elected officials on matters related to
bicycle and/or pedestrian traffic safety and enforcement, pathways and travel lanes,
project planning and development, and promote public events.

Employer Representative: Any employee, supervisor, manager, or owner of a business
enterprise legally operating within the boundaries of Tillamook County.

Environmental Advocates: Individuals representing either organizations or standing
committees associated with local governments within Tillamook County which advocate for
any of a wide range of environmental issues, goals, projects, or interests, or which exist to
advise local government elected officials on matters related to the environment or to
environmental features of public property.

High Percentage of Low-Income Households: A percentage of low-income households,
by Census Tract, greater than the overall percentage of low-income households in Oregon,
as determined by the most recent data from the U.S. Census Bureau’s American
Community Survey.

Page 1 of 11 45039-27477 4848-8727-3960.4

A%



Intercommunity Discretionary Fund: Up to four percent of STIF funds to be disbursed
to Public Transportation Providers through a competitive grant funding process, pursuant
to ORS 184.758(1)(c).

Local Government Representative: An employee of a County, municipal, or special
district governmental organization formed and organized under the Oregon Revised
Statutes and operating within the jurisdictional boundaries of Tillamook County.

Low-Income Household: A household whose total income does not exceed 200% of the
poverty guidelines updated periodically in the Federal Register by the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services, also known as the Federal Poverty Guidelines. The Federal
Poverty Guidelines may be found at https://www.healthcare.gov/glossary/federal-poverty-
level-FPL/ and https://iwww.aspe.hhs.gov/poverty-guidelines

Major Destination: A well-known and commonly recognized destination within Tillamook
County, which may either be at one physical location or a group of destination locations
within an industry.

Non-Profit Public Transportation Service Provider Representative: A representative of
a non-profit transportation service engaged in providing public transportation services
within the County, whether or not this entity receives public transportation funding.

Person(s) with Disabilities: Individuals with disabilities which limit or constrain any aspect
of their daily life, and may include, but is not necessarily limited to, physical, intellectual,
cognitive, developmental, and/or emotional disabilities.

Persons With Limited English Proficiency: Persons as defined in Tillamook County’s
Title VI Program adopted by the Board of Directors, who did not speak English as their
original language and who may have limited proficiency in either speaking or
understanding written or spoken English, or both.

Project: A public transportation improvement activity or group of activities eligible for STIF
money and a plan or proposal for which is included in a STIF Plan or in a grant application
to a Qualified Entity or the Agency. Examples of project types include, but are not limited
to: discrete activities, such as purchasing transit vehicles, planning, or operations; and
groups of activities for a particular geographic area or new service, such as a new route
that includes purchase of a transit vehicle, and maintenance and operations on the new
route.

Public Transportation Service Provider: A Qualified Entity or a city, county, Special
District, Intergovernmental Entity, or any other political subdivision of municipal or Public
Corporation that provides Public Transportation Services.

Public Transportation Service Provider Representative: A representative of a publicly
managed transportation service engaged in providing public transportation services within
the County.

Public Transportation Services: Any form of passenger transportation by car, bus, or
other conveyance, either publicly or privately owned, which provides service to the general
public (not including charter, sightseeing, or exclusive school bus service) on a regular and
continuing basis. Such transportation may be for purposes such as health care, shopping,
education, employment, public services, personal business, or recreation.

Page 2 of 11 45039-27477 4848-8727-3960.4

aH



Qualified Entity: A county in which no part of a Mass Transit District or Transportation
District exists, a Mass Transit District, a Transportation District, or an Indian Tribe.

Representative of Educational Institutions: A person who is employed by or on the
Board of Directors of a K-12 public school; chartered or state-licensed private K-12 school,
community college, university, private college, or trade school operating within the
jurisdictional boundaries of Tillamook County.

Representative of Low-Income Individuals: A person representing the needs of low-
income transportation system users, and who is familiar through association with groups or
individuals with special transportation needs of low-income users.

Representative of Major Destinations: An employee, manager or owner of a destination
or representing a destination industry group, or a member of an organization which
promotes tourism within Tillamook County generally.

Representative of Persons with Disabilities: A person or employee or volunteer of an
entity representing the needs of disabled transportation system users, and who, through
association with groups or individuals, or facilities serving persons with disabilities, is
familiar with the special transportation needs of disabled users.

Representative of Persons with Limited English Proficiency: A person or employee or
volunteer of an entity representing the needs of transportation system users with limited
English proficiency, and who is familiar through association with neighborhood groups,
local school groups, social service or non-profit agencies, with the transportation needs of
limited English proficiency users.

Senior: Persons sixty-five (65) years of age or older.

Senior Representative: A person, who may also be a senior, representing the needs of
senior transportation system users, and who is familiar through association with groups or
individuals, or facilities serving seniors, with the special transportation needs of senior
users.

Social and Human Service Provider Representative: A representative of a social
services, human services, or health services agency operating within Tillamook County.
Said agency may be a public agency, a non-profit agency, or a not-for-profit institution
such as a health center.

Social Equity Advocates: Individuals representing either organizations or standing
committees associated with local governments within Tillamook County which advocate for
equity for groups of persons who may be disadvantaged due to but not limited to ethnicity;
income or other economic circumstances; limited English proficiency; homelessness;
citizenship status; gender identity; sexual orientation; or which exist to advise local
government elected officials on matters related to equity.

STIF Formula Fund: Up to 90 percent of the Statewide Transportation Improvement funds
to be disbursed to Qualified Entities conditioned upon the Oregon Transportation
Commission’s approval of a STIF Plan, pursuant to ORS 184.758(1)(a).

STIF or Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund: The fund established under ORS
184.751.

Page 3 of 11 45039-27477 4848-8727-3960 4

ao



STIF Plan: A public transportation improvement plan that is approved by a Governing
Body and submitted to Oregon Department of Transportation for review and approval by
the Oregon Transportation Commission in order for the Qualified Entity to receive a share
of the STIF Formula Fund.

Transit Dependent User: An individual who is dependent on public transportation for
mobility due to economic reasons or due to other special transportation needs.

Transportation Advisory Committee: A committee formed by the Qualified Entity to
advise and assist the Qualified Entity in carrying out the purposes of the STIF and
prioritizing projects to be funded by STIF money received by the Qualified Entity.

ARTICLE 3
Function

Section 1. Purpose: The TAC shall assist the Board of Directors in tasks and duties
supporting local and regional transportation services funded through the State
Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) that are allocated to Tillamook County
Transportation District, for distribution to Public Transportation Service Providers within
and adjacent to TCTD.

Section 2. Major Tasks: The Advisory Committee will:
e Advise TCTD on the development process of STIF Funding Plans;

e Review the proposed distribution of FTA Section 5310 Formula Program money and
make recommendations to TCTD;

e Review STIF Discretionary Grant proposals and make recommendations to TCTD;

o Review and prioritize projects proposed to receive STIF Discretionary and
Intercommunity Discretionary funds with the District's area of responsibility;

e Develop a process for monitoring and evaluating projects to ensure that Public
Transportation Providers that have received funds are applying the funds in
accordance with and for the purposes described within their project proposal; and

e As and if requested, and in the manner directed by the Board of Directors, review
and advise staff on the methodology for distribution of STIF Formula Program funds
allocated to TCTD.

Section 3. STIF Plan Duties: The TAC will perform the tasks consistent with the
administrative requirements set forth under OAR Chapter 732, Division 40:

e Hold public meetings to assist and advise staff with the development of the District’s
STIF Plan, including components of the Plan developed by or for other Public
Transportation Service Providers within the District;

o Gather data and seek public input regarding low-income households within the
District, including those within the corporate limits of municipalities within the
District, and make and publish a determination of where those communities exist for
purposes of guiding the STIF Plan;

Page 4 of 11 4503927477 4848-8727-3960.4

Qo



Review every project proposed for inclusion in the District's STIF Plan and
determine whether to recommend inclusion or rejection of the project for the STIF
Plan;

Advise and assist staff by recommending projects to be included in the STIF Plan;
the priority of each project in the Plan; and the level of project funding to be included
for each project, consistent with the District’s allocation process for the distribution
of Formula Fund money;

Consider the criteria established under OAR Chapter 732, Division 40 when
identifying Projects for inclusion in the STIF Plan, including but not limited to:
expanded service and frequency in areas with a high percentage of low-income
households; improved service connections between communities; reduced
fragmentation of service and closure of service gaps; maintenance of existing
services; and other factors such as geographic equity;

Advise staff regarding the opportunities to coordinate STIF funded projects in the
Plan with other local or regional transportation programs and services;

Recommend to the Board of Directors a STIF Plan which includes the prioritization
of projects proposed for funding within the Plan;

Develop processes for review and monitoring of ongoing funded projects and local
Plans, which may include reporting and site visits to local public transportation
providers receiving STIF project funding; and

If appropriate, propose changes to policies or practices to ensure that the Public
Transportation Service Provider has applied the monies received in accordance
with and for the purposes described in the STIF Plan or project proposal, and that
the project does not unduly fragment the provision of public transportation services.

ARTICLE 4
Membership

Section 1. Number, Qualifications, and Selection of Members: The Committee shall
consist of at least five (5) members appointed directly by the Board of Directors. A list of
current members and the interests they represent is attached to these bylaws and will be
updated as new appointments are made. Member contact information is considered
private and will not be disclosed to any third party unless permission has been provided by
the Committee Member.

TAC Members must meet the following criteria:

Be knowledgeable about the public transportation needs of residents or employees
located within or traveling to and from TCTD or Tillamook County.

Be a person who is a member of or represents one or more of the following:

- Local governments, including land use planners;
- Public transportation service providers;
- Non-profit entities that provide public transportation services;

Page 5 of 11 45039-27477 4848-8727-3960.4

o



- Neighboring public transportation service providers;
-  Employers;

- Public health, social and human service providers;
- Transit users;

- Transit users who depend on transit for accomplishing daily activities;
- Individuals age 65 or older;

- People with disabilities;

- Low-income individuals;

- Social equity advocates;

- Environmental advocates;

- Bicycle and pedestrian advocates;

- People with limited English proficiency;

- Educational institutions; or

- Major destinations for users of public transit.

e The TAC must include at least one member who is a member of or represents each
of the following three groups: (1) low-income individuals, (2) individuals age 65 or
older or people with disabilities, and (3) Public Transportation Service Providers or
non-profit entities which provide public transportation services.

e The TAC shall include members from TCTD’s area of responsibility, both within and
outside district boundaries.

e The Directors will seek to appoint Committee members who represent the diverse
interests, perspectives, geography, and the demographics of the District.

Section 2. Terms of Office: Terms shall be three (3) years. Any member may serve two
(2) successive terms if reappointed by the Board of Directors. Terms begin on July 1 and
end on June 30. Terms shall be staggered, with no more than three members' terms
expiring each year.

Section 3. Member Responsibilities: All Committee members shall regularly attend
meetings of the Committee and any meetings of the subcommittees to which they are
appointed and shall fulfill other duties as appointed by the Chairman.

Section 4. Termination of Membership: The Board of Directors may remove Committee
members as follows:

o Failure to attend three or more consecutive regular Committee meetings. The Board
of Directors may declare a member’s position vacant when the member has had
three (3) unexcused absences in one year;

e \When a member no longer meets the residency requirement;

Page 6 of 11 45039-27477 4848-8727-3960.4



¢ For cause following public hearing, for reasons including but not limited to
commission of a felony, corruption, intentional violation of open meetings law,
failure to declare a conflict of interest, or incompetence.

Section 5. Vacancies: The Board of Directors shall make appointments to fill vacancies
as they occur. Such appointments shall be for the duration of the unexpired term of that
position.

ARTICLE 5
Officers

The following officers shall be elected from the Committee membership during the first
meeting of each calendar year:

Chair: The Chair shall have the responsibility of conducting all meetings and
hearings in an orderly manner. The Chair may not initiate a motion, but
may second, and shall vote on each issue after the question is called.
However, in the event the Chair’s vote shall create a tie, the Chair shall
refrain from voting.

Vice Chair: The Vice Chair shall be responsible for conducting the meetings and
hearings in the absence of the Chair.

ARTICLE 6
Subcommittees

Section 1. Creation of Subcommittees: The Committee shall have the power to create
subcommittees with such responsibilities as the Committee directs.

Section 2. Naming of Subcommittees: The Chair shall appoint and charge each
subcommittee with its responsibilities, shall appoint the members of the subcommittee, and
shall appoint the chair of the subcommittee in the event the subcommittee consists of more
than one person. The subcommittee chair shall be responsible for scheduling meetings,
assigning specific tasks within the mandate of the subcommittee, and reporting to the
Committee concerning the work of the subcommittee.

ARTICLE 7
Advisors

The Committee and the subcommittees may call on lay citizens and professionals as
advisors without voting rights to provide technical assistance, expert guidance and advice,
data support and analysis, provide information for and testify in deliberations, and attend
meetings to the extent deemed appropriate and approved by the Committee and the Chair.

Calling of advisors by the Committee will be coordinated by the Chair or subcommittee
chairs through District staff assigned to the Committee.

Page 7 of 11 45039-27477 4848-8727-3960 4

aa



ARTICLE 8
Meetings

Section 1. Regular Meetings: Meetings shall be held a minimum of two times per year,
but may be held more frequently to carry out the purposes of the Committee. These
meetings shall be held in publicly accessible facilities, and shall take place during transit
operating hours, to facilitate attendance of interested individuals.

Section 2. Special Meetings: Special meetings may be called by the Chair or by the
Board of Directors by giving the members and the press written or verbal notice at least 24
hours before the meeting.

Section 3. Quorum: A simple majority of the appointed, and filled, voting membership
shall constitute a quorum. All business conducted with a majority vote of the quorum shall
stand as the official action of the Committee.

Section 4. Voting: Each Committee member shall have one vote. In the event the
Chair's vote shall create a tie vote, the Chair shall refrain from voting. A Committee
member shall not vote on any funding decision in which they are an applicant for funds.

Section 5. Staff: Administrative staff to the Committee shall be determined by the
District Manager.

Section 6. Agenda: The Chair, with the assistance of District staff, shall prepare the
agenda of items requiring Committee action, and shall add items of business as may be
requested by individual Committee members and/or the Board of Directors. Agendas of all
meetings shall be posted in advance as required under existing District policy and filed
with the Board of Directors.

Section 7. Notice: All members shall be given written notice of the time, date, location,
and purpose of the meetings at least three (3) days before a regular Committee meeting
and written or verbal notice one (1) day before a special meeting. In the event a member
is provided with less than three (3) days written notice of a regular meeting, or less than
one (1) day actual notice of a special meeting, and objects to the proceedings based on a
lack of adequate notice, all business conducted at that meeting shall be reconsidered at
the next regular meeting or at a special meeting called with adequate notice.

Section 8. Minutes: Minutes recording all motions and subsequent action including the
number of yes or no votes on each issue shall be taken. In addition, all conflicts of interest
shall be noted. Minutes of all meetings shall be posted following all meetings as required
under existing District policy and filed with the Board of Directors.

Page 8 of 11 45039-27477 4848-8727-3960 4



ARTICLE 9
Public Records & Meeting Law and Public Engagement

Section 1. Public Records and Meeting Law: The Committee is a public body for the
purposes of ORS Chapter 192 and is subject to the statutory procedures related to Oregon
public records and meetings. Pursuant to OAR 732-040-0030(4)(b), written copies of
Committee meeting notices, agendas, minutes, and bylaws shall be maintained for six (6)
years.

Section 2. Public Engagement: The Committee shall strive to seek public engagement
in all its deliberative processes, with particular regard to the selection of projects for
inclusion and funding in the District STIF Plan. The Committee will work with District staff
to publicize key meetings and hold public forums as needed to ensure maximum public
access to information and public participation in priority-setting exercises.

ARTICLE 10
Parliamentary Procedure

The current edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the Committee where not
inconsistent with these Bylaws or any special rules of order the Committee shall adopt.

ARTICLE 11
Conflict of Interest

A potential or actual conflict of interest shall be declared by any member who has or may
have a conflict of interest as defined by Oregon law (ORS 244.020), prior to taking any
action on the matter causing the conflict. No member shall vote upon any motion which
requires declaration of an actual conflict of interest.

ARTICLE 12
Bylaws and Amendments

Section 1. Bylaws: The Committee shall maintain written Bylaws pursuant to OAR 732-
040-0030 that that include, but are not limited to, name and purpose, number of committee
members, committee membership criteria, appointment process, terms of office for the
committee members, general procedures of the committee, member duties, meeting
schedule, public notice requirements and engagement processes, and the STIF Plan
development process and general decision-making criteria.

Section 2. Review of Bylaws: The Committee shall periodically review its Bylaws and
update them as required, but no less frequently than every three (3) years. Committee
Bylaws will be reviewed by the District Counsel and presented to the Board of Directors for
adoption. The Board of Directors may also elect to review Committee Bylaws at any time.

Page 9 of 11 4503927477 4848-8727-3960.4

\O\



Section 3. Amendments: Committee Bylaws may be amended by the Board of Directors
upon its own motion. Prior to an amendment, the Board of Directors may request a
recommendation from the Committee which may recommend changes at any regular
meeting of the Committee by a two-thirds vote of the appointed and filled membership,
provided that the recommended amendment has been submitted in writing to the
Committee members no later than three days before the regular meeting.

Adopted by TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS on
the 20" day of May 2021.

Page 10 of 11 45039-27477 4848-8727-3960.4

\0Z



Transportation Advisory Committee Roster

Position Name Representing Term Expires

1 Ron Rush Representative of disabled June 30, 2021

2 Carol McAndrew | Senior citizen representative June 30, 2021

3 Robin Taylor Disabled/low-income person June 30, 2021

4 Erin Skaar Representative of low-income households June 30, 2021

5 Stacie Zuercher | Human service provider June 30, 2022

6 Jeff Hazen Neighboring county public transportation June 30, 2022
provider

7 Nicholas Torres | Public health, social and human service June 30, 2023
provider

Chris Kell

Senior citizen representative

June 30, 2022

Page 11 of 11

45039-27477 4848-8727-3960.4

o)



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Repealing Ordinance No. 02; )
Establishing TCTD Fare Zones, )
Categories, and Rates; and )
Establishing an Effective Date ) ORDINANCE NO. 21-02
WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (“District”) is an Oregon
transportation district organized under ORS Chapter 267, with the power to fix and
collect charges for the use of its system; and

WHEREAS, the District has determined that fare zones, categories, and rates (fare
structure) along with an effective date be established to make its transportation services
economically sustainable; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors (“Board”) adopted Ordinance No. 2 with an
effective date of March 1, 2013, establishing District fare zones and fare categories; and

WHEREAS, fare zones, categories, and rates for transportation services shall be
established by the Board from time to time by ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the District conducted an evaluation of its fare zones, categories, and
rates, on May 20, 2021, following a public notice and public hearing the Board has
determined that it is necessary to adopt Ordinance #21-02 to accomplish the District's
goals of making fares simpler and more affordable and enhancing the ability of people
to travel to jobs, shopping, and other destinations across the County.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDAINED:

As of the effective date of this Ordinance, Ordinance No. 2 and all prior Resolutions and
motions are hereby repealed to the extent that the same are in conflict with the
provisions of this Ordinance.

That within seven days after adoption of this ordinance, the enrolled ordinance shall be
filed in the records of the District, and a certified copy shall be filed with the Tillamook
County Clerk.

Section 1: Transportation Fare Zones

For the purposes of determining fare charges for transportation services:

A. The District shall consist of, and operate as a single fare zone for transportation
services within Tillamook County; between Tillamook County and Lincoln County and
between Tillamook County and Clatsop County; and for intercity transportation services
between Tillamook and downtown Portland.

B. The District hereby establishes the following fare zones for intercity transportation
services between Lincoln City, Grand Ronde, and Salem.

\0H



Zone Description

Zone 1 Eastbound-Route 60X: Within Lincoln County
Westbound-Routes 60X/70X: Salem to Rickreall

Zone 2 Eastbound-Route 60X: Lincoln County to Grand Ronde and Spirit Mountain Casino
Westbound-Routes 60X/70X: Salem/Rickreall to Spirit Mountain and Grand Ronde

Zone 3 Eastbound-Route 60X: Lincoln County to Rickreall and Salem
Westbound-Routes 60X/70X: Salem/Rickreall to Lincoln County

Section 2: Fare Categories

TCTD hereby establishes the following Fare Categories for transportation services
provided by or through the District.

Category Description

Full Fare Passengers who do not fall under any other fare category.

Child Fare Passengers up to 12 years of age (inclusive)

Youth Fare Passengers 13 years of age up to 18 years of age (inclusive)

Reduced Fare Passengers age 60+ or who qualify as disabled, according to criteria of TCTD reduced

fare policy. (The District plans to make low-income individuals eligible for a reduced fare
after establishing an eligibility process and criteria.)

Special Program Fare | Passengers using transportation service provided under a special program offered by,
through or on behalf of TCTD.

Section 3: Fare Rates

The fares for each Fare Category are hereby established as the Fares listed on
Attachment A, “TCTD Fare Rates by Passenger Category,” which is incorporated by this
reference.

Section 4: Modifications to Fare Rates

The fares for each Fare Category in Attachment A may be modified by Resolution of the
District Board.

Section 5: Effective Date
The effective date of TCTD Ordinance No. 21-02 will be July 1, 2021

Passed and adopted by the District Board this 20" day of May 2021 and signed by the
Board Chair and Board Secretary in authentication of its passage.

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

First Reading: April 22, 2021

Board Chair
Second Reading: May 20, 2021
Effective Date: July 1, 2021 Board Secretary



ATTACHMENT A
TCTD Fare Structure and Rates by Passenger Category

Reduced Chiid/Youth

~ Full Fare Fare Fare*

Tillamook County Routes (Deviated Fixed Routes)

Single Fare (per route)™ $1.00 $0.50 Free

Day Pass** $3.00 $1.50 Free

Monthly Pass* $30.00 $20.00 Free

Single Fare with Deviation $2.00 $1.50 N/A

Deviation 10-Trip Pass $10.00 N/A N/A
Dial-A-Ride

Single Fare up to 5 miles $4.00 $2.00 $2.00

E?I; iddmonal mile beyond 5 $0.50 $0.50 $0.50
Intercity Route 5 (Portland Coastliner)

Single Fare $15.00 N/A $7.50

10-Trip Pass $120.00 N/A $60.00
Intercity Routes 60X/70X (Coastal Connector)

1 Zone $1.50 $0.75 $0.75

2 Zones $3.00 $1.50 $1.50

3 Zones $6.00 $3.00 $3.00

10 Trip Pass, 1-2 Zone $27 $12 $12

10 Trip Pass, 3 Zone $54 $27 $27

Special Programs

3-Day NWOTA Visitor Pass $25.00 N/A N/A

7-Day NWOTA Visitor Pass $30.00 N/A N/A

* The first two children age 0-12 are free on Dial-A-Ride and intercity routes with a paying adult.
** Additional charge for a route deviation.

Child/Youth Fare and Reduced Fare Criteria

Children and youth age 0-18 are not charged a fare for fixed-route trips within Tillamook
County (including connections to Lincoln City and Cannon Beach), not including
deviation trips, which are charged a reduced fare.

The first two children age 0-12 are not charged a fare when accompanied by a paying
adult. Additional children age 0-12, and youth (age 13-18), are eligible for a reduced
fare on Dial-A-Ride and intercity routes.

Youth age 13-18 may be asked to show a middle or high school student identification
card (or alternative) for age verification.

Passengers who have a long or short-term disability or are 60 years of age or older, are
eligible for the Reduced Fare. The District plans to make low-income individuals eligible
for a reduced fare after establishing an eligibility process and criteria.

\Olw



TCTD Employees, Board Members and State of Oreqon Public Transit Employees

TCTD employees, spouses and dependents are eligible to ride The Wave fixed routes
free with District authorized identification. Employees who have retired after five (5)
years or more in good standing are eligible to ride The Wave fixed routes free with
District authorized identification.

TCTD Board Members, spouses and dependents are eligible to ride The Wave fixed
routes free with District authorized identification. TCTD Board Members who have
served on the board for at least one (1) year are eligible to ride The Wave fixed routes
for free. Board Members removed from office by recall or convicted of a crime related
to their service on the Board are not eligible for this benefit.

Employees of public transit agencies in the State of Oregon are eligible to ride free with
valid identification.

Special Programs

Group Pass Programs will be negotiated on a case-by-case basis with public or private
entities.

Veterans may ride all deviated fixed routes free of charge on Veterans Day with a valid
VA ID Card.

1071



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Execute a STIF Formula )
Agreement with CARE, Inc. for a )
Low Income Bus Pass Program ) RESOLUTION NO. 21-15
WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) is the
designated Qualified Entity (QE) for Tillamook County and receives and distributes
Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) formula program monies; and

WHEREAS, the Transportation Advisory Committee convened on January
21, 2021 to review proposed projects and determined the CARE, Inc. Low Income Bus
Pass Program to be an eligible activity in the District's Fiscal Year 2021-23 STIF Plan;
and

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board accepted the Transportation Advisory
Committee’s recommendations and approved by Resolution 21-01 on January 21, 2021;
and,

WHEREAS, it is necessary to execute the attached agreement with CARE,
Inc. regarding the use of Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund monies;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County
Transportation District Board of Directors:

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors
authorizes a total award of up to $12,000 to CARE, inc. for the provision of bus passes
to Tillamook County individuals residing in households at or below 200% of the federal
poverty threshold; and

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the General Manager to execute the STIF Formula Agreement for the CARE,
Inc. Low Income Bus Pass Program on behalf of the District.
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20t day of May 2021.
ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

|08



COMMUNITY ACTION RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, INC.
STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT FUND (STIF)
FORMULA AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between Community Action Resources
Enterprise, Inc. (“CARE”), an Oregon non-profit corporation, and the Tillamook County
Transportation District (“TCTD”), a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, hereinafter
collectively referred to as “the Parties.” CARE and TCTD intend to contract for Statewide
Transportation Improvement Fund (“STIF”) Formula Funds pursuant to OAR 732-042-

0005.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, the Parties
agree as follows:

1.

STATEMENT OF WORK. CARE will utilize STIF funds to provide bus passes to
Tillamook County residents living in households below 200% of the federal poverty
level. Specifically, CARE will provide transit vouchers to clients for their use to
purchase a monthly bus pass. CARE anticipates serving 240 clients per year
through this award. CARE agrees to comply with all reporting conditions described
in Exhibit A, attached hereto and made part of this Agreement.

CONSIDERATION. TCTD will award CARE Inc. up to $12,000 for the purchase
of regular and reduced bus passes described above in the statement of work. Use
of funds shall be consistent with the above Statement of Work. Payment shall be
made in eight (8) quarterly installments of $1,500, upon receipt and approval of the
quarterly report and supporting documentation.

TERM. This Agreement is effective from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023.

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. The following documents are incorporated into and
made part of this Agreement:

a. Reporting conditions, attached as Exhibit A
b. Reporting form, attached as Exhibit B

SUBCONTRACTS. CARE shall not enter into any subcontracts for the
performance of any part of this Agreement without the review and approval of the
District’'s Transportation Advisory Committee and approval of the TCTD General
Manager.

DUAL PAYMENT. CARE shall not be entitled to compensation or any other form
of duplicate, overlapping, or muitiple payments for the same work performed under
this contract from any other source.

AMENDMENTS. The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered,
modified, supplemented, or amended unless the Parties jointly agree, in writing.

45039-27477 4841-2208-1767.2

109



8.

9.

TERMINATION. The Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent of both
Parties, or by either Party upon 30-day notice, in writing, and delivered by certified
mail or in person. Any such termination of this Agreement shall be without
prejudice to any obligation or liabilities of either party already accrued before such
termination. TCTD may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective
upon delivery of written notice to CARE, or at such later date as may be established
by TCTD, under any of the following conditions:

a. If CARE fails to provide services called for by this Agreement within the time
specified herein or any extension granted by TCTD.

b. If CARE fails to perform any of the other provisions of this Agreement, or so
fails to pursue the work as to endanger performance of this Agreement in
accordance with its terms, and after receipt of written notice from TCTD fails
to correct such failures within ten (10) days or such longer period as TCTD
may authorize.

c. If any license or certification required by law or regulation to be held by
CARE to provide services required by this Agreement is for any reason
denied, revoked, or not renewed.

d. CARE is in default under any provision of this Agreement.
REMEDIES. The rights and remedies of TCTD provided in this Agreement related

to defaults by CARE shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights
and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.

10.ACCESS TO RECORDS. TCTD, the Secretary of State’'s Office of the State of

1.

Oregon, the Public Transit Division of the Oregon Department of Transportation,
or their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the books,
documents, papers, and records of CARE which are related to the performance of
this contract for the purpose of conducting an audit or examination, and obtaining
excerpts and transcripts.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION. CARE shall comply with ORS 656.017 which
requires them to provide workers’ compensation coverage for all their subject
workers. CARE shall provide proof of compliance with Oregon Workers'
Compensation law by providing TCTD with a copy of Notice of Compliance or
similar document.

12.INDEMNIFICATION. CARE shall indemnify, defend, save, and hold harmless the

TCTD, the Public Transit Division of the Oregon Department of Transportation, and
their respective officers, agents, employees, and members, from all claims,
actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising
from a tort, as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260, caused, or alleged to be
caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of CARE
or any of CARE's officers, agents, employees, or subcontractors (“Claims”). lt is
the specific intention of the parties that the State shall, in all instances, except for

45039-27477 4841-2208-1767.2

WO



Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the State, be
indemnified by CARE from and against all claims.

13.INSURANCE. CARE covenants that it has, and will retain throughout the term of
this Agreement, insurance coverage consistent with the requirements of ODOT.

14.NONDISCRIMINATION. CARE agrees to comply with all applicable requirements
of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules, and regulations.

15.WAIVER. The failure of TCTD to enforce any provision of this contract shall not
constitute a waiver by TCTD of that or any other provision.

16.ASSIGNMENT. CARE shall not assign or transfer its interest in this Agreement
without the express written consent of TCTD.

17.ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement supersedes all prior oral or written
agreements between CARE and TCTD regarding this proposal. It represents the
entire agreement between the Parties. Time is of the essence in all terms,
provision, covenants, and conditions of this Agreement.

18.SEVERABILITY. Should any clause or section of this Agreement be declared by
a court to be void or voidable, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect.

19.JURISDICTION. This Agreement is executed in the State of Oregon, and is
subject to Oregon law and jurisdiction. Venue shall be in Tillamook County,
Oregon, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties.

20.LEGAL REPRESENTATION. In entering into this agreement, each Party has
relied solely upon the advice of their own attorney. Each Party has had the
opportunity to consult with counsel or now waives that right. Each Party represents
and warrants to the other that they are fully satisfied with the representation
received from their respective attorneys.

21.NOTICES. The Parties must send any notices, invoices, or other written
communications required by this Agreement through the United States Mail, first-
class postage paid, or personally delivered to the addresses below. Any notice
required or permitted under this Agreement shall be effective when actually
delivered or three days after the date postmarked if sent by United States Mail.

TCTD CARE, Inc.

Attn: Doug Pilant, General Manager Attn: Peter Starkey, Executive Director
3600 3rd St, Ste A 2310 First St, Ste 2

Tillamook, OR 97141 Tillamook, OR 97141

45039-27477 4841-2208-1767.2

L\



22.DISPUTE RESOLUTION. The parties agree to attempt to resolve any disputes
relating to this Agreement by taking the following steps:

a. In-person meeting between General Manager of TCTD and Executive
Director of CARE.

b. In-person meeting between two members of TCTD'’s Board of Directors and
CARE’s Board of Directors

The Parties may agree to mediate at any stage of the dispute resolution process.
The Parties may have legal assistance at any of the meetings in this process.

Each Party represents to the other by their signatures below that each has read,
understands, and agrees to all covenants, terms, and conditions of this Agreement; each
Party represents to the other to have the actual and/or apparent authority to bind their
respective legal persons, corporate or otherwise.

TCTD CARE, Inc.
Doug Pilant, General Manager Peter Starkey, Executive Director
Date Date

45039-27477 4841-2208-1767.2

WA



Exhibit A

Reporting Conditions in the Agreement between CARE, INC. and TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT for Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (“STIF”)
formula funding will be as follows:

CARE, Inc. will distribute vouchers to individuals to purchase regular or discount bus
passes to Tilamook County residents who CARE Inc. has determined are members of
low-income households (below 200% of the federal poverty guidelines). TCTD conducted
a low-income household analysis and concluded that 40% of all Tillamook County
households meet this threshold. This study concluded that 21% of low-income
households are in south Tillamook County; 32% are in north Tillamook County; while 47%
of low-income households meeting the poverty guidelines are within the greater Tillamook
area.

CARE, Inc. will make quarterly reports to TCTD using the form attached as Exhibit B.
Reporting periods are July through September, October through November, January
through March, and April through June. Reports must include:

1. Number of vouchers during the reporting period, by voucher type

2. Total dollar value of each type of voucher issued during the reporting period

3. Total dollar value of all vouchers issued during the reporting period

4. Certification that all vouchers issued during the reporting period were issued to
individuals eligible for services through CARE, Inc.

Reports will be sent to TCTD within 30 days of the end of the quarter being reported. The

District's Quarterly Report will include the report provided by CARE, Inc. and will be sent
to ODOT within 45 days of the end of the quarter being reported.

45039-27477 4841-2208-1767.2

V5



Exhibit B

[insert reporting form here]

45039-27477 4841-2208-1767.2

W4



CARE, Inc. STIF Quarterly Report

Reporting Period:

dollar
value of
vouchers
issued,

total of
all

vouchers
issued

Full fare | Reduced Day Portland | Deviated- | Dial-A-
fare pass Route 5 Fixed Ride
Route Pass
Pass Totals
Number
of
vouchers

| hereby certify that all vouchers issued during this reporting period were issued to
individuals eligible for services through CARE, Inc.

Signature of Certifying Official:

Printed Name of Certifying Official:

Date:




BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager
to Enter into a Janitorial Services
Agreement with Marie Mills Center
for the Downtown Transit Center

B e e

RESOLUTION NO. 21-16

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) seeks to
contract for the provision of janitorial services at the Tillamook Downtown Transit Center;
and

WHEREAS, Marie Mills Center, Inc. is a qualified contractor to provide such
services; and

WHEREAS, Marie Mills Center, Inc. is recognized by the Oregon
Department of Administrative Services as a Qualified Rehabilitation Facility for purposes
of public contracting; and

WHEREAS, the District wishes to enter into a contract with Marie Mills
Center, Inc. for the performance of janitorial services as outlined on the Janitorial Services
Agreement Exhibit A; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County
Transportation District Board of Directors:

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors
authorizes the General Manager to Execute a Janitorial Service Agreement in the amount
of $15,546.21 with Marie Mills Center for janitorial services at the Tillamook Downtown
Transit Center.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of May 2021.
ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

W



Marie Mills Center, Inc.

Vocational & Residential Services
Serving Tillamook County Since 1969

A AKX

We Build Abilities
1800 Front Street. Tillamook. Oregon 97141 « (503) 842-2539 - Fax (503) 842-8028

www.Inariemillscenter.com

JANITORIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

To: Tillamook County Transportation District Date: April 19, 2021
3600 Third Street Telephone: 503-815-8283
Tillamook OR 97141

This agreement is between _ MARIE MILLS CENTER INC., and _Tillamook County
Transit District (Transit Center). Marie Mills Center will furnish all materials and perform
all labor necessary to complete the tasks indicated:

SEE EXHIBIT “A” FOR SCOPE OF WORK
All other duties will be on an as needed basis at a cost agreed upon by both parties.

This contract will be in effect from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 and may be terminated
by either party upon thirty day’s written notice.

All of the above work to be completed in a substantial and workmanlike manner in
accordance with standard practices TCTD shall pay One Thousand One Hundred
Ninety-six dollars and 78/100 ($1.196.78) per month during the months of
December, January, February (six days per week); AND, One Thousand Three
Hundred Twenty-eight dollars and 43/100 ($1328.43) during the months of March
through November (7 days per week) for services performed. The total cost of this
agreement shall not exceed Total annual cost of $15,546.21.

Tillamook County Transportation District will make payment by the fifteenth (15th) day
of the month following the completion of each month's services; services for a portion of
a month will be prorated. If account balance is in arrears, advance payment may be
required before further services are provided. Past due accounts may be charged interest
at the rate of 1.5% of the Past Due amount per month.

Wl



Any alteration or deviation from the above term or specifications must be mutually agreed
to, in writing, by the parties.

** Except as provided below, or as otherwise provided by applicable law, Contractor shall defend and
indemnify TCTD and its officers, employees, and agents from all claims arising from the Services,
including claims arising from injury to any person or damage to property; breach of this Contract by
Contractor; or violation of applicable law by Contractor. Contractor will not be responsible for claims
resulting solely from the negligence or other wrongful acts or omissions of TCTD or TCTD's officers,
employees, or agents.

** Contractor is a “subject employer” as defined in ORS 656.005 and shall comply with ORS 656.017.
Contractor shall provide workers' compensation coverage for “subject workers” employed to perform the
Services. Before performing any Services, Contractor shall provide a certificate of insurance for workers’
compensation coverage or other proof of coverage or certify that no subject workers will perform
Services.

** At all times while Contractor is performing Services at the Premises, Contractor shall, at Contractor's
expense, maintain in force a commercial general liability policy and a comprehensive automobile liability
policy. The coverage under each policy must be equal to or greater than the limits for claims made under
the Oregon Tort Claims Act with minimum coverage of $2,000,000 per occurrence {combined single limit
for bodily injury and property damage claims) or $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and $600,000
per occurrence for property damage. TCTD and TCTD's officers, employees, and agents will be named
as additional insureds on an endorsement to each policy.

In the event either party files suit to enforce any term of this agreement, reasonable
attorney fees and costs shall be paid to the prevailing party, including any attorney fees
and costs incurred in any appellate proceeding.

Acceptance and participation are the same for everyone without regard to race, color,
national origin, sex, or handicap.

MARIE MILLS CENTER, INC.
g af

Marie Mills Centgf, Inc. Representative

ACCEPTANCE

You are hereby authorized to furnish all materials and labor required to complete the work
mentioned in the above agreement; for which the undersigned agrees to pay the amount
mentioned in said agreement, and according to the terms thereof.

Company Representative Date

Print Name

\3



J=23 EXHIBIT A

TCTD TRANSIT CENTER

JOB COMPONENTS

TRANSIT CENTER
MONDAY THRU SATURDAY (DEC. JAN. FEB.)
MONDAY THRU SUNDAY (MARCH THRU November)

Clean, Sanitize, sweep & mop floors, and restock restrooms (including walls and floors) in two
bathrooms

Dust windowsills and other flat surfaces

Wipe down seats in waiting area

Sweep and mop all resilient floors

Empty Trash

Clean all glass doors

ONE TIME PER WEEK
CLEAN OFFICE:

Empty trash
Vacuum Carpet
Dust Flat surfaces (do not move papers on desk)

ONE TIME PER MONTH

WINDOWS

CLEAN ALL GLASS WINDOWS AND DOORS INSIDE AND OUTSIDE UP TO 8 FEET

UPDATED 5/9/19

\q



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General Manager )
to Enter into a Janitorial Services )
Agreement with Marie Mills Center )

)

for the TCTD Administrative Building RESOLUTION NO. 21-17

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) seeks to
contract for the provision of janitorial services at the District's administrative and
operations offices; and

WHEREAS, Marie Mills Center, Inc. is a qualified contractor to provide such
services; and

WHEREAS, Marie Mills Center, Inc. is recognized by the Oregon
Department of Administrative Services as a Qualified Rehabilitation Facility for purposes
of public contracting; and

WHEREAS, the District wishes to enter into a contract with Marie Mills
Center, Inc. for the performance of janitorial services outlined on the Janitorial Services
Agreement Attachment A; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County
Transportation District Board of Directors:

that the Tillamook County Transportation District Board of Directors
authorizes the General Manager to Execute a Janitorial Service Agreement in the amount
of $6,286.44 to Marie Mills Center for janitorial services at the TCTD administrative and
operations building.
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of May 2021.
ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

{ZO



Marie Mills Center, Inc.

Vocational & Residential Services
Serving Tillarnook County Since 1969

@\Mtﬁﬂ:)@

We Build Abilities
1800 Front Street, Tillamook. Oregon 97 141 + (503) 842-2539 - Fax (503) 842-80728

JANITORIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

To:  Tillamook County Transportation District Date: April 23, 2021
3600 Third Street Telephone: 503-815-8283
Tillamook OR 97141

This agreement is between MARIE MILLS CENTER INC. and Tillamook County
Transportation District. Marie Mills Center will furnish all materials and perform all labor
necessary to complete the tasks as indicated:

SEE EXHIBIT “A” FOR SCOPE OF WORK
All other duties will be on an as needed basis as agreed upon by both parties.

This contract will be in effect from July 1, 2021to June 30, 2022 and may be terminated by
either party upon thirty-day written notice.

All the above work to be completed in a substantial and workmanlike manner in accordance with
standard practices for the sum of Five Hundred Twenty-three Dollars and 87/100 ($523.87)

dollars per month. The total cost of this agreement will not exceed total annual cost of $6286.44.

Tillamook County Transportation District will make payment by the fifteenth (15th) day of
the month following the completion of each month's services; services for a portion of a month
will be prorated. If account balance is in arrears, advance payment may be required before
further services are provided. Past due accounts may be charged interest at the rate of 1.5% of
the Past Due amount per month.

Any alteration or deviation from the above terms or specifications must be mutually agreed to, in
writing, by the parties.

** Except as provided below, or as otherwise provided by applicable law, Contractor shall defend and
indemnify TCTD and its officers, employees, and agents from all claims arising from the Services,
including claims arising from injury to any person or damage to property; breach of this Contract by
Contractor; or violation of applicable law by Contractor. Contractor will not be responsible for claims
resulting solely from the negligence or other wrongful acts or omissions of TCTD or TCTD's officers,
employees, or agents.

A



** Contractor is a “subject employer” as defined in ORS 656.005 and shall comply with ORS 656.017.
Contractor shall provide workers’ compensation coverage for “subject workers” employed to perform
the Services. Before performing any Services, Contractor shall provide a certificate of insurance for
workers’ compensation coverage or other proof of coverage or certify that no subject workers will
perform Services.

** At all times while Contractor is performing Services at the Premises, Contractor shall, at Contractor’s
expense, maintain in force a commercial general liability policy and a comprehensive automobile liability
policy. The coverage under each policy must be equal to or greater than the limits for claims made
under the Oregon Tort Claims Act with minimum coverage of $2,000,000 per occurrence (combined
single limit for bodily injury and property damage claims) or $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury
and $600,000 per occurrence for property damage. TCTD and TCTD's officers, employees, and agents
will be named as additional insureds on an endorsement to each policy.

In the event either party files suit to enforce any term of this agreement, reasonable attorney fees
and costs shall be paid to the prevailing party, including any attorney fees and costs incurred in
any appellate proceeding.

Acceptance and participation are the same for everyone without regard to race, color, national
origin, sex, or handicap.

MARIE MILLS CENTER, INC. _
) Date

Marie Mills Centef, Inc. Representative

ACCEPTANCE

You are hereby authorized to furnish all materials and labor required to complete the work
mentioned in the above agreement; for which the undersigned agrees to pay the amount
mentioned in said agreement, and according to the terms thereof.

Company Representative Date

V22



1-22 EXHIBIT A

TCTD

JOB COMPONENTS

OFFICE BUILDING
FRIDAY

Empty Trash and restock paper products and soap restrooms in TCTD office area
Vacuum all carpeted areas including TCTD offices (if unlocked), Main conference room (if

unlocked),
Dust windowsills and other flat surfaces (papers on desks will not be moved or disturbed)
Empty Trash

PUBLIC AREA
FRIDAY

Public Restrooms — Empty Trash and restock paper products and soap
Vacuum Conference room near (janitorial room), Foyer, Lobby and Hall Public area
Dust windowsills and other flat surfaces

OFFICE BUILDING

WEDNESDAY
TCTD Office -- Restrooms — Empty Trash and restock paper products and soap

PUBLIC AREA
WEDNESDAY

Public Restrooms — Empty Trash and restock paper products and soap

EXTRAS

STRIP AND WAX TCTD 2 OFFICE AREA BATHROOMS (January, April, July, October)
SCRUB RESTROOM FLOORS IN HALLWAY (March, June, Sept, and Dec)

STRIP AND WAX LUNCHROOM FLOOR (one time per year in June)

UPDATED 4/23/2021



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Approving an Intergovernmental
Agreement Between TCTD and
Columbia County for Shared
Use and Funding of Ecolane
DRT Software

— N e

RESOLUTION NO. 21-18

WHEREAS, ORS 190.010 authorizes a unit of local government to enter into a
written intergovernmental agreement with any other unit of local government for the
performance of any or all functions and activities that a party to the agreement has the
authority to perform; and

WHEREAS, the agreement may provide for the performance of a function or
activity by one of the parties for any other party; and

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) provides demand
response service transportation in Tillamook County, including dial-a-ride and non-
emergent medical transport (NEMT); and

WHEREAS, TCTD uses Ecolane DRT software (the “Ecolane Software”) under
license from Ecolane USA Inc. to schedule, dispatch, track, and report on TCTD’s
demand response service transportation; and

WHEREAS, TCTD also operates the NW Rides NEMT brokerage, through which
TCTD subcontracts NEMT trips for Columbia Pacific CCO members living in Clatsop,
Columbia, and Tillamook Counties; and

WHEREAS, TCTD has allocated one or more TCTD Ecolane Software
sublicenses to several subcontractors of the NW Rides NEMT brokerage, enabling
subcontracted drivers to use tablets running the Ecolane Software mobile module to
receive and process NEMT trip assignments in real-time; and

WHEREAS, Columbia County provides demand response service transportation
in Clatsop County, including dial-a-ride and NEMT services; and

WHEREAS, Columbia County is a subcontractor of the NW Rides NEMT
brokerage; and

WHEREAS, Columbia County does not currently have any TCTD Ecolane
Software sublicenses, which means that Columbia County processes its NEMT trip
assignments through Ecolane USA Inc.’s web portal; and

WHEREAS, TCTD and Columbia County (collectively, the “Districts”) provide
demand response service transportation to many of the same clients; and

45039-27477 21-18 Columbia County Ecolane IGAV5/14/2021

\ZH



WHEREAS, the Districts have determined that it would serve the interests of the
public, and result in considerable cost savings, for Columbia County to use the Ecolane
Software to support the delivery of Columbia County’s demand response service
transportation in Columbia County; and

WHEREAS, TCTD has determined that Columbia County can be added as a
named user of TCTD’s Ecolane Software License Agreement to enable Columbia County
to use the Ecolane Software to schedule, dispatch, track, and report on Columbia
County’s non-NEMT demand response service transportation in Columbia County; and

WHEREAS, TCTD also wishes to allocate four TCTD Ecolane Software
sublicenses to Columbia County to enable Columbia County’s drivers to receive and
process trip assignments using the Ecolane Software in real-time for NEMT and non-
NEMT demand response service transportation alike; and

WHEREAS, Columbia County wishes to enter into a cost share arrangement with
TCTD to fund the use of the Ecolane Software in exchange for being added as a named
user to TCTD’s Ecolane Software License Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Districts to enter into an agreement that sets forth
the terms that will govern the Districts with regard to their shared use and funding of the
Ecolane Software; and

WHEREAS, such terms are set forth in the “Intergovernmental Agreement
between Tillamook County Transportation District and Columbia County for Shared Use
and Funding of Ecolane DRT Software,” attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board of Directors has considered such intergovernmental
agreement and finds it in the best interest of TCTD to adopt it.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors that:

1. The Board approves the “Intergovernmental Agreement between Tillamook
County Transportation District and Columbia County for Shared Use and Funding
of Ecolane DRT Software;” and
2. The Board authorizes the General Manager to act on behalf of TCTD in the
execution of the intergovernmental agreement and take all actions necessary to
perform TCTD's obligations under the agreement.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20%" day of May 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

45039-27477 21-18 Columbia County Ecolane IGAV5/14/2021

2%



EXHIBIT A

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

45039-27477 21-18 Columbia County Ecolane 1GA.docxV/5/13/2021

\ 2



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

BETWEEN TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT
AND COLUMBIA COUNTY

FOR SHARED USE AND FUNDING OF ECOLANE DRT SOFTWARE

This Intergovernmental Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) is entered into as of

this day of , 2021, between TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT (hereinafter “TCTD") and COLUMBIA COUNTY
(hereinafter “CCR”) (collectively, the “Parties”), both acting as political subdivisions of
the state of Oregon under the authority of ORS 198.010 et seq. and transportation
districts organized under ORS 267.510 et seq.

RECITALS

ORS 190.010 authorizes a unit of local government to enter into a written
intergovernmental agreement with any other unit of local government for the
performance of any or all functions and activities that a party to the agreement
has the authority to perform. The agreement may provide for the performance of
a function or activity by one of the parties for any other party.

TCTD provides demand response service transportation in Tillamook County,
including dial-a-ride and non-emergent medical transport (NEMT).

TCTD uses Ecolane DRT software (the “Ecolane Software”) under a Software
License & Sevices Agrement with an effective date of July 31, 2017 (as
subsequently amended) between TCTD and Ecolane USA Inc. (the "Ecolane
License Agreement") to schedule, dispatch, track, and report on TCTD’s demand
response service transportation.

TCTD also operates the NW Rides NEMT brokerage, through which TCTD
subcontracts NEMT trips for Columbia Pacific CCO members living in Clatsop,
Columbia, and Tillamook Counties.

TCTD has allocated one or more TCTD Ecolane Software sublicenses to several
subcontractors of the NW Rides NEMT brokerage, enabling subcontracted
drivers to use tablets running the Ecolane Software mobile module to receive and
process NEMT trip assignments in real-time.

CCR provides demand response service transportation in Columbia County,
including Dial-a-Ride, NEMT, and Deviated Fixed Route services.

CCR is a subcontractor of the NW Rides NEMT brokerage.

CCR does not currently have any TCTD Ecolane Software sublicenses. CCR

Page 1 — INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

45039-27477 TCTD CCR Ecolane IGA_05.20.21.docx\DP/5/14/2021

-
2
\



processes its NEMT trip assignments through Ecolane USA Inc.’s web portal.

. TCTD and CCR provide demand response service transportation to many of the
same clients.

J. The Parties have determined that it would serve the interests of the public, and
result in considerable cost savings, for CCR to use the Ecolane Software to
support the delivery of CCR’s demand response service transportation in
Columbia County.

K. TCTD has determined that CCR can be added as a named user of the Ecolane
License Agreement to enable CCR to use the Ecolane Software to schedule,
dispatch, track, and report on CCR’s non-NEMT demand response service
transportation in Columbia County.

L. TCTD also wishes to allocate four TCTD Ecolane Software sublicenses to CCR
to enable CCR’s drivers to receive and process trip assignments in real-time for
both NEMT and non-NEMT demand response service transportation.

M. CCR wishes to enter into a cost share arrangement with TCTD to fund the use of
the Ecolane Software in exchange for being added as a named user to the
Ecolane License Agreement.

N. It is the desire of the Parties to enter into an agreement that sets forth the terms
that will govern the Parties with regard to their shared use and funding of the
Ecolane Software.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, the premise being in general as stated in the foregoing
recitals, and in mutual consideration of the terms, conditions and covenants as set forth
below, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

1.1 CCR will be added as a named user of the Ecolane License Agreement,
attached hereto as Exhibit A. This will enable use of the Ecolane Software by
CCR system administrators to schedule, dispatch, track, and report on non-
NEMT demand response service transportation in Columbia County. CCR
will receive Ecolane Software training, go-live support, and ongoing product
support from Ecolane USA Inc.

1.2  CCR will be allocated four (4) TCTD Ecolane Software sublicenses, enabling
CCR drivers to accept the following types of trip assignments using tablets
running the Ecolane mobile module:

Page 2 — INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

45039-27477 TCTD CCR Ecolane IGA_05.20.21.docx\DP/5/14/2021

VP



1.2.1 NEMT trips as assigned by the NW Rides NEMT brokerage; and

1.2.2 Non-NEMT trips as assigned by CCR system administrators.

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT

2.1

The term of the Agreement shall be from the date of execution until February
27, 2023, with the option to renew or extend such term upon the mutual
written agreement of the Parties.

3. TCTD OBLIGATIONS

3.1

3.2

3.3

TCTD shall assign to CCR, for CCR’s exclusive use, four (5) TCTD Ecolane
Software sublicenses to enable CCR drivers to access the Ecolane Software
mobile module to accept trip assignments using tablet-type devices.

Upon receipt of funds from CCR consistent with Section 5.1 [Services] of this
Agreement, TCTD shall direct Ecolane USA Inc. to add CCR as a named
user of the Ecolane License Agreement.

TCTD shall serve as the primary contact for all correspondence with Ecolane
USA Inc. related to CCR’s use of the Ecolane License Agreement unless
otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties.

4. CCR OBLIGATIONS

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

CCR shall make payments to TCTD according to the terms in Section 5
[PAYMENT].

As a condition of being added as a named user of the Ecolane License
Agreement, CCR agrees to abide by all terms of use as set forth therein.

CCR shall respond promptly to information requests from TCTD and Ecolane
USA Inc. to enable configuration and support of CCR’s use of the Ecolane
Software.

CCR shall coordinate with Ecolane USA Inc. to identify a mutually acceptable
time for Ecolane Software training and go-live.

CCR shall be solely responsible for all costs associated with purchasing
tablets, data plans, and mounting hardware sufficient to enable CCR’s drivers
to operate the Ecolane Software.

CCR shall be solely responsible for providing one or more computers
sufficient to enable CCR system administrators to use the Ecolane Software
to assign trips to CCR drivers.

Page 3 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

45039-27477 TCTD CCR Ecolane IGA_05.20.21.docx\DP/5/14/2021

VA



4.7  CCR acknowledges and agrees that:

4.7.1 CCR is solely responsible for providing and ensuring the proper
training of its drivers, owners, or operators in the operation of motor
vehicles in conjunction with the use or operation of the Ecolane
Software; and

4.7.2 Neither TCTD nor Ecolane USA Inc. are responsible for any claim or
action including costs arising out of the use or misuse of any motor
vehicle operated by CCR in conjunction with or separate from the use
of the Ecolane Software, including any personal injury or property
damage claim or action.

4.8 CCR acknowledges and agrees that, notwithstanding the addition of CCR as
a named user of the Ecolane Software, TCTD shall remain the sole licensee
for purposes of enforcing, negotiating, or amending any provision of the
Ecolane License Agreement. CCR may not act as TCTD's agent or
representative in any communications or actions related to the Ecolane
Software.

49 CCR acknowledges and agrees that its failure to comply with the terms of this
Agreement and with the terms of the Ecolane License Agreement shall
constitute grounds for termination of this Agreement and revocation of CCR’s
use of the Ecolane Software.

5. PAYMENT

5.1  Services. Within 60 days after the execution date of this Agreement, CCR
shall pay $4,950.00 to TCTD to cover TCTD’s direct costs to add CCR as a
named user of the Ecolane License Agreement. Such direct costs will be
billed to TCTD by Ecolane USA Inc. for remote setup, training, and project
management costs.

5.2 Annual Licensing Costs. On or before July 1st of each year during the term of
this Agreement, CCR shall pay TCTD a portion of TCTD’s annual Ecolane
Software licensing costs.

5.2.1 Provided CCR does not purchase additional TCTD Ecolane Software
sublicences pursuant to Section 5.3 [Additional Sublicenses], CCR'’s
portion of TCTD’s annual Ecolane Software licensing costs is deemed
to be $2,626.20.

5.2.2 If CCR purchases additional TCTD Ecolane Software sublicenses
pursuant to Section 5.3, CCR shall bear at its sole expense the
additional annual Ecolane Software licensing costs associated with
such sublicenses. CCR’s additional annual Ecolane Software licensing
costs shall be due TCTD at the time of CCR’s acceptance of Ecolane
USA Inc.’s price quote as described in Section 5.3.

Page 4 — INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

45039-27477 TCTD CCR Ecolane IGA_05.20.21.docx\DF/5/14/2021

\20



5.3  Additional Sublicenses. Should CCR determine that it wishes to acquire
additional TCTD Ecolane Software sublicenses, CCR shall notify TCTD of
such interest in writing. Upon receiving such notice, TCTD shall request a
price quote from Ecolane USA Inc. and shall provide such price quote to CCR
for its review and acceptance. Upon CCR’s written acceptance of the price
quote, CCR shall pay TCTD the amount stated in the price quote, at which
time TCTD shall place the order with Ecolane USA Inc. to purchase the stated
number of additional TCTD Ecolane sublicenses on CCR'’s behalf.

6. GENERAL PROVISIONS
6.1 LAWS OF OREGON

The parties shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations regarding the
handling and expenditure of public funds. This Agreement shall be construed
and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon. All relevant
provisions required by ORS Chapter 279A and 279C to be included in public
contracts are incorporated and made a part of this Agreement as if fully set
forth herein.

6.2 DEFAULT

Time is of essence in the performance of the Agreement. Either party shall be
deemed to be in default if it fails to comply with any provisions of this
Agreement. The non-defaulting party shall provide the other party with written
notice of default and allow thirty (30) days within which to cure the defect.

6.3 INDEMNIFICATION

This Agreement is for the benefit of the Parties only. Each party agrees to
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other party, and its officers,
employees, and agents, from and against all claims, demands and causes of
actions and suits of any kind or nature for personal injury, death, or damage
to property on account of or arising out of services performed, the omissions
of services or in any way resulting from the negligent or wrongful acts or
omissions of the indemnifying party and its officers, employees and agents.
To the extent applicable, the above indemnification is subject to and shall not
exceed the limits of liability of the Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 30.260
through 30.300).

In addition, CCR agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Ecolane
USA Inc. from any claim or action including costs arising out of the use or
misuse of any motor vehicle operated by CCR in conjunction with or separate
from the use of the Ecolane Software, including any personal injury or
property damage claim or action. To the extent applicable, the above

Page 5 — INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

45039-27477 TCTD CCR Ecolane IGA_05.20.21.docx\DP/5/14/2021

=)



indemnification is subject to and shall not exceed the limits of liability of the
Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 30.260 through 30.300).

6.4 MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement may be modified or amended only upon the mutual written
agreement of the Parties. No waiver, consent, modification or change of
terms of this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by both
parties.

6.5 TERMINATION

This Agreement may be terminated at any time upon the mutual written
consent of both Parties, or ninety (90) days after one party provides written
notice to the other party. CCR will lose all access privileges to the Ecolane
Software on the termination date unless otherwise agreed to in writing by both
Parties. CCR shall be eligible to receive a prorated refund from TCTD for the
unused portion of CCR’s payment for annual Ecolane Software licensing
costs, calculated according to the number of days remaining from the
termination date to the end of the annual license period on February 27, and
subject to the following conditions:

6.5.1 For a payment made by CCR pursuant to Section 5.2.1, TCTD shall
issue CCR a prorated refund of this payment within sixty (60) days
after the termination date.

6.5.2 For a payment made by CCR pursuant to Section 5.2.2, TCTD agrees
to submit a request to Ecolane USA Inc. for a prorated refund of this
payment. TCTD’s obligation to issue CCR a prorated refund of a
payment made pursuant to Seciton 5.2.2 shall be contingent on
TCTD’s receipt of a refund in like amount from Ecolane USA Inc.

6.6 WAIVER

No provision of this Agreement may be waived except in writing by the party
granting a waiver of compliance with this Agreement. A waiver shall not
constitute a waiver of any other provision nor shall any one waiver constitute
a continuing waiver. Failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall
not operate as a waiver of such provision of any other provision.

6.7 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The parties shall attempt to informally resolve any dispute concerning any
party’s performance or decisions under this Agreement, or regarding the
terms, conditions or meaning of this Agreement. A neutral third party may be
used if the Parties agree to facilitate these negotiations, with the Parties
sharing equally in the cost of a neutral third party. In the event of an impasse

Page 6 — INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

45039-27477 TCTD CCR Ecolane IGA_05.20.21.docx\DP/5/14/2021

\5L



in the resolution of any dispute, the issue shall be submitted to the governing
bodies of both Parties for a recommendation or resolution.

6.8 REMEDIES

Subject to the provisions in Section 6.7 [DISPUTE RESOLUTION], either
party may institute legal action to cure, correct, or remedy any default, to
enforce any covenant or agreement herein, or to enjoin any threatened or
attempted violation of this Agreement. All legal actions shall be initiated in
Tillamook County Circuit Court. The Parties, by signature of their authorized
representatives below, consent to the personal jurisdiction of that court.

6.9 ATTORNEY FEES

In the event any suit or action is brought by either party to enforce the terms
of this Agreement, the losing party agrees to pay such sum as the trial court
may adjudge reasonable attorney fees and costs of such suit or action to be
allowed the prevailing party in such suit or action and upon any appeal
therefrom.

6.10 EXCUSED PERFORMANCE

In addition to the specific provisions of this Agreement, performance by any
party shall not be in default where delay or default is due to war, insurrection,
strikes, walkouts, riots, floods, drought, earthquakes, fires, casualties, acts of
God, governmental restrictions imposed or mandated by governmental
entities other than the parties, enactment of conflicting state or federal laws or
regulations, new or supplementary environmental regulation, litigation or
similar bases for excused performance that are not within the reasonable
control to the party to be excused.

6.11 SEVERABILITY

If any term or provision of the Agreement is declared by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining
terms and provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of
the Parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not
contain the particular term or provision held to be invalid.

6.12 INTEGRATION

This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding between the Parties with
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedes any and all
prior understandings and agreements, whether written or oral, between the
Parties with respect to such subject matter.

Page 7 — INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

45039-27477 TCTD CCR Ecolane IGA_05.20.21.docx\DP/5/14/2021

\ %3



6.13 NON-AGENCY RELATIONSHIP

Nothing in this Agreement is to be interpreted as creating or constituting an
agency relationship between the Parties. Each party remains separate, and
neither party assumes the debts, obligations or liability of the other by
entering into this Agreement. Each party is solely responsible for carrying out
its duties and functions in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

6.14 NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

Except as specifically set forth in Section 6.3 [INDEMNIFICATION], The
Parties are the only parties to this Agreement and are the only parties entitled
to enforce its terms. Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended to give, or
shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly, or
indirectly, or otherwise, to third persons unless such third persons are
individually identified by name herein and expressly described as intended
beneficiaries of the terms of this Agreement.

6.15 CONTACT PERSONS

The Parties hereby designate the following persons as the individuals having
primary responsibility for the administration of this Agreement, and the
persons designated to receive notice provided for herein. Either party may
change its designated contact person by written notice to the other party.

TCTD: Tillamook County Transportation District
Name: Doug Pilant

Title: General Manager

Address: 3600 3rd Street, Suite A

Tillamook, Oregon 97141
Telephone: (503) 842-3115
Fax: (503) 815-2834
Email: dpilant@tillamookbus.com

CCR: Columbia County
Name:
Title:
Address:
Telephone:
Fax:

Email:

6.16 SIGNATURES

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each is
deemed an original, and they are all the same Agreement.

Page 8 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

45039-27477 TCTD CCR Ecolane IGA_05.20.21.docx\DP/5/14/2021

\BH



6.17 EFFECTIVE DATE

This Agreement takes effect on the date the final party signs below.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the

dates set forth below.

TILLAMOOK COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

By

Name:
Its: Board Chair

Date

By

Name: Doug Pilant
Its: General Manager

Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By

Tillamook County Transportation District
Counsel

COLUMBIA COUNTY

By
Name;:
Its:

Date

By
Name: John Dreezsen
Its: Transit Manager

Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM

By
Columbia County Counsel

Page 9 — INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

45039-27477 TCTD CCR Ecolane IGA_05.20.21.docx\DF/5/14/2021

|25



EXHIBIT A
ECOLANE LICENSE AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT NO. 6

Page 10 - EXHIBIT A

45039-27477 TCTD CCR Ecolane IGA_05.20.21.docx\DP/5/14/2021

\Bo



AMENDMENT NO. 6
to the
Software License & Services Agreement
Between
Ecolane USA, Inc.
And
Tillamook County Transportation District (Licensee)

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 6 to the Software License & Services (“Agreement”) dated June 30,
2017, 1s effective May 21, 2021 (“Effective Date”) between Ecolane USA Inc. (“Licensor”) and Tillamook
County Transportation District (“Licensee™).

WHEREAS, Licensee would like to add on to its current contract with Amendment 6, effective
May 21, 2021, with licenses that are listed below and the services that are entailed with maintaining these
licenses, and Licensor is willing to provide such services.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree to amend the Agreement as follows:

L. Licensor agrees to add on the additional 5 licenses and services for the cost of $24,950.00 USD as
shown in Exhibit A, to Licensee’s current contract dated June 30, 2017.

2, Licensee agrees to pay an annual maintenance fee for the 5 licenses, equal to $4,000.00 USD as
shown in Exhibit A, when due per after 1 year from the date of this Amendment.

3. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement, as amended herein, shall remain in full force and
effect. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meaning given to
them in the Agreement.

4. This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an

original, but all of which counterparts collectively shall constitute one (1) instrument representing
this Amendment between the parties. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile
transmission or by e-mail delivery of a ".pdf" format data file, such signature shall create a valid
and binding obligation of the party executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) with
the same force and effect as if such facsimile or ".pdf" signature page were an original thereof.

5. This amendment and the original agreement shall automatically renew annually unless otherwise
specified and mutually agreed upon by both parties.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]

=Y



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has caused this Software License & Services Agreement
to be executed by its authorized representative to be effective as of the Effective Date first written above.

Ecolane USA Inc. Tillamook County Transportation District
(Licensee)

Signature: Signature:

Printed Name: Printed Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:




Exhibit A

EC()lanem Price Quote

Ecclane | 940 W Vailey Rd Suite 7400 | Wayne, PA 16087
844-ECOLANE ! 513-312-0033 | SALES@ECOLANE COM

DATE TRANSIT AGENCY NAME ADDRESS CITY, STATE ZiIP

04/30/2027 Tiflamcok Transit 3500 Third St, Surte A Tillarnock, CR 97147

PROJECT ATTENTION PHONE E-MAIL

Columbia Coug Pilant 503-815-8283 dplani@uliamookbus com
Ambassador E-MAIL PHONE PRICING TERMS

Rex Clark rex clark@ecolane com 530-383-1414 75% due at system set up, 20% due

at completion of training, 5% due at

F Annual due 1 yr.
|from contract signing.
DAYS PRICING IS VALID FOR DATE PRICE EXPIRES :
120 08/28/2027
Initial Licenses
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
5 Ecofane DRT/MDT Software License (per vehicle} {uniimited users} $4,000.00 $20,000.00
1 Map data for Service Area - Tillamook brokerage counties included Included
Initial licenses subtotal $20,000.00
Services
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
5 Refng!e setup o_f Ecofane DRT and MO software (8 hr. work days}, includes remcte $990.00 $4,950.00
training and project management
Services subtotal $4,950.00
Annuat Licensing Year 1
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
1 A[l Inclusive Annuai Licensing plan includes suppart for alt licenses fisted above and all ineluded Included
items befow
Hosting Costs included
Server Maintenance Included
24/7365 Support via web, emaif and phone Included
Map Updates Included
Upgrades** and Updates Included
Free monthly webinar training and access to Ahal idea portal to help drive Included
functionality for new development for Ecalane and itis customers il
Access to Learning Management System (LIS}, Ecolane University for alt staff for self- Included
paced web-based training nclu
Annuaf ficensing year 1 subtotal Included
SUBTOTAL $24,950.00
Ann‘ualllicrensing for years 2-5 includes all services listed above in Annual Licensing for year 1. Costs for years 2-5 PURCH:S;@IK;:'\ST:?; $24,950.00
are indicated befow. ‘-
YEAR 1
Annual licensing will be hald at this rate for as long as your agency is an Ecolane customer. (Based on originally ANNUAL COST FOR $4.000.00

purchased sclution. Does not include changes to 3rd party charges or data plans) YEARS 2-5 (per year}

04/30/2021 ; o,

Pate James Steg/Vice President, Business Development

THIS PROPOSAT INCLUDES THE CONDITIONS NOTED: r
Implementation, Training assures B brs per day orsite excluding weekends and helidays
Al prices are v US deflars All apphcabie safes/use taxes are addifional and payment of such (2 the sole responsibility of the purchaser

Customer may purchase Andrad tablets and airtime for Tablets through cellular pravider  Prices for tabiets range from $0 ta 5499 depending on carper Please coordingts your celiuiar provider/tablets wath Ecolane

prior to ardering hardware

“Data plan does nat nclude web browsing, etc 2GB dala plan 1s more than sufficient for the Ecolane Touchiscraen MDT Software and Navigation  Agercy 15 responsible for 4
otherwise noted

“Upgrade and webmar traning 1s inciuded for upgrades, addinonal on site of new amployee training ia charged at Refresher Training rate pius travel as applicable

== Alk hicense costs include annual hosting, suppart & ficensing fees due 1 year from contract signing set It 20

ata plan and any overages uniess

124



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Approving the Amendment to the )
TCTD Ecolane DRT Software License )
Agreement to Add Columbia County )

)

as a Named User RESOLUTION NO. 21-19

WHEREAS, ORS 190.010 authorizes a unit of local government to enter into a
written intergovernmental agreement with any other unit of local government for the
performance of any or all functions and activities that a party to the agreement has the
authority to perform; and

WHEREAS, the agreement may provide for the performance of a function or
activity by one of the parties for any other party; and

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) provides demand
response service transportation in Tillamook County, including dial-a-ride and non-
emergent medical transport (NEMT); and

WHEREAS, TCTD uses Ecolane DRT software (the “Ecolane Software”) under
license from Ecolane USA Inc. to schedule, dispatch, track, and report on TCTD's
demand response service transportation; and

WHEREAS, TCTD also operates the NW Rides NEMT brokerage, through which
TCTD subcontracts NEMT trips for Columbia Pacific CCO members living in Clatsop,
Columbia, and Tillamook Counties; and

WHEREAS, TCTD has allocated one or more TCTD Ecolane Software
sublicenses to several subcontractors of the NW Rides NEMT brokerage, enabling
subcontracted drivers to use tablets running the Ecolane Software mobile module to
receive and process NEMT trip assignments in real-time; and

WHEREAS, Columbia County provides demand response service transportation
in Columbia County, including dial-a-ride and NEMT services; and

WHEREAS, Columbia County is a subcontractor of the NW Rides NEMT
brokerage; and

WHEREAS, Columbia County does not currently have any TCTD Ecolane
Software sublicenses, which means that Columbia County's sole option is to process its
NEMT trip assignments through Ecolane USA Inc.’s web portal; and

WHEREAS, TCTD and Columbia County (collectively, the “Districts”) provide
demand response service transportation to many of the same clients; and

45039-27477 21-19 Ecolane License Amendment to add CCR.docxV5/13/2021

\HO



WHEREAS, the Districts have determined that it would serve the interests of the
public, and result in considerable cost savings, for Columbia County to use the Ecolane
Software to support the delivery of SETD’s demand response service transportation in
Columbia County; and

WHEREAS, TCTD has determined that Columbia County can be added as a
named user of TCTD’s Ecolane License Agreement to enable Columbia County to use
the Ecolane Software to schedule, dispatch, track, and report on Columbia County’s non-
NEMT demand response service transportation in Columbia County; and

WHEREAS, Columbia County wishes to enter into a cost share arrangement with
TCTD to fund the use of the Ecolane Software in exchange for being added as a named
user to TCTD’s Ecolane Software License Agreement; and

WHEREAS, TCTD’s Ecolane Software License Agreement must be amended to
allow Columbia County to be added as a named user; and

WHEREAS, TCTD has negotiated such amendment with Ecolane USA Inc. in
‘Amendment No. 2 to the Software License & Services Agreement Between Ecolane USA
Inc. and Tillamook County Transportation District” (“Amendment”), attached hereto as
Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the TCTD Board of Directors has considered the Amendment and
finds it in the best interest of TCTD to adopt it.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors that:

1. The Board approves the terms and conditions set forth in and adopts the
‘Amendment No. 6 to the Software License & Services Agreement Between
Ecolane USA Inc. and Tillamook County Transportation District;” and
2. The Board authorizes the General Manager to act on behalf of TCTD in the
execution of the Amendment.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

45039-27477 21-19 Ecolane License Amendment to add CCR.docxV5/13/2021

\A\



EXHIBIT A

AMENDMENT

45039-27477 21-19 Ecolane License Amendment to add CCR.docxV5/13/2021

\WL



AMENDMENT NO. 6
to the
Seftware License & Services Agreement
Between
Ecolane USA, Inc.
And
Tillamook County Transportation District (Licensee)

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 6 to the Software License & Services (“Agreement”) dated June 30,
2017, 1s effective May 21, 2021 (“Effective Date™) between Ecolane USA Inc. (“Licensor”) and Tillamook
County Transportation District (“Licensee”™).

WHEREAS, Licensee would like to add on to its current contract with Amendment 6, effective
May 21, 2021, with licenses that are listed below and the services that are entailed with maintaining these
licenses, and Licensor is willing to provide such services.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree to amend the Agreement as follows:

L. Licensor agrees to add on the additional 5 licenses and services for the cost of $24,950.00 USD as
shown in Exhibit A, to Licensee’s current contract dated June 30, 2017.

2. Licensee agrees to pay an annual maintenance fee for the 5 licenses, equal to $4,000.00 USD as
shown in Exhibit A, when due per after 1 year from the date of this Amendment.

2 All other terms and conditions of the Agreement, as amended herein, shall remain in full force and
effect. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meaning given to
them in the Agreement.

4. This Amendment may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which counterparts collectively shall constitute one (1) instrument representing
this Amendment between the parties. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile
transmission or by e-mail delivery of a ".pdf" format data file, such signature shall create a valid
and binding obligation of the party executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) with
the same force and effect as if such facsimile or ".pdf" signature page were an original thereof.

5. This amendment and the original agreement shall automatically renew annually unless otherwise
specified and mutually agreed upon by both parties.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has caused this Software License & Services Agreement
to be executed by its authorized representative to be effective as of the Effective Date first written above.

Ecolane USA Inc. Tillamook County Transportation District
(Licensee)

Signature: Signature:

Printed Name: Printed Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

\AH



w
Ecolane

Exhibit A

Price Quote

Ecolane | 940 W Vailey Rd, Surte 1400 | Wayne, PA 15087
B44-ECO-LANE | §10-312-6033 | SALES@ECOLANE COM

DATE TRANSIT AGENCY NAME ADDRESS CITY, STATE ZIP
04/30/2027 Tillamook Transit 3800 Third 5t Suite A Tiifarnocok, R 97147
PROJECT ATTENTION PHONE E-MAIL
Caolurnbia Doug Pilant 503-815-8283 dpilant@tiliamockbus com
Ambassador E-MAIL PRICING TERMS
Rex Clark rex ctark@ecolane com 530-383-1414 75% due at system set up, 20% due
completion of training, 5% due at
p Annual due 1yr.
contract signing.
DAYS PRICING iS VALID FOR DATE PRICE EXPIRES
120 08/28,/2027
Inifial Licenses
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
5 Ecolane DRT/MDT Software License (per vehicle] {unlimited users}) $4,006.00 $20,000.00
1 Map data for Service Area - Tillamaook brokerage counties Included Included
Initial licenses subtotal $20,000.00
Services
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
5 Ren_rn.o!e setup gf Ecolane DRT and MDT software (8 br. work days}, includes remote $990.00 $4,950.00
trarmng and Efctect management
Services subtotal $4,950.00
Annual Licensing Year 1
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
3 All inclusive Annual Licensing plan includes support for all licenses listed above and alf Included included
items befow
Hosting Costs Included
Server Maintenance Included
24/74365 Support via web, email and phone Included
Map Updates fncluded
Upgrades* and Updates Included
Free monthly webinar training and access to Ahal !dea portal to help drive Included
hi lity for new development for Ecotane and its customers !
Access to Learning Management System (LMS], Ecolane University for all staff for self-
a Included
paced web-based training
Annual ficensing year 1 subtotaf Included
SUBTOTAL $24,950.00
.-iunfnl‘ﬂl:um::ng for years 2-5 includes all sarvices fisted above in Annual Licensing for year 1. Costs for years 2-5 PURCH:\-ggél(‘)g'\Y':‘;i‘\:{ $24,950.00
are indicated below. {
YEAR 1
Annual licensing will be held at this rate for as long as your agency is an Ecolane customer. (Based on originally ANNUAL €OST FOR $4,000.00
purchased solution. Does not include changes to 3rd party charges or data plans) F £

YEARS 2-5 (per year}

04/30/2021

Date James Steg/Vice President, Business Developmert

THIS PROPOSAL INCLUDES THE CONDITIONS NOTED: '
implementation/Training assumes 8 hrs per day on-site excluding weekends and hofidays
All prices are in US doflars Al appiicabie salas/use taxes are addrional and payment of sucit 1 the sole respansibiiity of the purchaser

Customer may purchasae Android tablets and aifime for Tableta through ceflular provider  Prices for tablets range from 80 to $499 deperding on carner  Please coardinare your ceifular provider/tabiets wah Ecolane

pricr to ordenng hardware

*Dats plan does not include web browsing etc. 2G8 data plan is more than sufficient far the Ecolane Touchscreen MOT Software and Nawgation  Agency 's responaibla for data plan and any overages unless

otherwise noted

*pgrade and webinar traming is inciuded for upgrades additional on site or new employee traming 13 charged at Refresher Traiming rate plus travel as applicable

== ai hcense costs include annual hosting, suppar & ficensing fees due 1 year from cantract signing set at

20%



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

Authorizing the General )
Manager to Execute a Contract )
with Portland Kettle Works to )

)

Purchase Bus Sanitation Equipment RESOLUTION NO. 21-20

WHEREAS, the Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (NWOTA) Coordinating
Committee wishes to jointly purchase vehicle and facility sanitation equipment in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic; and

WHEREAS, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) serves as fiscal
agent for NWOTA; and

WHEREAS, the District conducted a RFQ process on behalf of NWOTA to select
a qualified company that manufactures and distributes sanitation equipment; and

WHEREAS, the District selected Portland Kettle Works to purchase the sanitation
equipment; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation
District Board of Directors:

that the Board authorizes the General Manager to execute a contract not to exceed
$141,666 with Portland Kettle Works to purchase the vehicle and facility sanitation
equipment.

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20" day of August 2021.

ATTEST:

By: By:
James Huffman, Board Chair Doug Pilant, General Manager

146



GERM-FOGGER

THE EVOLUTION OF PUBLIC SANITATION

Quote Details
Quote #:
Create Date:

Expire Date:

Bill To:

Billing Address:

TBBXC-7QVJT-S9CN2-X9D44
May 19,2021
May 19,2021

Deal ID: 05/19/2021
Prepared By: Olivia Venderby

Email: olivia@germ-fogger.com

Ship To:

Shipping Address:

147



Billing Contact: Shipping Contact:

[Signer.FirstName] [Signer.LastName] [Signer.FirstName] [Signer.LastName]
Phone #: [Signer.Phone] Phone #: [Signer.Phone]
Email: [Signer.Email] Email: [Signer.Email]

148



Germ Fogger
Systems Price QTyY Total

Germ Fogger Spraying Units
Germ-Fogger Backpack $1,599.00 1 $1,599.00

Germ-Fogger™ Backpack is a state of the
art cordless disinfecting system that
employs electrostatic vortecular™ spray
control for more consistent application of
EPA registered disinfecting agents.
Uniquely designed for comfort and ease of
use, Germ-Fogger Backpack is perfect in
precise application challenges and for bulk
disinfecting of floors, wall, countertops
and all high touch surfaces. Ideal in the era
of COVID-19, an operator with a Germ-
Fogger™ Backpack unit can disinfect
thousands of square feet of surfacesin
record time.

e Two (2) Quick Disconnect Tips

Link to product info:
https://www.germ-fogger.com/germ-
fogger-backpack-product-information/

Germ-Fogger Shoulder Sling $999.00 110 $109,890.00

Germ-Fogger™ Shoulder Sling is a state of
the art cordless disinfecting system that
employs electrostatic vortecular™ spray
control for more consistent application of
EPA registered disinfecting agents.
Uniquely designed for comfort and ease of
use, Germ-Fogger Shoulder Sling is perfect
in precise application challenges and for
bulk disinfecting of floors, wall,
countertops and all high touch surfaces.
Ideal in the era of COVID-19, an operator
with a Germ-Fogger™ Shoulder Sling unit
can disinfect thousands of square feet of
surfaces in record time.

e Two (2) Quick Disconnect Tips

Link to product info:
https://www.germ-fogger.com/germ-
fogger-shoulder-sling-product-
information/

2401 NW 22nd Avenue Portland, Oregon 97210 | Main: 503.236.4500 | FAX: 503.468.6662 149

Page 3 of 6


https://www.germ-fogger.com/gf-005-product-information/
https://www.germ-fogger.com/gf-005-product-information/

Germ-Fogger - 005 Cart $5,990.00 2 $11,980.00

Germ-Fogger 005 is a fully equipped
system, with everything you need (except
disinfectant) to begin spraying. Package
includes:

e Germ Fogger Power Pack

e One (1) 50 hose and Application

Wand
e Two (2) Quick Disconnect Tips
e One (1) GF-CT5 gallon chemical tank

Link to product info:
https://www.germ-fogger.com/gf-005-
product-information/

Subtotal $123,469.00
Total $123,469.00

2401 NW 22nd Avenue Portland, Oregon 97210 | Main: 503.236.4500 | FAX: 503.468.6662 150

Page 4 of 6


https://www.germ-fogger.com/gf-005-product-information/

Germ Fogger Accessories

Germ-Fogger Spare/Replacement Tip

Germ-Fogger brass replacement tip with integrated filter and
quick-disconnect fitting for simple and fast installation on
Germ Fogger wand.

Germ-Fogger Disinfecting Agent Chemical Bladder Bag
Germ-Fogger Sling Replacement Hose
Germ-Fogger 50 Foot Extension Hose

Germ-Fogger 50’ Extension Hose with Quick-Disconnect ends
for rapid installation. Extends your spraying distance by 2x

Germ-Fogger 5-Gallon Chemical Storage Tank

Spare 5-gallon rapid exchange chemical tank. Keeps the job
moving rapidly as chemicals can be pre-mixed and tank
exchanged on Germ-Fogger power pack in less than one
minute.

Germ-Fogger GF-HMS Hose Management System

Accessory cart to manage hoses, tanks, and spraying tips
Includes:

e One cart frame with holder for one 50gallon GF-KEG

e One hose reel for up to 300 feet of application spray hose
e Clip holder for up to six GF-TIP spray tips

Germ-Fogger 005 Expansion Wand Kit

Germ-Fogger Expansion Wand Kit Assembly Including:
e Spare wand
e 50foot hose
e Quick-disconnect hose fittings
e Two (2) Quick Disconnect tip

Shipping Price

TBD $0.00

2401 NW 22nd Avenue Portland, Oregon 97210 | Main: 503.236.4500 | FAX: 503.468.6662

Page 5 of 6

Price

$60.00

$11.00
$35.00
$275.00

$155.00

$1,450.00

$499.00

Qry

Qry

189

159
10

Subtotal

$11,340.00

$1,749.00
$350.00
$550.00

$310.00

$2,900.00

$998.00

Subtotal $18,197.00
Total $18,197.00

Subtotal

$0.00

Subtotal $0.00
Total $0.00

151



Quote Total as Configured $141,666.00

Terms and Conditions:

Full payment required before production. See link for warranty info. Credit card orders can be placed on our
website for fastest processing and delivery. Financing available Germ-Fogger Finance Application
https://www.germ-fogger.com/germ-fogger-warranty/

Signature Date

Signer Name (Print) Signer Title (Print)

152


https://app.clicklease.com/inlineapp?token=acbb3150-ae7f-4121-b125-26065a090f1e
https://www.germ-fogger.com/germ-fogger-warranty/

	5.20.2021 Board Packet
	21-20 NWOTA Bus Sanitation Equipment Contract
	Quote 11972 Germ Fogger - Complete Catalog - NWOTA

